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S reed CHOICE

CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL (NYSE: CHH) is one of the largest and most successful lodging companies in the world.
Choice currently franchises more than s,3500 hotels, representing more than 450,000 rooms, in the United States and

37 countries and territories.

Chotce Hotels International was founded as a marketing cooperative by a group of Florida motor court owners in
1941. Operating under the name Quality Courts United — the nation’s first hotel chain — the owners sought to refer
business 1o each other’s hotels, as well as establish quality and service standards for their properties, in order to better

meet the needs and expectations of their guests.

Ower the years, more hotels joined the Quality Courts system, which had become an influential force in the lodging
industry and had established a reputation for providing quality, affordable lodging in convenient and popular locations.
The company established a rich history of innovation, as it was the first in the industry to require wall-to-wall carpeting;
offer 24-hour desk service, in-room telephones, guaranteed reservations and 24-hour-a-day, toll-free reservations; segment
brands; develop a global marketing and reservations system; and offer non-smoking rooms in every hotel.

In 1990, in order 1o betrer reflect its growing number of brands and its presence in other countries, the company
changed its name to Choice Hotels International, and in 1996, Choice became a public company trading on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CHH. Choice is committed to serving the traveling public by offering
high-standard accommodations at an affordable price and to delivering an outstanding return on invesunent for
its hotel owners and shareholders.

The company’s mission is to deliver a franchise success system of strong brands, exceptional services, vast consumer

reach, and size, scale and distribucion that delivers and satisfies guests and improves profits tor our hotel owners.

Cheice’s brands, which include Comfore Inn, Comfort Suites, Quality, Sleep Inn, Clarion, Cambria Suites,
MainStay Suites, Suburban Extended Seay Hotel, Econo Lodge and Rodeway Inn, are among the world's

most recognized.
Ranging from limited-service to full-service hotels in the economy, mid-scale and upscale segments, Chotee-branded
properties provide business and leisure travelers with a range of high-quality, high-value lodging optiens throughout

the world.
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1939 1940
Seven Southern motel The average hotel
OWIETS CTEAte QUALITY industry room rate
COURTS, an informal is $3.21.

group of motels that
set guality standards
with respect to physical
facilities and operating
practices.

1041

Members formally
found QuALITY
COURTS UNITED, INC.,
an association that
would be comprised
of independent
owners, and set

the criteria of
membership, creating
the country’s first
hotel chain.

1950

The average hotel
industry room rate
is $5.01.

The company’s
membership doubles
to 126 members.

EARLY 10508

QUALITY COURTS becomes
the first to ofler to the
industry such innovations
as wall-to-wati carpeting,
daily change of linen,
24-hour desk service, and
in-room telephones.
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COMPANY RESULTS 2007

total revenues $G15.5 million

net income s1101.3 million

{rmallians)

diluted eps $1.70
cash dividends $0.604
declared per share
DOMESTIC FRANCHISE SYSTEM
hotels open and operating 4.445
hotels under development 1.004
rooms open and operating 354,139
TOTAL FRANCLHISE SYSTEM
{(domestic and international)
hotels open and operating 5,570
hotels under development 1,093
rooins open and operating 452,027
30155
sy
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20006

$539.9 million
sr12.8 million
$1.68
$0.50

4,201
860

330,441

5,376
930
437,385
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$1.08
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DILUTED EARNINGS
THR SHARE

YR

2005

$472.1 million

$87.6 million

2004

$423.4 million
$74.3 million

2003

$380.4 million

$71.9 mitlion

$1.32 st.08 $0.98
$0. 4835 3$0.425 $0.10
4.048 3.834 3.636
603 460 401
329,353 309,586 204,268
5,210 4.977 4.81¢
687 569 AUt
427,050 403.806 388,618
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DEVELOPMENT
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.%/Zo»//iom THE VICE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,

[ am very pleased to report to you that 2067 was another great year for Choice Hotels International. Qur mix of
ten well-positioned brands, coupled with a proven business model, enabled us to successfully execure our strategy of
profitably growing our franclhise system and domestic market share. Choice sharcholders were beneficiaries of the
company's strong fiancial performance in 2007, as we paid more than s40 million of cash dividends o sharcholders

and repurchased approximately 4.9 million shares of common stock under our share repurchase program.

For 2007, Choice’s financial results were excellent, with total revenues increasing 14% and operating income increasing
1% 10 $615.5 million and s185.2 million, respectively, resulting in diluted ¢arnings per share of $1.70.

We had another terrific vear in franchise developiment, executing 770 new domestic hotel franchise contracts, a
7% increase over a very strong 2006, A well-positioned mix of brands suitable for new construction and conversion
development opportunities and an ability to deliver our owners an exceptional return on investment continues

to drive our growth.

Entering 2008, Choice has its largest domestic pipeline ever — 1,004 hotels representing over 79,000 rooms under
construction, awaiting conversion, or approved for development. Due in part to our increased focus on hotel openings,
domestic units online increased 5.6% for 2007. The Choice domestic system now stands at over 4,400 hotels open,

representing nearly 355,000 rooms,

2007 was another year of growth for the hotel industry, and Chaice owners were able to drive rate increases and offset

mdustry-wide declines in occupancy, with a 4.0% increase in RevPAIR, fucled by average daily rate gains of 4.9%.

To continue to grow both our business and our market share, our strategic focus in 2008 will be on increasing both
our established and emerging brands, driving business to our properties, and achieving operational excellence in
franchise operations and services. Qur execution in these areas — and a continued company-wide focus on franchisee
profitability and satisfactdon — is expected to drive system growth and pesition us to continiue to generate strong

financial results,

1960 1963 1968 1969 1970
The average hotel QUALITY COURTS QUALITY COURTS QUALITY COURTS The average hotel industry
industry room rate goes from a non- headquarters are membership increases room rate is $19.83.
is s10.81. profit osganization relocated from 1o more than 24,000
to a for-profit Daytona Beach, rooms, making it the
corporation and Florida, to Silver largest association of
changes its name Spring, Maryland. independent motel
t0 QUALITY COURTS operators ii
MOTELS, INC, the world.
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GROW OUR CORE BRANDS

Our operating philosophy is to remain focused on driving profitable
untit growth for our seven established mid-scale and economy brands —
Comfort Inn, Comfort Suites, Sleep Inn, Quality Inn, Clarion, Econo
Lodge and Rodeway Inn. We are focused on growing our marker share
in the mid-scale without food and beverage, mid-scale with food and

beverage, and economy markets.

Owver the past five years, we have increased our domestic market share
of branded hotels by nearly 300 basis points to 18% of the mid-scale
and economy category, as measured by room supply in these segiments'.
Over this same period, Choices domestic market share of hotels online

has grown faster than any other major hotel company.

ACHIEVE GROWTH IN NEW MARKETS
2007 was a year of progress for our newest brands, the upscale
Cambria Suites brand and Suburban Extended Stay Hotel in the extended

scay nurket.

We opened our first four Cambria Suites hotels in 2007, and we have
over 60 additional properties under contract in over 23§ states and
Canada. Developer interest remains strong due o the brand’s key
product differendarors, including an all-suite design and amenities that
appeal to both business and leisure travelers, We anticipate opening
another 1o Cambria Suites hotels in 2008,

In the extended stay market, our Suburban and MainStay Suites
brands continue to expand nationally and internationally, with 2007
representing a year of substantial geographic growth, While these
brands were historically concentrated in the Southeast, development
agreements cxecuted last year are taking these brands into Canada, up

and down the West Coast, and across the central and mountain states.

Our international operations are profitable and growing.

To continue on this track, we will focus on providing technology

and distribution solutions that drive incremental revenue through our
central reservations system, including the ongoing global expansion
of our Choice Privileges rewards program. We continue to explore
opportunities in our direct franchise mmarkets that will help us
strengthen brand recognition and business development.

The company is also working to leverage its capabilities, customers, and

assets to create additional shareholder value. In 2007, we took advantage

of our powerful reservations delivery system, forming an alliance with
Quirigger Enterprises Group under which six Outrigger-managed

FOOTNOTES
1. $Smith Travel Research

1970 1980
QUALITY COURTS
establishes a European
headquarters and
establishes QuaLiTy
MOTELS OOF CANADA.

1972

QUALITY COURTS
changes its name
[0 QUALITY ENNS
INTERNATIONAL to
reflect its growing
global presence.

$45.44.

QUALITY INNS

QUALITY COURTS begins
offering 24-hour,
toll-free central
reservations.

The company’s first
Eurepean hotel,
the Quality Motel
in Ratigen, West
(ermany, opens.

company.

The average hotel
industry room rate is

INTERMATIONAL merges
with Manor Care,
litc., a healthcare

and/or affiliated properties in Hawaii, a key destination for Choice

consumers, are now marketed under our Clarion Collection brand.
Our efforts on this front include exploring expanded product offerings,
developing new business opportunities that target current unmet needs
among guests and hotel owners, and evaluating potential investnents in
adjacent businesses.

DRIVE BUSINESS DELIVERY

Our robust marketing and distribution platform is cited by hotel
owners as a primary reason for franchising Choice brands and has
fueled our domestic unit growth. Continued growth of our marketing
and reservations capabilities has enabled us to steer an increasing
percentage of guests to our proprictary central reservations systerns

and strengthen awareness of our individual brands.

We have been very successful improving online market share and
increasing our central reservations system contribution. In 2007,
choicehotels.com finished the vear ranked first among hotel companies
in Web site visits2 The site’s effectiveness was enhanced by a number
of key initiarives, including the addition of a hotel comparison feature
and an advanced mapping program.

In 2007, we introduced more single-brand and brand-family marketing
messages to complement and augment our multi-brand markering
strategy. Brand-specific messaging has helped us to communicate new
brand amenities and convey the personality of each brand. We are
focusing our cftorts in 2008 on balancing the cost-efficiency of our
successful multi-brand marketing with the need for increased single-
brand marketing and brand-family marketing. Qur hybrid approach o
marketing in 2008 will enable us to efficiently capitalize on Choice’s size,
scale and distribution to economically reach guests and help consumers
better understand which Choice brand is right for each travel occasion.

We have substantially grown our Choice Privileges rewards program,
which now has over 6 million members and contributed nearly

$1 billion in revenue to our franchisees in 2007, up over so% in two
years. Choice Privileges members are our most loyal and contribute
disproportionate revenue and bookings on central channels. In 2008 we
expect to expand this program and generate more stays from our best
guests by making elite level enhancements, creating new redemption
options and continuing to expand the program globally.

2. Hirwise

1681 1683

The company
develops Sunburst,
the industry’s first
global marketing and
reservations system.

QUALITY scgments
into three distinctive
chains: QuaLITY
ROYALE, QUALITY INN,
and COMFORT INN.

First COMFORT INN
hotel opens.
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Cnee we have driven guests 1o a Choice-brand hotel, we want to
increase the likelihood consumers are satisficd with the experience,

We will focus on helping our owners master the customer care basics
and clevate our guest service eperation o one that is positioned to rake
care of guests from check in 1o check out with best-in-class service.

ACHIEVE OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

With continued unit growth, Choice’s franchise base gets larger and
moru diverse. To meet the distinctive needs of our franchisees, we are
builcing deeper capabilities in franchise operations, shifting from a
“one-size-fits-all” approach to a more of 1 “needs-based™ model that

provides services targeted to each owner's property-level needs.

We are also in the process of building decper competencies in core processes
inherent to the franchise lifecycle, including hotel openings, quality
assurince reviews, standards, training, and brand inidative implementation.
We will guide our hotel owners to the resources and systens that we have
in pli.ce that can improve their unit profitability, including race and revenue
management tools and enhanced operations training.

Executing against our 2008 strategy will position us to continue our
track record of robust unit and market share growth and outstanding
financial resules while simultaneously strengthening our powerful
marketing and distribution platform.

We expect to continue to utilize the strong, predictable cash flows

that our business generates to return excess capital to our sharcholders,
primarily through dividends and share repurchases. Through the end

of 2007, the company has generated nearly §1 billion of free cash

flow {operating cash Aows less investing cash flows) since its firse full
year of franchise operations in 1998 and returned these cash flows to
shareholders through a combination of share repurchases and dividends
aver the same period. While the level and direction of these activities has
varied over time, both are core elements of our long-term approach to
sharcholder value creation.

In 2co7, the Board of Directors elected to raise the annual dividend
13% to $0.17 per share per quarter. For the year ended December

31, 2007, the company repurchased approximately 4.9 million shares

of its common stock at a toral cost of $184 million under its share
repurchase program. Since the company first authorized the share
repuichase program in June 1998, it has repurchased 38.6 million shares
of commen stock for a total cost of $895.9 million under its share
repuichase program. Considering the effect of 2 two-for-one stock split
enacted in October 2003, the company has repurchased 71.5 million

shares at an average price of $12.52 per share.

1986

Purchases righes

10 CLARION HOTEL
name = all QuaLITy
rROYALE hotels become
CLARION properties.

1984 1987

First to offer non-
smoking rooms in
every hotel worldwide.

Launches the sLeer
INN brand.

Introduces OMEORT
SUTTTS, an extension
of COMIORT INN.

QUALITY INN§
INTERNATIONAL
enters India.

1 would also like to thank the members of our Board of Directors for
their continued guidance and support. The Board’s contributions to
the organization and its successes are significant. I would also like to
welcome Dr. Scott Renschler to our Board of Directors, and [ look

forward to his contributions.

As | finish up a decade as Choice’s chief executive officer, I am
extremely proud of the growth of the organization over the last ten
years. | continue to have the great pleasure o work with a group of
dedicated associates around the globe whose passton is serving our

hotel owners.

During my tenure at Choice, the organization has focused its efforts
on building a collaborative relationship with our franchisees.

Qur unrelenting goal has been to maximize the success and
profitability of each Choice owner by delivering business to their
hotels and providing a wealth of value-added centralized services.
This focus on the franchisee is the linchpin that has enabled us to
build a successful and profitable business that has grown in a variety
of cconomic and industry environments.

Qur franchisee satisfaction ratings remain robust, with 85% of our
owners giving us a high rating as a franchisor and a franchisee
retention rate exceeding 96%. Satisfied customers make repeat
purchases. The focus on franchisee return on investment and
reservations delivery continues to fuel additional franchise sales

and accelerate market share growth.

The combination of ten well-positioned and powerful brands; a
leadership position in a growing, high-barrier-to-entry industry: proven
business model; franchise development expertise; and strong owner
relations positions us excremely well for continued profitable growth.

1 thank you for your support of Choice Horels International and I look
forward to a great 2008,

CHARLES A, LEDSINGER, JR.
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

1989

QUALITY INN becomes
the world's third
largest hotel chain by
number of rooms,

1990

The average hotel industry
rootm rate is $58,70,

QUALITY INNS INTERNATHINAL
is renamed CHOICE HOTELS
INTERNATIONAL.

ci1otce HoTELS adds the
RODEWAY INN and £CoONO
Lobce brands to its system.
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JANUARY

Choice unveils a new Triple Rewards promotion for its mid-scale
brands, offering guests wriple Chotce Privileges points or airline rewards
for stays at any participating hotel.

FEBRUARY

Choice reports full-year carnings for 2006, with diluted earnings per
share up 27% over the prior year, and new domestic hotel franchise
contracts up 13% to 720,

The company begins to offer an innovative, cost-saving insurance
y beg
program for its franchisees, which includes property, workers

compensation and general liability coverage.

The company extends through 2009 its alliance with the Ladies
Professional Golf Association (LPGA) as its official hotel parter.

Choice Hotels is once again recognized by Training Magazine as
one of the nation's top 125 training companies.

MARCH

The company announces that all domestic Comifort Suites hotels

will become 100 percent sioke-free as of May 1, 2007. This move
extends Choice Hotels’ legacy as an industry pioneer in non-smoking
accomimodations, as in 1984 when Choice became the first hotel
company 10 include non-smoking rooms in every one of its

properties worldwide.

APRIL
First quarter earnings are reported, with tal revenues up 6% over the

prior year’s first quarter,

1993 1996

The 1,000th COMFORT

1995

croice launches

REVIEW
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The first Cambria Suites hotel opens in Boise, Idaho, The 119-suite
Cambria Suites Boise Airport hotel is owned and operated by The
Summit Group, Inc.

The company introduces a new promotion, “With Two Free Nights,
How Will You Spend Your Days?™ With this offer, travelers that sign up
for the Choice Privileges Visa card get enough bonus points for two
free nights at more than 1,000 hotels,

MAY

Choice Privileges is rolled out in Ireland, marking the first phase of its
expansion outside North America, Later in the year, hotels in Mexico
join the program.

Choice’s §3rd Annual Convention is held in Orlando, Florida. The
keynote speaker is longtime NBC News anchorman Tom Brokaw.

The Chotce Privileges rewards program wins its first “Freddie Award,” in
which frequent travelers around the world vote on their favorite hotel,
airline and credit card loyalty programs. Choice Privileges is recognized
in the Best Award category for “the best overall award representing the
best flexibility and value for its members.”

The company introduces a new, more modern logo for its Econo
Lodge brand, which is a culmination of a number of enhanced brand
standards and guest satisfaction programs implemented to position the

brand for long-term growth and success.

With the peak season for family travel approaching, the company
launches its summer promotions, offering guests the opportunity to
carn free 830 gas cards to stretch their travel dollars a bic further,

1998 2000

CHOLCE is spun off from
Manor Care as a separate
publicly-traded conipany
{NYsE: cin),

Charles A. Ledsinger,
Jr..is named president
and chief executive
officer of cHOICE
HOTELS.

The average hotel
industry room rate is
$55.59.

chaicchotels.com, the
first Web site in the
lodging industry
to offer real-time
aceess to a centrak
TL’SCI"VlltiUH Systcm.

NN hotel opens.

CHOICE HOTELS cnters the
extended stay segment
with MAINSTAY SULTES.

cHotck launches its
Choice Privileges
rewards program.

CHOICE enters the
Brazilian market.
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JUNE OCTOBER
Destinations Magazine honors Chelce as the hotel chain that is most Third quarter earnings are reported, with revenues increasing 17% and

accommodating to groups. operating income up 14%.

The company announces the completion of the full deployment
of Choice ADVANTAGE, its proprietary Web-based hotel property
management systetn, to all domestic Econo Lodge and Rodeway

JULY
For the second quarter, the company reports diluted earnings per share

rowth of 19% and operating incom 12%. . . . .
& 97 P g income up 12% Inn brand hotels, Choice ADVANTAGE is tightly integrated with
Cambria Suites brand enters New York City with the execution of the Choice central reservation system, helping maximize rate and
a rranchise agreement for the 12-story, 300-suite Cambria Suites occupancy yields for franchisees.

Brooklyn Bridge hotel, which is slated to open in late 2009. Choice’s Clarion brand is ranked “Highest In Guest Satisfaction

Among Mid-Scale Full-Service Hotel Chains” in the proprietary
AUGUST

) ] ) ] J12. Power and Associates 2007 European Hotel Guest Satisfaction
Choice launches its ResPro call forwarding program, which allows

Index Study.
hotels to transfer reservation ingquiries to the company’s customer care

and reservations centers. NOVEMBER

For its fall promotion, Choice returns to its popular “Stay Two Times, Choice Hotels and Winport Developments, [nxc., announce the
Earn a Free Night,” campaign for its mid-market brands, where Choice  execution of a development agreement under which Winport will
Drivileges rewards program members can earn a free night at over r,oco  build a minimum of 2§ MainStay Suites and Suburban Exrended Stay

hotels with just two separate stays. Hotels in Canada.
The company anncunces it has entered into a ten-year master Choice opens its fourth Cambria Suites hotel in Bloomington,
franchising agreement with Ireland-based Kasterlee Limited for the Minnesota. The brand ends the year with hotels open in Bloemington;
right to license and develop Choice’s Clarion, Quality and Comfort Boise, Idaho; Green Bay, Wisconsin; and Appleton, Wisconsin. As of
brands in Ireland. Kasterlee previously operated Choice’s brands December 31, an additional 65 hotels are under contract in the
in Ireland under an area representative agreement with the previous United States and Canada.
mast:r franchisor.

DECEMBER
SEPTEMBER The company hosts an Analyst and [nvestor Day in New York City.
The company m’mounccs 2 13% increase in its dividend for Choice announces it has acquired the franchising operations in
shareholders. going from so.(5 to $0.17 per share. the United Kingdom from Real Hotel Group PLC, effective
The Board of Dirccrors autherizes an increase under the company’s January 371, 2008.

exisung stock repurchase program o acquire up to an additional three The company announces that its Choice Privileges rewards program

million shares of its outstanding common stock. s
g common sta will include the Econo Lodge and Rodeway Inn hotel brands as

Chorce launches HospitalityCare, a health benefit insurance program of January 1, 2¢08. This adds more than t,000 hotels to the Choice
designed exclusively for its franchisees and their part-time, hourly, and Privileges rewards prograni, which now is the rewards program for
salaried workers. all ten Choice brands.

For the second quarter in a row, choicehotels.com 1s the top all
hotel-related online destination, according to Hitwise.

Clarion received the highest numerical score among mid-scale full service hotels in the
prapriecary ][ Power and Associates zoo7 European Hotel Guest Satisfaction Index Study™
Study based on responses from 31,728 European guests who stayed at 4 hotel in Europe
between June and Seprember 2007, measuring 16 hotel chains. Proprietary study results are
based on experiences and perceptions of consumers surveyed in August-September 2007.
Your experiences may vary Visit jdpower.com

200} 20034 2006 2007

CHOICE launches THE cnoIck launches caMBRrIA sUITES brand. Choice Privileges The first cAMBRIA

CLARION COLLECTION, . rewards program sUETES hotel opens in
. CIIOICE Opens its 5,000th hotel, a coMeorT .

a brand extension of surpasses the §,000,000- Boise, 1daho.

sutTEs in Lake Geneva, Wisconsin,
member mark.

the cLArloN brand,
CHOICE 3CGuiTes SUBURBAN EXTENLED STAY
HOFTEL, an economy extended stay brand.
CHOICE becomes largest franchisor in the

economy extended stay market.

CHOICE re-acguires
the franchising
operations for
continental Europe.
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CAMBRIA SUITES
Cambria Suites hotels are designed for guests who want 1o take their lifestyle
with them when traveling and feature suites thac are 25 percent larger than

standard hotel rooms.

HOTELS QPEN: 4 DOMESTIC

COMFORT INN
Choice’s flagship brand, Comfort Inn is the mid-priced hotel brand with warm
and welcoming service and amenities that nake you feel at ease.

HOTELS OPEN: 1,434 DOMESTIC, §42 INTERNATIONAL

COMEFORT SUITES
The mid-priced hotel that offers more space for working and relaxing, allowing,
you to feel more organized, preductive and in control during your trip.

HOTELS OPEN: 481 DOMESTIC, 10 INTERNATIONAL

QUALITY
One of the hotel industry’s oldest brands, Quality Inn is the mid-priced
hotel that consistently provides guest essentials in a helpful, accommodating

environment where you feel satisfied.

HOTELS OPEN: 828 DOMESTIC, 382 iNTERNATIONAL

SLEEP INN
The mid-priced hotel that offers a consistent environment with just the right

amerities at an exceptional value, so you feel proud about your choice of hotel.

HOTELS OPEN: 346 DOMESTIC, 24 INTERNATIONAL



CLARION
Clarion 1s the unpretentious full-service hotel that offers a distinctive experience

for the sensible traveler.
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HOTELS OPEN: 167 DOMESTIC, [15 INTERNATIONAL

MAINSTAY SUITES
A mid-priced extended stay brand, MainStay Suites hotels provide residential
style amenities and affordable rates with both large rooms and studios.

HOTELS OPFEND 30 DOMESTIC

SUBURBAN
Choice’s econamy extended stay brand, Suburban hotels provide guests a great

value over a longer stay.

HOTELS OPEN: S4 DOMESTIC

ECONO LODGE
Econo Lodge hotels provide a great stay and a great value for business and

leisure travelers.

HOTELS OPEN: 825 DOMESTIC, 4§ INTERNATIONAL

RODEWAY INN
You'll find artractive accommoedations at a great price when you book a room at

any Rodeway Inn hotel.

HOTELS OPEN: 276 DOMESTIC, 6 INTERNATIONAL
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The graph below compares the cumulative s-year total return of holders of
Choice Hotels International, Incs common stock with the cumulative total
returns of the NYSE Composite Index and the S & P Hotels, Resorts &
Cruise Lines Index. The graph tracks the performance of a $100 investment
in our common stock and in each of the indexes {(with the reinvestment of

all dividends) from December 31, 2002, to December 31, 2007.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE RETURNS
Among Choice Hotels International, Inc., the NYSE Composite Index and the § & P Hotels, Resorts & Cruise Lines Index

$500

$450

$400

$350

$300

$250

$200 /

$150 __,41_.-————-'43"""“'"{]_—‘—F

—&— CHOICE HOTELS
INTERNATIONAL, [NC.

—8&— 5& P HOTELS, RESORTS
& CRUISE LINES

=—{— NYSE COMPOSITE

$100
* 3100 invested on 124162 in stock or index —
350 including reinvestiment of dividends, Fiscal
50 L 1 1 year ending December 31, 2007..
12702 12703 12704 12705 12/06 12707
1202 12703 12/04 12405 1206 12/07
CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, ENC. $100% $155% $2060% $3800 83877 $310M
5 & P HOTELS, RESORTS & CHRUISE LINES $100°° 15210 $221450 $224% $25774 $223H
NYSE COMPOSITE $100% $13t7 $151% $1655 199 $217
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The following is an excerpt from Choice Hotels International, Inc. Form 10-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commissions ("SEC") on February, 29, 2008. Throughout this report, we refer to Choice Hotels International,
Inc., together with its subsidiaries as “we”, “us” or “the Company”.

Certain matters discussed in this report constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal
securities law. Generally, our use of words such as “expect,” “estimate,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “will,” “forecast,”
“plan,” project,” “assume” or similar words of futurity identify statements that are forward-looking and that we intend to
be included within the Safe Harbor protections provided by Section 274 of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such forward-looking statements are based on management’s current beliefs,
assumptions and expectations vegarding future events, which in turn are based on information curvently available to
management. Such statements may relate to projections for the Company’s revenue, earnings and other financial and
operational measures, Company debt levels, payment of stock dividends, and future operations. We caution you not to
place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which are made as of the date of this report. Forward-looking
statements do not guarantee future performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors.
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Several factors could cause actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to differ materially from
those expressed in or contemplated by the forward-looking statemens. Such risks include, but are not limited to, changes
to general, domestic and foreign economic conditions; operating risks common in the lodging and franchising industries,
changes to the desirability of our brands as viewed by hotel operators and customers; changes to the terms or termination
of our contracts with franchisees; our ability to keep pace with improvements in technology utilized for reservations
systems and other operating systems; fluctuations in the supply and demand for hotels rooms; and our ability to manage
effectively our indebtedness. These and other risk factors are discussed in detail in Item 1A "Risk Factors” in our Form
10-K filed February 29, 2008. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Business.

Overview

Choice Hotels International, Inc. and subsidiaries is one of the largest hotel franchisors in the world with 5,570
hotels open and 1,093 hotels under development as of December 31, 2007, representing 452,027 rooms open and 87,982
rooms under development in 49 states, the District of Columbia and 39 countries and territories outside the United States.
Choice franchises lodging properties under the following proprietary brand names: Comfort Inn®, Comfort Suites®,
Quality®, Clarion®, Sleep Inn®, Econo Lodge®, Rodeway Inn® , MainStay Suites®, Suburban Extended Stay Hotel®
Cambria Suites® and Flag Hotels® (collectively, the “Choice brands”). We operate in a single reportable segment
encompassing our franchising business.

The Company conducts its international franchise operations through a combination of direct franchising and master
franchising relationships which allow the use of our brands by third parties in foreign countries. The Company has made
equity investments in certain non-domestic lodging franchise companies that conduct franchise operations for the
Company’s brands under master franchising reiationships. As a result of our use of master franchising relationships and
international market conditions, total revenues from intemational franchising operations comprised only 7% and 6% of
our total revenues in 2007 and 2006, respectively while representing approximately 20% and 22% of our franchise system
hotels open at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Our direct lodging property real estate exposure is limited to three company-owned MainStay Suites hotels.

With a focus on hotel franchising instead of ownership, we benefit from the economies of scale inherent in the
franchising business. The fee and cost structure of our business provides opportunities to improve operating results by
increasing the number of franchised hotel rooms and effective royalty rates of our franchise contracts resulting in
increased initial fee revenue, ongoing royalty fees and brand solutions revenues. In addition, our operating results can also
be improved through our company wide efforts directed towards improving the property level performance of our
franchisees. We also collect marketing and reservation fees to support centralized marketing and reservation activities for
the franchise system. As a lodging franchisor, Choice has relatively low capital expenditure requirements.

Our capital allocation decisions, including capital structure and uses of capital, are intended to maximize our return
on invested capital and create value for our shareholders. We believe our strong and predictable cash flows create a strong
financial position that provides us a competitive advantage. Currently, our business does not require significant capital to
operate and grow. Therefore, we can maintain a capital structure that generates high financial returns and use our excess
cash flow to increase returns to our shareholders. Historically, we have returned value to our shareholders in two primary
ways: share repurchases and dividends. In 1998, we instituted a share repurchase program which has generated substantial
value for our shareholders. Through December 31, 2007, we have repurchased 38.6 million shares (including 33.0 million
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prior to the two-for-one stock split effected in October 2005) of common stock at a total cost of $895.9 million since the
program’s inception. Considering the effect of the two-for-one stock split, the Company has repurchased 71.5 million
shares at an average price of $12.52 per share. Our cash flows from operations support our ability to complete the
repurchase of approximately 3.2 million shares remaining as of December 31, 2007 under the current authorization of our
board of directors. Subject to market and other conditions and upon completion of the current authorization, our board of
directors will evaluate the propriety of additional share repurchases. In 2007, we paid cash dividends totaling
approximately $40.1 million and we presently expect to continue to pay dividends in the future. Based on our present
dividend rate and outstanding share count, aggregate annual dividends for 2008 would be approximately $42.0 million.

The principal factors that affect the Company’s results are: the number and relative mix of franchised hotel rooms;
growth in the number of hotel rooms under franchise; occupancy and room rates achieved by the hotels under franchise;
the effective royalty rate achieved; and our ability to manage costs. The number of rooms at franchised properties and
cccupancy and room rates at those properties significantly affect the Company’s results because our fees are based upon
room revenues at franchised hotels. The key industry standard for measuring hotel-operating performance is revenue per
available room (“RevPAR”), which is calculated by multiplying the percentage of occupied rooms by the average daily
room rate realized. Our variable overhead costs associated with franchise system growth have historically been less than
incremental royalty fees generated from new franchises. Accordingly, we expect that continued growth of our franchise
business will enable us to realize bencefits from the operating leverage in place and improve operating results.

The Lodging Industry’’

Companies participating in the lodging industry primarily do so through a combination of one or more of the three
primary lodging industry activities: ownership, franchising and management. A company’s relative reliance on each of
these activities determines which drivers most influence its profitability.

«  Ownership requires a substantial capital commitment and involves the most risk but offers high retumms due to
the owner’s ability to influence margins by driving RevPAR and managing operating expenses. The ownership
model has a high fixed-cost structure that results in a high degree of financial leverage. As a result, profits
escalate rapidly in a lodging up-cycle but erode quickly in a downturn as costs rarely fall as fast as revenue.
Profits from an ownership model increase at a greater rate from RevPAR growth attributable to average daily
rate (“ADR”) growth, than from occupancy gains since there are more incremental costs associated with higher
guest volumes compared to higher pricing.

*  Franchisors license their brands to a hotel owner, giving the hotel the right to use the brand name, logo,
operating practices, and reservations systems in exchange for a fee and an agreement to operate the hotel in
accordance with the brand standards. Under a typical franchise agreement, the hotel pays the franchisor an initial
fee, a percentage-of-revenue royalty fee and a marketing/reservation reimbursement. A franchisor’s revenues are
dependent on the number of rooms in its system and the top-line performance of those hotels. Eamings drivers
include RevPAR increases, unit growth and effective royalty rate improvement. Franchisors enjoy significant
operating leverage in their business model since it costs little to add a new hotel franchise to an existing system.
Franchisors normally benefit from higher industry supply growth, because the benefits of unit growth usually
outweigh lower RevPAR resulting from excess supply. As a result, franchisors benefit from both RevPAR
growth and supply increases which aids in reducing the impact of lodging industry economic cycles.

* Management companics operate hotels for owners that do not have the expertisc and/or the desire to self-
manage. Thesc companies collect management fees predominately based on revenues earncd and/or profits
generated. Similar to franchising activities, the key drivers of revenue based management fees are RevPAR and
unit growth and similar to ownership activities, profit based fees are driven by improved hotel margins and
RevPAR growth.

1) Certain industry statistics included in this section, such as the number of hotel rooms, number of affiliated and non-
affiliated rooms, US Lodging Industry Trends From 1997 -- 2007, ctc. were obtained from Smith Travel Research.



The lodging industry has historically experienced economic cycles reflected in positive and negative operating
performance for various periods of time.

Positive cycles are characterized as periods of sustained occupancy growth, These cycles usually continue until the
economy sustains a prolonged downturn, excess supply conditions exist or some external factor occurs such as war,
terrorism or natural resource shortages. Recovery in the industry usually begins with an increase in occupancy followed
by hoteliers increasing their room rates. As demand begins to exceed room supply, occupancies and rates continue to
improve. These pressures result in increased hotel development.

The hotel industry posted positive and consistent RevPAR growth from the mid-1990’s until 2000 as the industry
was able to increase its ADR at a pace faster than the increase in the Consumer Price Index (“CPI™), a common measure
of inflation published by the US Department of Labor. However, due to the economic recession, which began to affect the
lodging industry during 2001, coupled with the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, industry profits and RevPAR
declined between 2001 and 2003. Nonetheless, the industry remained profitable through this period.

In 2004, the resumption of economic growth increased lodging demand and occupancy rates. This coupled with the
relatively slow growth in hotel supply, allowed hotels to aggressively raise room rates during 2004 and each year
thereafter. Occupancy rates continued to increase until 2007 when they declined slightly from 63.4% in 2006 to 63.2% as
the number of rooms entering the system increased by the largest number since 2001.

Hotel room supply growth is cyclical as hotel construction responds to interest rates, construction and material
supply conditions, capital availability and industry fundamentals. Historically, the industry added hotel rooms to its
inventory through new construction duc largely to a favorable lending environment that encouraged hotel development.
This resulted in an over supply of rooms which, coupled with the decrease in industry performance between 2001 and
2003, led to reduced hotel development since that time.

During 2006, year-over-year new hotel construction increased for the first time since 1999 with 73,308 rooms added
to the industry and again in 2007 with an additional 94,541 rooms. However, the volume of new room additions still lags
the pre-2001 economic recession levels,

The following chart demonstrates these trends:

US Lodging [ndustry Trends — 1997 - 2007

Average Increase Increase

Daily in ADR in CPI Revenue Per New

Room Versus Versus Availabte Rooms

Occupancy Rates Prior Prior Reom Profits Added

Year Rates (ADR) Year Year (RevPAR) (in billions) (Gross)
1997 e 64.5% $ 75.16 6.1% 1.9% $ 48.50 $ 17.0 128,000
TOOB .. 64.0% $ 78.62 4.6% 23% § 50.29 $ 220 143,060
199G e 63.3% $ 81.27 3.4% 2.7% 5144 $ 230 143,148
2000 ... 63.5% § 8524 4.9% 3.4% $ 54.13 § 240 121,476
2000 i 60.1% $ 84.85 -0.5% 2.9% $ 50.99 $ 167 101,279
2002 .o 59.2% $ 83.15 -2.0% 1.6% § 49.22 $ 16.1 86,366
2003 . 59.1% $ g3.19 0.1% 2.3% $ 49.20 $ 150 65,876
2004 ., 61.3% $ 86.41 319% 2.7% $ 5293 $ 17.0 55,245
2005 e 63.1% $ 90.84 5.1% 3.4% $ 57.34 $ 210 65,900
2006 ..o 63.4% $ 97.31 7.1% 3.2% $ 61.69 § 263 73,308
2007 .o 63.2% $103.64 6.5% 2.8% $ 65.50 $ 269 94,541

As a franchisor, we are well positioned in any stage of the lodging cycle. We benefit from both the RevPAR gains
typically experienced in the early stage of recovery, as our revenues are based on our franchisees’ gross room revenues,
and the supply growth normally occurring in the later stages as we increase our portfolio size.

During lodging cycle downturns, we benefit from the conversion of independent and other hotel chain affiliates into
our system in an effort to improve their performance.




Hotels are broadly segmented into two categories: full-service and limited service. Full-service hotels generally offer
food and beverage (F&B) facilities and/or meeting facilities. Limited-service hotels, usually offer only rooms, although
same offer modest F&B facilities such as breakfast buffets and/or small meeting rooms. Full-service hotels are generally
larger, command higher room rates, and generate higher profits, although overall operating margins are normally lower
because F&B is a lower-margin business.

The lodging industry can be further divided into chain scale segments or groupings of generally competitive brands
as follows:

Avg.
Room % of Hotel
Chain Scale Brand Examples Count Tatal Room Size
LUXUIY coooernnnrerreieersiees Four Seasens, Ritz Carlton 80,514 1.8% 310
Usper Upscale......oovnnn. Marriott, Hilton, Sheraton 555,408  12.2% 380
Uascale ..o Hilton Garden Inn, Courtyard, Residence Inn 427,696 9.4% 151
Midscale w/ F&B............ Quality, Clarion, Holiday Inn, Best Western, Ramada 519,500  11.5% 116
SUB-TOtal FUIl SEIVICE ......vvvceiiiiiier ettt sr e ana s b s 1,583,118  34.9% 176
Midscale w/o F&B........... Comfort, La Quinta, Baymont Inn, Hampton Inn 723,567 15.9% 87
Economy ..o Econo Lodge, Days Inn, Super 8, Red Roof [nn 752,893 16.6% 77
SUD-Total LIMIEd SEEVICE «.oooo et cceeeee ettt esvanr e e e e ee e tn e e e s e stat s s s sb et s n e s aanneas 1,476,460 32.5% 82
JaT [ 1= 1T 1o OO U U PSSO TRSROI 1,480,632 32.6% 66
TOAl AHL HOUEYS oot e e bt e st e et a s b e s b e s ea e s b e e nae s e e s meemessabnesnne e 4,540,210 100% 92

Source: Smith Travel Research (December 2007)

According to Smith Travel Research, Choice branded system-wide market share as of December 31, 2007 in the
United States has increased 133 basis points to 7.8% of total industry rooms since 2002. The total number of domestic
hotel rooms has increased at an annual rate of less than 1% per annum during these same 5 years.

Independent operators of hotels not owned or managed by major lodging companies have increasingly joined
national hotel franchise chains as a means of remaining competitive with hotels owned by or affiliated with national
ledging companies. Over the past 17 years, the industry has seen a significant movement of hotels from independent to
chain affiliation, with affiliated hotels increasing from 46% of the market in 1990 to 67% of the market in 2007. Because
a significant portion of the costs of owning and operating a hotel are generally fixed, increases in revenues generated by
affiliation with a franchise lodging chain can improve a hotel’s financial performance.

The large franchise lodging chains, including us, generaily provide a number of services to hotel operators to
irnprove the financial performance of their properties including central reservation systems, marketing and advertising
programs, direct sales programs, training and education programs, property systems revenue enhancement services and
relationships with vendors to streamline purchasing processes and make lower cost products available. We believe that
national franchise chains with a large number of hotels enjoy greater brand awareness among potential guests than those
with fewer hotels, and that greater brand awareness can increase the desirability of a hotel to its potential guests.

We believe that hotel operators choose lodging franchisors based primarily on the perceived value and quality of
each franchisor’s brand and its services, and the extent to which affiliation with that franchisor may increase the hotel
overator profitability.

Choice’s Franchising Business

Choice operates primarily as a hotel franchisor offering 10 brands. Our Clarion and Quality brands compete
primarily in the full service midscale with food and beverage segment; our Comfort Inn, Comfort Suites, and Sleep Inn
brands compete primarily in the limited service midscale without food & beverage segment; MainStay Suites and
Suburban Extended Stay Hotel compete primarily in the extended stay segment and our Econo Lodge and Rodeway Inn
brands compete primarily in the economy segment. As a resuit of our acquisition of Suburban Franchise Holding
Company, Inc., the Suburban Extended Stay Hotel brand was added to our portfolio on September 28, 2005. In January
2005, we introduced a new brand, Cambria Suites, which competes in the upscale segment. This newly created brand
opened its first hotel during 2007.
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Economics of Franchising Business. The fee and cost structure of our business provides opportunities for us to
improve operating results by increasing the number of franchised hotel rooms, improving RevPAR performance and
increasing the effective royalty rates of our franchise contracts. As a hotel franchisor, we derive our revenue primarily
from various franchise fees. Our franchise fees consist primarily of an initial fee and ongoing royalty, marketing and
reservation fees that are typically based on a percentage of the franchised hotel’s gross room revenues. The initial fee and
on-going royalty portion of the franchise fees are intended to cover our operating expenses, such as expenses incurred in
business development, quality assurance, administrative support and other franchise services and to provide us with
operating profits. The marketing and reservation fees are used exclusively for the expenses associated with marketing and
media advertising and providing such franchise services as the central reservation system.

Our fee stream depends on the number of rooms in our system, the gross room revenues generated by our
franchisees and effective royalty rates under our franchise contracts. We enjoy significant operating leverage since the
variable operating costs associated with our franchise system growth have historically been less than incremental royalty
fees generated from new franchisees. Our business is well positioned in the lodging industry since we benefit from both
RevPAR growth and new hotel construction.

Our various brand offerings position us well within the lodging industry, Our Cambria Suites, Comfort Inn, Comfort
Suites, Sleep Inn, Suburban Extended Stay Hotel and MainStay Suites are primarily new build brands which offer hotel
developers an array of choices in the upscale, midscale and extended stay segments during periods of supply growth,
while our Clarion, Quality, Econo Lodge and Rodeway Inn brands offer conversion opportunities to independent
operators and non-Choice affiliated hotels who desire to affiliate with our brands and take advantage of the services we
have to offer.

Strategy. Our mission is a commitment to franchisee profitability by providing our franchisees with hotel franchises
that strive to generate the highest return on investment of any hotel franchise. Our business strategy is to create franchise
system growth by leveraging Choice’s large and well-known hotel brands, franchise sales capabilities, effective marketing
and reservation delivery efforts, RevPAR enhancing services and technology, and financial strength created by our
significant free cash flow. We believe our brands’ growth will be driven by our ability to create a compelling return on
investment for franchisees. Our strategic objective is to improve our franchisee’s profitability by providing services,
which increase business delivery, reduce hotel operating and development costs, and/or improve guest satisfaction.
Specific elements of our strategy include: building strong brands, delivering exceptional services, reaching more
consumers and leveraging size, scale and distribution that reduce costs for hotel owners.

Building Strong Brands. Each of our brands has particular attributes and strengths, including awareness with both
consumers and developers. Our strategy is to utilize the strengths of each brand for room growth, RevPAR gains and
royalty rate improvement that create revenue growth. We believe brand consistency, quality and guest satisfaction are
critical in improving brand performance and building strong brands.

We have multiple brands that are positioned to meet the needs of many types of guests, and can be developed at
various price points and applied to both new and existing hotels. This flexibility ensures that we have brands suitable for
creating room growth in various types of markets, with various types of customers, and during both industry contraction
and growth cycles. During times of lower industry supply growth and tighter capital markets, we can target conversions of
existing non-Choice affiliated hotels seeking the awareness and proven performance provided by our brands. During
periods of strong industry supply growth, we expect a greater portion of our room growth to come from our new
construction brands, We believe that a large number of markets can still support our hotel brands, and that the growth
potential for our brands, as well as new brands we may yet introduce, remains strong.

We believe each of our brands appeals to targeted hotel owners and guests because of unique brand standards,
service levels and pricing.

Delivering Exceptional Services. We provide a combination of services and technological products to help our
franchisees improve performance. We have 66 field services staff members located nationwide that help franchisees
improve RevPAR performance and guest satisfaction. In addition, we provide our franchisees with technology products
designed to improve property level performance. These services and products promote revenue gains for franchisees and
translate into both higher royalties for the Company and improved returns for owners, leading to further room growth by
making our brands attractive to franchisees. We develop our services based on customer needs and focus on activities that
generate high return on investment for our customers.
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Reaching More Consumers. We believe hotel owners value the large volume of guests we deliver through corporate
and brand marketing, reservation systems, key account sales, and the Company’s principal loyalty program, Choice
Privileges®. Our strategy is to maximize the effectiveness of these activities in delivering both leisure and business
travelers to Choice-branded hotels.

The Company will continue to increase awareness of its brands through its multi-branded national marketing
campaign which features re-imaged signs, our “We’ll See You There” tagline and our loyalty program promotions. This
campaign is intended to generate the most compelling message in the midscale and economy segments and utilize our
significant size to create even greater awareness for our brands. Local and regional co-op marketing campaigns will
continue to leverage the national marketing programs to drive business to our properties at a local level. We expect our
efforts at marketing directly to guests will continue to be enhanced through the use of our customer relationship
management technology. Our continued focus on overall brand quality coupled with our marketing initiatives is designed
to stimulate room demand for our franchised hotels through improved guest awareness and satisfaction.

Our central reservations system is a critical technology used to deliver guests to our franchisees through multiple
channels, including our call centers and proprietary websites, and global distribution systems (e.g., SABRE, Amadeus,
ard internet distribution sites). We believe our well-known brands, combined with our relationships with many intemet
distribution web sites benefits our franchisees, by facilitating increased rate and reservations delivery, and reducing costs
and operational complexity.

Leveraging Size, Scale and Distribution. We continually focus on identifying methods for utilizing the significant
number of hotels in our system to reduce costs and increase returns for our franchisees. For example, we create
relationships with vendors to: (i) make low-cost products available to our franchisees; (ii) streamline the purchasing
process; and (iii) maintain brand standards and consistency. We plan to expand this business and identify new methods for
decreasing hotel-operating costs by increasing penetration internally and enhancing our existing vendor relationships
and/or creating new vendor relationships. We believe our efforts to leverage the Company’s size, scale and distribution
benefit the Company by enhancing brand quality and consistency, improving our franchisees returns and satisfaction, and
creating brand solutions revenues.

Franchise System

Our franchises operate domestically under one of ten Choice brand names: Comfort Inn, Comfort Suites, Cambria
Suites, Quality, Clarion, Sleep Inn, Econo Lodge, Rodeway Inn, MainStay Suites and Suburban Extended Stay Hotel. The
fellowing table presents key statistics related to our domestic franchise system over the five years ended December 31,
2007.

COMBINED DOMESTIC FRANCHISE SYSTEM

As of and For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 1006 2007
Number of properties, end of period ..., 3,636 3,834 4,048 4211 4,445
Number of rooms, end of period........oooevveevenieienene, 294,268 309,586 329,353 339,441 354,139
Royalty fees (3000)........cocvinviniormecormereicnerse e $ 141,150 $ 155915 $ 175,588 $ 194,333 $ 212,519
Average royalty rate.........ooeiiciinrncnenninee s 4.01% 4.04% 4.08% 4.09% 4.14%
Average occupancy percentage! "™ ..o 54.7% 56.6% 57.6% 58.4% 57.9%
Average daily room rate (ADRY"™ ..o, $ 6253 $§ 6356 $§ 6624 $ 6871 § 7207
Ravenue per available room (RevPAR) ™M . $ 3421 $ 3595 § 38I5 0§ 4013 0§ 4175

M Suburban Extended Stay Hotel was acquired on September 28, 2005. Statistics for average occupancy percentage, ADR and

RevPAR for the year ended December 31, 2005 and prior years have been excluded since comparable pre-acquisition data is not
available.

The Company calculates RevPAR based on information reported to the Company on a timely basis by franchisees.

Amounts for 2007 exclude results from Cambria Suites properties opening during the year.

@
3

The Company conducts its international franchise operations through a combination of direct franchising and master
franchising relationships which allow the use of our brands by third parties in foreign countries. The Company has made
equity investments in certain non-domestic lodging franchise companies that conduct franchise operations for the
Company’s brands under master franchising relationships. As a result of our use of master franchising relationships and
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internattonal market conditions, total revenues from international franchising operations comprised only 7% and 6% of
our total revenues in 2007 and 2006, respectively while representing approximately 20% and 22% of our franchise system
hotels open at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Consequently, our description of our franchise system is
primarily focused on the domestic operations. Currently, no individual franchisee or international master franchisee
accounts for more than 2% of Choice’s royalty revenues or total revenues.

Brand Positioning

Our brands offer consumers and developers a wide range of choices from economy hotels to lower upscale, full
service properties. Qur domestic brands are as follows:

Cambria Suites: Cambria Suites 15 an upscale select service hotel chain with an upscale image and distinctive
styling. Cambria offers well-appointed suites that emulate the “best of a modern home.” In-room amenities include luxury
bedding, stereo with CD player, cordless phone and mini-refrigerator with microwave. Principal competitor brands
include Marriott Courtyard and Hilton Garden Inn, The Cambria Suites brand was launched in January 2005 and the first
properties opened during 2007.

Comfort Inn: Comfort Inn hotels operate in the mid-scale without food and beverage category. One of the original
brands in the limited service category, Comfort has built a reputation for consistent high-value accommodations for both
business and leisure travelers. Principal competitor brands include Holiday Inn Express, Fairfield Inn and Country Inn &
Suites.

Comfort Suites: Comfort Suites hotels operate in the upper portion of the mid-scale without food and beverage
category. Established in 1986 as an extension of the highly regarded Comfort Inn brand, Comfort Suites feature oversized,
comfortable rooms at mid-priced rates. The brand competes with Hampton Inn, Holiday Inn Express, Fairfield Inn and
Country Inn & Suites.

Sleep Inn.: Sleep Inn is a new construction brand that operates in the mid-scale without food & beverage category.
Sleep delivers one of the most consistent product offerings in the category, which targets both business and leisure
travelers. Sleep competes with Baymont, Amerihost, La Quinta and Fairfield Inn.

Quality: Quality Inn hotels offer efficient and personable service and clean accommodations in the mid-scale
category. Amenities and services typically include complimentary continental breakfast, “Quality Slecper” by Serta
mattresses, swimming pools and/or exercise rooms, free USA today or Wall Street Journal newspaper and meeting or
event space. Principal competitor brands include Best Western, Ramada, Howard Johnson and Holiday Inn.

Clarion: Clarion hotels are full-service hotels competing in the mid-scale hotel category. The brand offers upscale
lodging at an affordable price. Providing a full spectrum of superior facilities and amenities, which include restaurant,
conference or banquet facilities, 24-hour business center, swimming pool or exercise room, guest laundry, room service
and bell service. Principal competitor brands include Sheraton Four Points, Holiday Inn Select, Radisson and Doubletree.

MainStay Suites: MainStay Suites hotels compete in the mid-scale extended stay category. Complete with a
residential feel and value-added amenities, the MainStay brand is designed as a more practical lodging option for guests
whose stays are longer than a few nights. Typically, longer hotel stays involve relocation, training, or temporary job
assignments. All MainStay guests suites feature fully equipped kitchens with a two-burner range, dishes, utensils,
dishwasher, sink with disposal, microwave, and full size refrigerator. All suites include a sleeper sofa, comfortable work
area with ergonomic chair and large walk-in closets. MainStay competes directly with Studio Plus, TownePlace Suites,
Sierra Suites, and Candlewood Suites.

Suburban FExtended Stay Hotel: Suburban Extended Stay Hotel suites are built with today’s value-conscious
extended stay guest in mind. All suites provide full kitchens, internet connections, and access to on-site laundry facilities.
Suburban’s “just what you need” philosophy matches attractive weekly pricing with weekly housekeeping to provide
extended stay guests with the all-suite accommodations they want without the cost of services they do not need. Principal
competitor brands include Intown Suites and Sun Suites,

Econo Lodge: Econo Lodge is a leading economy category chain, which offers clean, attractive lodging for value-
oriented travelers. Breakfast by Econo Lodge, free local calls, and free premium channels are just some of the amenities
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that position Econo Lodge as a great value in the economy category. Principal competitor brands are Days Inn, Super 8,

Motel 6, and Travelodge.

Rodeway Inn: Rodeway Inn is a leading budéet category chain, which offers clean, affordable lodging for savings-

oriented travelers. With Always Fresh...Rodeway

breakfast and a free newspaper, Rodeway is well positioned to offer

savings for the budget-minded traveler. Principal competitor brands are Best Value Inn, Knights Inn and Budget Host.

The following table presents key statistics related to the domestic system for our brands over the five years ended

December 31, 2007.
As of and For the Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2607
COMFORT DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period.........ccccoovvvveeiians 1,783 1,821 1,839 1,848 1915
Number of rooms, end of period.......ooevvvviinnnnininnes 140,416 143,007 143,849 144,853 149,400
Royaity fees (3000) ... $ 85998 $ 04,801 $ 106,603 $ 116,832 $ 126,906
Average ocCupancy percentage.... 58.8% 60.9% 62.7% 63.9% 63.7%
Average daily room rate {ADR) .o 3 65.92 $ 67.34 3 70.85 $ 75.46 b 79.68
REVPAR ..ottt $ 38.79 b 41.04 3 44.40 $ 48.25 h3 50.76
QUALITY DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period 508 576 660 736 828
Number of rooms, end of period..........ccoo e 52,766 58,785 66,316 72,054 79,276
Royalty fees ($000) ..o $ 20221 3 22.821 3 25,855 $ 29,220 $ 34,310
AVErage QCCUPANCY PETCENAZE. ..o otrieeiiessrassasteaarvarenes 51.6% 54.1% 54.6% 55.3% 54.2%
Average daily room rate (ADR) ...oovvvcvvievece $ 64.19 $ 63.62 $ 64.86 $ 66.89 $ 70.30
RevPAR ... $ 3314 $ 34.41 3 3541 $ 37.01 $ 38.09
CLARION DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period......cccoovvvnnininnnes 138 158 153 162 167
Number of rooms, end of period..... 20,737 23,652 23,554 23,945 23,319
Royalty fees ($000) .......cocceveeen. $ 7,534 $ 8,375 s 9,385 5 9,531 b 10,388
Average occupancy percentage.... 49.2% 51.1% 52.5% 51.2% 51.7%
Average daily room rate (ADR) ..o 3 72.27 3 7237 b 74.62 s 78.98 3 80.86
ReVPAR ... $ 335.55 3 36.97 $ 39.15 b 40.41 $ 41.719
SLEEP DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period..........ccccovviiiin 309 311 319 327 346
Number of rooms, end of period......... 23,678 23,766 24,205 24,575 25,728
Royalty fees (3000) .......oovvceecnnns . % 10856 $ 12,387 $ 13,862 $ 15,384 $ 16,605
Average occupancy percentage.... 57.5% 59.5% 61.0% 62.4% 62.5%
Average daily room rate (ADR)Y ..o $ 58.01 $ 59.50 5 62.52 $ 66.44 3 69.67
RevPAR . $ 33.33 3 3542 $ 38.16 $ 41.43 3 43.52
MAINSTAY DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period.......ccovvrvrvmemeeemenenees 26 27 27 29 30
Number of rooms, end of period......... 2,063 2,150 2,047 2,183 2,258
Royalty fees ($000) ..ooecooore.... 5 980 $ 1,163 $ 1,375 $ 1,459 $ 1,603
Average occupancy percentage... 62.9% 62.2% 65.7% 69.4% 68.5%
Average daily room rate (ADR} ..... TR 61.50 $ 61.09 $ 64.76 $ 67.26 3 70.04
REVPAR ..ottt e ecanana $ 38.70 $ 37.97 $ 42.54 $ 46.66 $ 47.98
LECONO LODGE DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period..........ccooovvennnnncn. 734 781 805 816 825
Number of rooms, end of period..... 45,420 48 301 49.763 49,679 50,403
Royalty fees ($000) .o $ 13,644 3 14,255 $ 15,509 3 16,467 $ 17,266
Average occupancy percentage... 47.5% 48.2% 48.2% 47.7% 48.0%
Average daily room rate {ADR) oo 3 47.88 3 48.92 $ 50.95 b 53.09 § 54.40
REVPAR ..ot e et 3 22.76 b 23.57 3 24.56 $ 25.31 $ 26.10
RODEWAY DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period.....oovvvvvececccincns 138 160 180 233 276
Number of rooms, end of period. 9,188 9,925 11,051 14,168 16,523
Royalty fees ($000) ..........ccoeveeee o 3 1,917 $ 2,114 $ 2,256 $ 2,467 3 2,865
Average OCCUPANCY PErCENtABe........ovvuvrcrnsvasrisserererereres 44.8% 48.7% 46.7% 458% 47.6%
Average daily room rate (ADR) $ 49.84 5 52.33 $ 4991 5 51.66 5 53.24
RevPAR - $ 2232 $ 2549 $ 23.31 $ 23.66 3 2532
SUBURBAN DOMESTIC SYSTEM
Number of properties, end of period..........ocoooiiveirereene — — 65 60 54
Number of rooms, end of period..... — — 8,568 7,984 6,773
Royalty fees ($000) ......ccoveerrrvennen —_ — $ 7433 g 2,973 $ 2,535
Average occupancy percentage....... — — —m 72.4% 67.3%
Average daily room fate (ADR) coo.vvvevvvverioessrieneeeen — — —m 5 38.30 $ 40.13
REVPAR ...vovvvaecceeeeeaisesesesssessesensessssesesss e — — — " 3 27.73 $ 27.01

[h})

Y been excluded since comparable pre-acquisition data is not available.
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International Franchise Operations

The Company conducts its international franchise operations through a combination of direct franchising and master
franchising relationships which allow the use of our brands by third parties in foreign countries. The Company has made
equity investments in certain non-domestic lodging franchise companies that conduct franchise operations for the
Company’s brands under master franchising relationships. The use of our brands by third parties in foreign countries are
governed by master franchising agreements which generally provide the master franchisee with the right to use our brands
in a specific geographic region, usually for a fee.

In some territories outside the United States hotel franchising is less prevalent, and many markets are served
primarily by independent operators. We believe that chain affiliation will increase in certain international markets as local
economies grow and hotel owners seek the cconomies of centralized reservations systems and marketing programs.

As of December 31, 2007, we had 1,125 franchise hotels open and operating in over 30 countries and territories
outside of the United States. The following chart summarizes our franchise system outside of the United States.

COMBINED INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE SYSTEM"

As of and For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Number of properties, end of period......ocecveiieeecccccceiene 1,174 1,143 1,162 1,165 1,125
Number of rooms, end of period......c.oooeeeiiiiiiiiicecccire 94,350 94,220 97,703 97,944 97,888
Royalty fees (S000)..........cooiimieeirercriisirieeee e $ 9237 § 10,071 $ 10,971 $ 16,183 § 22234

“' Reporting of operating statistics {e.g. average occupancy percentage and average daily room rate) of international franchisees is

not required by all master franchise contracts, thus these statistics and RevPAR are not presented for international franchisees.

Scandinavia. We conduct our operations in Denmark, Norway, Sweden, Finland and Lithuania through our
relationship with Choice Hotels Scandinavia (“CHS”). As of December 31, 2007, CHS had 149 open properties. The
master franchise agreement with CHS expires in November 2014, but may be terminated in November 2009 by either
CHS or Choice.

Continental Europe. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company acquired from The Real Hotel Company PLC
(*RHC”), formerly known as C.H.E. Group PLC the franchising operations conducted by RHC in the European countries
of Austria, Germany, ltaly, the Czech Republic, Switzerland, France, Belgium, Portugal and Spain and simultaneously the
master franchise agreement between Choice and RHC covering these countries was terminated and we began direct
franchising operations in these countries. At December 31, 2007, the Company had 185 properties open and operating in
continental Europe.

Ireland. In August 2007, the Company entered into a ten year master franchising agreement with Ireland-based
Cordelle Enterprises, doing business as Choice Hotels Ireland, for the right to license and develop our Clarion, Quality
and Comfort brands in Ireland. Prior to acquiring the master franchising rights directly from the Company, Choice Hotels
Ireland operated the Company’s brands under an area representative agreement with RHC, which previously held the
master franchise rights in Ireland. As of December 31, 2007, Choice Hotels Ireland had 21 open properties.

United Kingdom. At December 31, 2007, the master franchise agreement with RHC remained in place with respect
to operations in the United Kingdom. In December 2007, the Company announced that it had reached a definitive
agreement with RHC to transfer United Kingdom franchising operations to the Company on January 31, 2008. On that
date, the master franchise agreement was terminated and the existing franchise agreements were assigned to the Company.
At December 31, 2007, RHC had 86 properties open and operating in the United Kingdom.

Canada. We conduct our operations in Canada through Choice Hotels Canada, Inc. (“CHC") a joint venture owned
50% by us and 50% by InnVest Real Estate Investment Trust. CHC is one of the largest lodging organizations in Canada
with 273 franchised properties open and operating as of December 31, 2007.

Australasia. The Company conducts direct franchising operations in Australia, Singapore, New Zealand and Papua
New Guinea through a wholly owned subsidiary, Choice Hotels Australasia Pty. Ltd. (“CHA”). As of December 31, 2007,
CHA had 260 franchised properties open under the Choice brands and | franchised hotel under the Flag brand in New
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Zealand. CHA is in the process of converting the remaining Flag branded franchise to one of the Company’s other brands
and expects to complete this conversion during 2008.

Mexico. During 2004, we established a wholly owned subsidiary Choice Hotels Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (“CHM”)
to begin direct franchising operations in Mexico. CHM is focused on establishing Clarion, Quality and Comfort brands
through conversions of high quality unbranded hotels in Mexico. At December 31, 2007, CHM had 17 properties open
and operating.

Other International Relationships. We have various master franchise and area representative arrangements in place
with local hotel management and franchising companies doing business in China, South America, India, Central America
and Japan. In addition, the Company has direct franchise relationships with properties in Malaysia and Lebanon.

The following table summarizes Choice’s non-domestic franchise system as of December 31, 2007:

Comfort Quality Clarion Sleep Econo Lodge Rodeway Flag Total

AUSITAIA ..o 150 63 11 — — — — 224
Belgium. ... 1 — — — — — — 1
Czech Republic ... l 1 1 — — — — 3
France.. oo 735 26 2 — — — — 103
QT34 117:111 SOV 20 19 3 — — — — 42
TEALY oo 4 7 5 — — — — 16
LEBanon ...o.ocvcoveevreerr e e — | — — — — — 1
WMIAIAYSIA...eeeeerrcr e — 2 — — — — — 2
IMEXICO o 7 10 — — — — — 17
New Zealand ... 9 15 5 — — — 1 30
Papua New GUINea...........coooovnnnivninnen 1 4 — — — — — 5
Portugal ..o 5 3 1 — — — — 9
SINZAPOLE oooreiereieececcre e — 1 1 — — — — 2
SPAIM ....ooveveiiererere st nanara 2 1 l — —_— — — 4
Switzerland .......cccoevireeeecn, 4 3 — — — — — 7

Direct Franchise Agreements ... 279 156 30 — — — 1 466
Brazil......coccoveiie e e 21 20 2 5 — — — 48
Canada® ... 144 64 12 2 45 6 - 273
China......oo oo 2 — _— — — — - 2
COStA RICA ..o — 1 1 1 — — — 3
Dienmark.........ccoovviiiiiiinnreeee e 6 4 6 — — — — 16
Dominican Republic ...coovvveirniioieienns — 1 1 — — — — 2
El Salvador......ccocooeverieecevcesnnss s 4 1 — — — — — S
Finland .....ccooireereesimeeee e, 1 1 1 — — — — 3
GUAatemMAla .......oocvieeneceeccee i — — 1 — — — — 1
HONAUTES oo e — — 2 — — — — 2
INdia™ oo 10 14 1 — — — 25
Treland ... 5 8 ] — — — — 21
JAPAN L 33 2 — 7 — — — 4?2
Lathuania ...cccoee e niisiinrrcsenr e — 1 — — — — 1
NOTWEY.c.veveoeeeee e ccabss s 8 38 23 — — — — 69
SWede .o 9 27 24 — — — — 60
United Kingdom..........c.ccccovinnn, 30 44 3 9 — — — 86

Master Franchise Agreements...... 273 226 85 24 45 6 — 659
Total Number of Properties ................... 552 382 115 24 45 6 1 1,125
* The Company has made equity investments in these master franchisors.
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The following table presents key worldwide system size statistics as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Open and Operational Under Development

Hotels Rooms Hotels Rooms Additions Repositionings Terminations
Comfort.......c.ccoovvevvnrnne. 2,467 188,596 491 35,877 176 (20) (128)
Quality ..o 1,210 118,386 120 10,667 134 16 (68)
Clarion .....ccocoevvernveeneeae 282 37,867 48 6,912 35 2 (27)
Sleep Inn.....covceiiireenee 370 28,176 143 10,048 31 — 9)
MainStay Suites ............ 30 2,258 53 4,759 2 — (N
Econo Lodge.........oceeee 870 52,693 54 3414 55 (2) (43)
Rodeway [nn................. 282 16,800 71 3,924 68 4 (28)
Suburban.........cccocceec, 54 6,773 48 4,238 6 — (12)
Cambria Suites.............. 4 459 65 8,143 4 — —
Flag Hotels.................... ] 19 — — — — (D
Totals ..o 5,570 452,027 1,093 87,982 511 — (317)

Franchise Sales

Brand growth is important to our business model. We have identified key market areas, for certain brands, for hotel
development based on supply/demand relationships and our strategic objectives. Development opportunities are typically
offered to: (1) existing franchisees; (ii) developers of hotels; (iii) owners of independent hotels and motels; (iv) owners of
hotels affiliated with other franchisors’ brands; and, (v) contractors who construct any of the foregoing.

The franchise sales organization is structured in three brand specific divisions with both sales managers and
franchise sales directors responsible for specific brands. These divisions consist of Cambria Suites, extended stay market
brands (MainStay Suites and Suburban Extended Stay Hotels) and midscale and economy brands (Comfort, Quality,
Clarion, Sleep, Econo Lodge and Rodeway). Each division employs both sales managers as well as franchise sales
directors. Sales managers have geographic oversight over all of the brands in their division to ensure each prospective
hotel is placed in the appropriate brand, facilitate teamwork and information sharing amongst the sales directors and
provide better service to our top developers. Our franchise sales directors operate in brand specific selling teams to
leverage their brand expertise to enhance product consistency and deal flow. The structure of this organization supports
the Company’s efforts to leverage its core strengths in order to take advantage of opportunities for further growth and
integrate our brands and strategies to allow our brand teams to focus on understanding, anticipating and meeting the
unique needs of key customer segments. Franchise sales efforts emphasize the benefits of affiliating with one of our
brands, our commitment to improving hotel profitability, our television, radio and print brand advertising campaigns, our
central reservation system, our training and support systems (including our proprietary property management systems) and
our history of growth and profitability.

During 2007, Choice received 1,267 applications for new franchise agreements (not including relicensings of
existing agreements) compared to 1,137 in 2006. These applications resulted in the execution of 770 new domestic
franchise agreements in 2007, compared to 720 in 2006. An application received does not always result in an executed
franchise agreement during the year received or at all due to various factors, such as financing and agreement on
contractual terms. Our objective is to continue to grow our portfolio by continuing to setl our existing brands, creating
extensions of our existing brands and introducing new brands within the various lodging chain segments.

Because retention of existing franchisees is important to our growth strategy, we have a formal impact policy. This
policy offers existing franchisees protection from the opening of a same-brand property within a specified distance,
depending upon the market in which the property is located.

Franchise Agreements

Our standard domestic franchise agreement, excluding contracts for Suburban Extended Stay Hotel (“Suburban™),
grants a franchisee the right to non-exclusive use of our franchise system in the operation of a single hotel at a specified
location, typically for a period of 20 years, with certain rights to each of the franchisor and franchisee to terminate the
franchise agreement before the twentieth year. Suburban franchise agreements acquired through the Company’s
acquisition of Suburban Franchise Holding, Inc. contain 10-year terms.

The Company may also enter into master development agreements with developers that grant limited exclusive
development rights in geographical areas and preferential franchise agreement terms for one-time, non-refundable fees.
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These agreements typically grant developers exclusivity in various markets and favorable franchise agreement terms
provided that they adhere to an agreed upon development schedule.

Either party to our standard domestic franchise agreement can terminate the agreement prior to the conclusion of the
agreement’s term under certain circumstances, such as upon designated anniversaries of the agreement. Early termination
options give us flexibility in eliminating or re-branding properties, if they become weak performers for reasons other than
contractual failure by the franchisee. We also have the right to terminate a franchise agreement if a franchisee fails to
bring the property into compliance with contractual or quality standards within specified periods of time. The franchise
agreements also typically contain liquidated damage provisions resulting from a franchisee’s termination of the franchise
agreement outside the designated anniversaries. Master franchise agreements typically contain provisions permitting us to
terminate the agreement for failure to meet a specified development schedule.

When the responsibility for development is transferred to an international master franchisee, that party has the
responsibility to sell to local franchisees our brands and the master franchisee generally must manage the delivery of
necessary services (such as training, quality assurance, reservations and marketing) to support the franchised hotels in the
master franchise area. The master franchisee collects the fees paid by the local franchisee and remits an agreed share to us.
Master franchise agreements generally have a term of at least 10 years. We have only entered into master franchise
agreements with respect to franchised hotels outside the United States.

Since 2005, we have increased our efforts to enforce quality and contractual standards as well as eliminate weak
performers. However, in 2007 and 2006, we retained 96% and 95% of franchisees, respectively, which were in our
domestic system in the previous year.

Franchise agreements are individually negotiated and vary among the different Choice brands and franchises, but
generally are competitive with the indusiry average within their market group. Franchise fees usually have four
components: an initial, one-time affiliation fee; a royalty fee; a marketing fee; and a reservation fee. Proceeds from the
marketing fee and reservation fee are used exclusively to fund the Company’s marketing and reservation activities that
support all of the Choice brands.

Our standard franchise fees are as follows:
QUOTED FEES BY BRAND AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007

On-Going Fees as a Percentage of
Franchisee’s Gross Room Revenues

Combined

Initial Fee Per Reservation Marketing and
Brand Room/Minimum Rovalty Fees Marketing Fees Fees Reservation Fees
Cambria SUMES c.oovv e $ 500/$60.000 5.00% 2.10% 1.75% —
Comfort Inn.......... $ 500/$50,000 5.65% 2.10% 1.75% —_—
Comfort SUIES ... $ 500/$50.000 5.65% 2.10% 1.75% —=
QUality INNaeieccecvere e e $ 300/$35,000 4.65% 2,10% 1.75% —
Quality SUILES ..o $ 300/$50,000 4.65% 2.10% 1.75% —
Clanon... $ 300/$40,000 4.25% 2.00% 1.25% —
Sleep lnn $ 300/340,000 4.65% 2.10% 1.75% —
MainStay Sultes $ 300/$30,000 5.00% — — 2.50%
Econo Lodge.... et an § 250/825,000 4.50% — — 3.50%
Rodeway [Nn......coevvvninvinriienirenrnre e m 2 3 @ —
SUDUIBAN. ... e § 225/830,000 5.00% — — 2.50%

o Initial fee of $7,500 for properties with up to 85 rooms. Additional $90 per room fee for each room over 85 Jooms.

Royalty rate is $15.00 per room per month with $1.00 per room escalations on each of the 2", 3" 4" and 5" anniversaries of the
franchise agreement.
Marketing and reservation fees are $8.00 and $5.00 per room per month, respectively.

[$4]

[£4]

23




Franchise Operations

Our operations are designed to improve RevPAR and lower operating and development costs for our franchisees, as
these are the measures of performance that most directly impact franchisee profitability. We believe that by helping our
franchisees to become more profitable we will enhance our ability to both retain our existing franchisees and attract new
franchisees. The key aspects of our franchise operations are:

Central Reservation System ("CRS"). On average, approximately one-third of the gross room revenue booked at
franchised properties is reserved through our central reservation system, which consists of our toll-free telephone
reservation system, our proprietary internet site, interfaces with global distribution systems, and other internet reservations
sites. Our reservation system consists of a computer reservation system, three reservation centers in North America and
several international reservation centers. Reservation agents trained on the reservation system can match each caller with a
Choice-branded hotel meeting the caller’s needs. Our CRS provides a data link to our franchised properties as well as to
airline reservation systems such as Amadeus, Galileo, SABRE and Worldspan that facilitate the reservation process for
travel agents. We also offer our rooms for sale on our own proprietary internet site (www.choicehotels.com) as well as
those of other travel companies.

We continue to implement our integrated reservation strategy to improve reservations delivery, reduce franchisee
costs and improve franchisee satisfaction by enhancing our website, choicehotels.com, and selectively distributing our
inventory with third parties that can drive additional business to the Company and its brands, We have established
agreements with key third party travel intermediaries to gain additional distribution points. These agreements typically
offer our brands preferred placement on these third party sites at reduced transaction fees. We also continue to educate our
individual franchisees about the unfavorable impact to their business of contracting with sites with which we do not have
preferred agreements. We currently have agreements with many but not all major online third party sites.

Property Management Systems. Our proprietary property and yield management systems, Profit Manager by Choice
Hotels and ChoiceADVANTAGE, are designed to help franchisees maximize profitability and compete more effectively
by managing their rooms inventory, rates and reservations. These systems synchronize each hotel’s inventory with our
system, giving our reservation sales agents last room sell capabilities at every hotel. These systems include a revenue
management feature that calculates and suggests optimum rates based on each hotel’s past performance and projected
occupancy. These tools are critical to business delivery and yield improvement as they facilitate the franchisee’s ability to
effectively manage their hotel operations, determine appropriate rates, drive occupancy and participate in our marketing
programs. The Profit Manager system is used primarily by our domestic non-economy brand franchises and
ChoiceADVANTAGE is utilized primarily by our economy brand franchises. The Company is currently in the process of
migrating all franchised hotels from the Profit Manager system to the web-based hotel property management system,
ChoiceADVANTAGE. As a pure web-based solution, the ChoiceAdvantage system allows franchisees greater flexibility
in hardware choices and reduces each hotel’s investment in on-site computer equipment resulting in a lower total cost of
ownership for property management sysiems. This process is expected to be completed over the next several years.

Brand Name Marketing and Advertising. Our marketing and advertising programs are designed to heighten
consumer awareness and preference for our brands as offering the greatest value and convenience in the midscale and
economy categories. Marketing and advertising efforts include national television, intemet and radio advertising, print
advertising in consumer and trade media and promotional events, including joint marketing promotions with vendors and
corporate partners.

Numerous marketing and sales programs are conducted which target specific groups, including business travelers,
senior citizens, automobile club members, families, government and military employees, and meeting planners. Other
marketing efforts include domestic and international trade show programs, publication of group and tour rate directories,
direct-mail programs, electronic direct marketing e-mail programs, centralized commissions for travel agents, fly-drive
programs in conjunction with major airlines, and an annual publication of a travel and vacation directory.

Since 1998, we have operated a loyalty program called Choice Privileges, which includes all of our mid-scale brands
(Comfort, Clarion, Quality, Sleep, MainStay Suites and Suburban Extended Stay Hotel) to attract and retain travelers by
rewarding frequent stays with points towards free hotel stays and other rewards. As of December 31, 2007, the program
had approximately 6.3 million members. In 2001, we launched a similar loyalty program called EA$Y CHOICE® for our
Econo Lodge and Rodeway Inn brands. The EASY CHOICE program is a stamp redemption program and has no
membership requirement to participate. Choice Privileges and EASY CHOICE participants can earn points/stamps
redeemable for free stays in Choice brand properties. The Company also offers guests the ability to earn airline miles for
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qualifying stays redeemable for flights with various airline partners as well as redeem points for gift certificates at
participating retailers such as Wal-Mart. These programs allow us to conduct lower cost, more targeted marketing
campaigns to our consumers, During 2007, the Company announced that effective Januvary 1, 2008 the Choice Privileges
program will begin to include the Econo Lodge and Rodeway brands. Beginning January 1, 2008, EA$Y CHOICE stamps
will no longer be distributed and members will have until March 31, 2008 to redeem their stamps or convert them into
Choice Privileges points.

Marketing and advertising programs are directed by our marketing department, which utilizes the services of
independent advertising agencies. We also employ home-based sales personnel geographically located across the United
States using personal sales calls, telemarketing and other techniques to target specific customer groups, such as potential
corporate clients in areas where our franchised hotels are located, the motor coach market, and meeting planners. All sales
personnel sell business for all of our brands.

Our field based brand performance consultants work with franchisees to maximize RevPAR. These coordinators
advise franchisees on topics such as marketing their hotels, improving quality and maximizing the benefits offered by the
Choice reservations system.,

Quality Assurance Programs. Consistent quality standards are critical to the success of a hotel franchise. We have
established quality standards for all of our franchised brands that cover housekeeping, maintenance, brand identification
and minimum service offerings. We inspect properties for compliance with our quality standards when application is
made for admission to the franchise system. The compliance of existing franchisees with quality standards is monitored
through scheduled and unannounced quality assurance reviews conducted periodically at each property. Properties that
fail to maintain a minimum score are reinspected on a more frequent basis until deficiencies are cured, or until such
properties are terminated. To encourage compliance with quality standards, various brand-specific incentives and awards
are used to reward franchisees that maintain consistent quality standards. We identify franchisees whose properties
operate below minimum quality standards and assist them in complying with brand specifications. Franchisces who fail to
improve on identified quality matters may be subject to consequences ranging from written warnings to termination of the
franchisee’s franchise agreement.

Training. We maintain a training department that conducts mandatory training programs for all franchisees and their
employees. Regularly scheduled regional and national training meetings are also conducted for both property-level staff
and managers. Training programs teach franchisees how to best use the Choice reservation system and marketing
programs and fundamental hotel operations such as housekecping, maintenance and inventory yield management.

Training is conducted by a variety of methods, including group instruction seminars and video programs. We have
also developed an interactive computer-based training system that will train hotel employees at their own pace.

Opening Services. We maintain an opening services department with field based employees who ensure that
incoming hotels meet or exceed brand standards and to ensure that each incoming hotel opens successfully. We also
miaintain a design and construction department to assist franchisees in refurbishing, renovating, or constructing their
properties prior to or after joining the system. Department personnel assist franchisees in meeting our brand specifications
by providing technical expertise and cost-savings suggestions.

Competition

Competition among franchise lodging chains is intense in attracting potential franchisees to the system, retaining
existing franchisees and in generating reservations for franchisees. Franchise contracts are typically long-term in nature,
but most allow the hotel owner to opt-out of the agreement at mutually agreed upon anniversary dates.

We believe that hotel operators choose lodging franchisors based primarily on the value and quality of each
franchisor’s brand and services and the extent to which affiliation with that franchisor may increase the franchisee’s
reservations and profits. We also believe that hotel operators select a franchisor in part based on the franchisor’s
rcputation among other franchisees and the success of its existing franchisees.

Since our franchise system revenues are based on franchisees’ gross room revenues, our prospects for growth are
largely dependent upon the ability of our franchisees to compete in the lodging market, our ability to convert competitor
franchises and independent hotels to our brands and the ability of existing and potential franchisees to obtain financing to
construct new hotels.
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The ability of a hotel to compete may be affected by a number of factors, including the location and quality of the
property, the number and quality of competing lodging facilities nearby, its affiliation with a recognized name brand and
general regional and local economic conditions. The effect of local economic conditions on our results is substantially
reduced by the geographic diversity of our franchised properties, which are located in 49 states, the District of Columbia
and 39 countries and territories outside the United States, as well as our range of products and room rates.

We believe that our focus on core business strategies, combined with our financial strength and size, scale and
distribution will enable us to remain competitive.

Service Marks and Other Intellectual Property

The service marks Choice Hotels International, Comfort Inn, Comfort Suites, Quality, Clarion, Sleep Inn, Econo
Lodge, Rodeway Inn, MainStay Suites, Cambria Suites, Suburban Extended Stay Hotel, Choice Privileges, Easy Choice
and related marks and logos are material to our business. We, directly and through our franchisees, actively use these
marks. All of the material marks are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. In addition, we have
registered certain of our marks with the appropriate governmental agencies in over 100 countries where we are doing
business or anticipate doing business in the foreseeable future. We seek to protect our brands and marks throughout the
world, although the strength of legal protection available varies from country to country, Depending on the jurisdiction,
trademarks and other registered marks are valid as long as they are in use and/or their registrations are properly
maintained and they have not been found to have become generic.

Seasonality

The hotel industry is seasonal in nature. For most hotels, demand is lower in December through March than during
the remainder of the year. Qur principal source of revenues is franchise fees based on the gross room revenues of our
franchised properties. The Company’s franchise fee revenues and operating income reflect the industry’s seasonality and
historically have been lower in the first quarter than in the second, third or fourth quarters.

Regulation

The Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”), various states and certain other foreign jurisdictions (including
Australia, France, Germany, Canada, and Mexico) regulate the sale of franchises. The FTC requires franchisors to make
extensive disclosure to prospective franchisees but does not require registration. A number of states in which our
franchises operate require registration or disclosure in connection with franchise offers and sales. In addition, several
states have “franchise relationship laws™ or “business opportunity laws” that limit the ability of the franchisor to terminate
franchise agreements or to withhold consent to the renewal or transfer of these agreements. While our franchising
operations have not been materially adversely affected by such reguiations, we cannot predict the effect of future
regulation or legislation.

Our franchisees are responsible for compliance with all laws and government regulations applicable to the hotels
they own or operate. The lodging industry is subject to numerous federal, state and local government regulations,
including those relating to the preparation and sale of food and beverage (such as health and liquor license laws), building
and zoning requirements and laws governing employee relations, including minimum wage requirements, overtime,
working conditions and work permit requirements.

Impact of Inflation and Other External Factors

Franchise fees can be impacted by external factors including, in particular, the supply of hotel rooms within the
lodging industry relative to the demand for rooms by travelers and inflation.

We expect to benefit in the form of increased franchise fees from future growth in consumer demand for hotel rooms
as well as in the supply of hotel rooms, which do not result in excess lodging industry capacity. However, a prolonged
decline in demand for hotel rooms would negatively impact our business,

Although we believe that increases in the rate of inflation will generally result in comparable increases in hotel room
rates, severe inflation could contribute to a slowing of the national economy. Such a slowdown could result in reduced
travel by both business and leisure travelers, potentially resulting in less demand for hotel rooms, which could result in a
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reduction in room rates and fewer room reservations, negatively impacting our revenues. A weak cconomy could also
reduce demand for new hotels, negatively impacting the franchise fees received by us.

Among other unpredictable external factors, which may negatively impact us, are wars, acts of terrorism, airline
strikes, gasoline shortages, severe weather and the risks described in Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our Form 10-K filed
February 29, 2008.

Employees
We employed domestically approximately 1,816 people as of February 15, 2008. None of our employees are

represented by unions or covered by collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relations with our employees to
be: good.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

The fotlowing Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A™) is intended to help the reader understand Choice
Hotels International, Inc. and subsidiaries. MD&A is provided as a supplement to — and should be read in conjunction
with — our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes.

Overview

We are a hotel franchisor with franchise agreements representing 5,570 hotels open and 1,093 hotels under
development as of December 31, 2007, with 452,027 rooms and 87,982 rooms, respectively, in 49 states, the District of
Columbia and 39 countries and territories outside the United States, Our brand names include Comfort Inn, Comfort
Suites, Quality, Clarion, Sleep Inn, Econo Lodge, Rodeway Inn, MainStay Suites, Suburban Extended Stay Hotel,
Cambria Suites and Flag Hotels.

The Company conducts its international franchise operations through a combination of direct franchising and master
franchising relationships which allow the use of our brands by third parties in foreign countries. The Company has made
equity investments in certain non-domestic lodging franchise companies that conduct franchise operations for the
Company’s brands under master franchising relationships. As a result of our use of master franchising relationships and
international market conditions, total revenues from international franchising operations comprised only 7% and 6% of
our total revenues in 2007 and 2006, respectively while representing approximately 20% and 22% of our franchise system
hotels open at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

During 2006, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Choice Hotels Franchise GmbH (“CHG”). CHG was a
wholly owned subsidiary of one of the Company’s master franchisees, The Real Hotel Company PLC (“RHC”), formerly
known as CHE Hotel Group PLC. Under the master franchise agreement with RHC, CHG franchised hotels under the
Company’s brands in Austria, Germany, Italy, Czech Republic and portions of Switzerland. As a result of this acquisition,
the master franchise agreement between the Company and RHC covering these countries terminated. The results of CHG
have been consolidated with the Company since October 30, 2006,

During 2006, the Company acquired RHC’s assets, including franchise contracts, related to its franchising of hotels
under the Company’s brands in France, Belgium, Portugal, Spain and portions of Switzerland. As a result of this
acquisition, the master franchise agreement between the Company and RHC covering these countries terminated and the
Company commenced direct franchising operations in these countries on November 30, 2006.

These transactions enable Choice to continue its strategy of more closely directing the growth of our franchise
operations throughout continental Europe.

During 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Suburban Franchise Holding Company, Inc. (*Suburban™)
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Suburban Franchise Systems, Inc. Suburban is the franchisor of Suburban Extended Stay
Hotels operating in the economy extended stay segment primarily in the southeastern United States. The acquisition
allowed the Company to enter, on an accelerated basis, the economy extended stay segment, a market in which it did not
previously compete. The results of Suburban have been consolidated with the Company since September 28, 2005.

On September 14, 2005, the Company’s board of directors declared a two-for one stock split effected in the form of
a stock dividend. The stock dividend was distributed on October 21, 2005 to shareholders of record on October 7, 2005.
Share data and earnings per share data included in MD&A reflect the stock split, applied retroactively, to all periods
presented.

Our Company generates revenues, income and cash flows primarily from initial and continuing royalty fees
attributable to our franchise agreements. Revenues are also generated from brand solutions endorsed vendor
arrangements, hotel operations and other sources. The hotel industry is seasonal in nature. For most hotels, demand is
lower in December through March than during the remainder of the year. Our principal source of revenues is franchise
fees based on the gross room revenues of our franchised properties. The Company’s franchise fee revenues and operating
income reflect the industry’s seasonality and historically have been lower in the first quarter than in the second, third or
fourth quarters.

With a focus on hotel franchising instead of ownership, we benefit from the economies of scale inherent in the
franchising business. The fee and cost structure of our business provides opportunities to improve operating results by
increasing the number of franchised hotel rooms and effective royalty rates of our franchise contracts resulting in
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increased initial fee revenue; ongoing royalty fees and brand solutions revenues. In addition, our operating results can also
be improved through our company wide efforts related to improving property level performance. At December 31, 2007,
the Company estimates that based on its current domestic portfolio of hotels under franchise that a 1% change in RevPAR
or rooms under franchise would increase or decrease royalty revenues by $2.4 million and a 1 basis point change in the
Company’s effective royalty rate would increase or decrease domestic royalties by $0.5 million. In addition to these
revenues, we also collect marketing and reservation fees to support centralized marketing and reservation activities for the
franchise system. As a lodging franchisor, Choice has relatively low capital expenditure requirements.

The principal factors that affect the Company’s results are: the number and relative mix of franchised hotel rooms;
growth in the number of hotel rooms under franchise; occupancy and room rates achieved by the hotels under franchise;
the effective royalty rate achieved; and our ability to manage costs. The number of rooms at franchised propertics and
occupancy and room rates at those properties significantly affect the Company’s results because our fees are based upon
room revenues at franchised hotels. The key industry standard for measuring hotel-operating performance is revenue per
available room (“RevPAR”), which is calculated by multiplying the percentage of occupied rooms by the average daily
rcom rate realized. Qur variable overhead costs associated with franchise system growth have historically been less than
incremental royalty fees generated from new franchises. Accordingly, continued growth of our franchise business should
enable us to realize benefits from the operating leverage in place and improve operating results.

We are contractually required by our franchise agreements to use the marketing and reservation fees we collect for
svstem-wide marketing and reservation activities. These expenditures, which include advertising costs and costs to
maintain our central reservations system, help to enhance awareness and increase consumer preference for our brands.
Greater awareness and prefercnce promotes long-term growth in business delivery to our franchisees, which ultimately
increases franchise fees earned by the Company.

Our Company articulates its mission as a commitment to our customers’ profitability by providing our customers
with hotel franchises that generate the highest return on investment of any hotel franchise. We have developed an
operating system dedicated to our franchisees’ success that focuses on delivering guests to our franchised hotels and
reducing costs for our hotel owners. We strive every day to continuously improve our franchise offerings to enhance our
customers’ profitability and create the highest return on investment of any hotel franchise.

We believe that executing our strategic priorities creates value. Our Company focuses on two key value drivers:

Profitable Growth. Our success is dependent on improving the performance of our hotels, increasing our system size
by selling additional hotel franchises and effective royalty rate improvement. We attempt to improve our franchisees’
revenues and overall profitability by providing a variety of products and services designed to increase business delivery to
and/or reduce operating and development costs for our franchisees. These products and services include national
marketing campaigns, a central reservation system, property and yield management systems, quality assurance standards
and endorsed vendor relationships. We believe that healthy brands, which deliver a compelling return on investment for
franchisees, will enable us to sell additional hotel franchises and raise royalty rates. We have established multiple brands
that mect the needs of many types of guests, and can be developed at various price points and applied to both new and
existing hotels. This ensures that we have brands suitable for creating growth in a variety of market conditions. Improving
the performance of the hotels under franchise, growing the system through additional franchise sales and improving
franchisc agreement pricing while maintaining a disciplined cost structure are the keys to profitable growth.

Maximizing Financial Returns and Creating Value for Shareholders. Our capital allocation decisions, including
capital structure and uses of capital, are intended to maximize our return on invested capital and create value for our
shareholders. We believe our strong and predictable cash flows create a strong financial position that provides us a
competitive advantage. Currently, our business does not require significant capital to operate and grow, therefore, we can
‘maintain a capital structure that generates high financial returns and use our excess cash flow to increase returns to our
shareholders. We have returned value to our shareholders in two primary ways: share repurchases and dividends. In 1998,
we instituted a share repurchase program which has generated substantial value for our shareholders. Through
December 31, 2007, we have repurchased 38.6 million shares (including 33.0 million prior to the two-for-one stock split
effected in October 2005) of common stock at a total cost of $895.9 million since the program’s inception. Considering
the effect of the two-for-one stock split, the Company has repurchased 71.5 million shares at an average price of $12.52
per share through December 31, 2007. In September 2007, the Company’s board of dircctors authorized an increase under
the Company’s existing stock repurchase program to acquire up to an additional three million shares of its outstanding
common stock. At December 31, 2007, thc Company had 3.2 million shares remaining under the current authorization of
the board of directors. The Company expects to continue to return value to its sharcholders through a combination of
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dividends and share repurchases, subject to market and other conditions and upon completion of the current authorization
our board of directors will evaluate the propriety of additional share repurchases. In 2007, we paid cash dividends totaling
approximately $40.1 million and we presently expect to continue to pay dividends in the future. Based on our present
dividend rate and outstanding share count, aggregate annual dividends for 2008 would be approximately $42.0 million.

We believe these value drivers, when properly implemented, will enhance our profitability, maximize our financial
returns and continue to generate value for our shareholders. The ultimate measure of our success will be reflected in the
items below.

Results of Operation: Royalty fees, operating income, net income and diluted earnings per share (“EPS™) represent
key measurements of these value drivers. In 2007, royalty fees revenue totaled approximately $236.3 million, a 12%
increase compared te 2006. Operating income totaled $185.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, an 11%
increase from 2006. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 declined $1.5 million from 2006 to $111.3
million. However, diluted earnings per share were $1.70, a $0.02 improvement over 2006. Net income and EPS for 2006
included a reduction of income tax expense related to the resolution of provisions for certain income tax contingencies of
approximately $12.8 million and a loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately $0.3 million ($0.2 million, net of the
related tax effect) related to the refinancing of the Company’s senior credit facility. Thosc items represent diluted EPS of
$0.19, net for the year ended December 31, 2006. These measurements will continue to be a key management focus in
2008 and beyond.

Refer to MD&A heading “Operations Review” for additional analysis of our results.

Liguidity and Capital Resources: Historically, the Company has generated significant cash flows from operations. In
2007 and 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $146.1 million and $153.9 million, respectively. Since our
business does not currently require significant reinvestment of capital, we utilize cash in ways that management believes
provide the greatest returns to our shareholders which include share repurchases and dividends. We believe the
Company’s cash flow from operations and available financing capacity are sufficient to meet the expected future
operating, investing and financing needs of the business.

Refer to MD&A heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional analysis.
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QOperations Review
Comparison of 2007 Operating Results and 2006 Operating Results

The Company recorded net income of $111.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, a $1.5 million or 1%
decline from the $112.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in net income is primarily
aitributable to the resolution of income tax contingencies totaling $12.8 million during 2006 resulting in an effective
income tax rate of 27.4% in 2006 compared to 36.0% for 2007. The increase in the effective income tax rate was partially
offset by an $18.6 million or 11% increase in operating income. Operating income increased as a result of a $31.8 million,
or 12% increase in franchising revenues (total revenues excluding marketing and reservation revenues and hotel
operations) partially offset by a $14.5 million or 17% increase in selling, general and administrative expense. The increase
in selling, general and administration expenses was partiatly due to the commencement of direct franchising operations in
continental Europe and termination benefit expenses incurred related to the termination of certain executive officers.

Summarized financial results for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006

(In thousands, excepl
per share amounts}

REVENUES:
FLOYAIY TEES 1ooerrerereis et e b s s b e e bR s $ 236,346 $ 211,645
Iaitial franchise and reliCENSING FERS......cvvirereriirrin et s bbb 33,389 29,629
EATANE SOILIONS 1eeeeiireietieiiiiiceee s et eassesssesnessesrteasasaessansssen st etesannsssesessanseseemamseesssmeeanbssesessstasssssassersnnnenas 16,283 13,945
Markeling AnA FESEFVALLON ......oceorvrrireieiaraareer i tessscresssenesessresrsrss s sseasrsassrntess s essesssesnsanassasasbasssssarasasesas 316,827 273,267
HOE! OPEIALIONS oottt e e enn e anent 4,692 4,505
L1111 O OO OO T YU PO U YUY OOV YUY PRT PR 7,957 6,912
TOUAL TEVETIUES ..o e eeeeeeeiar e e s v e aetsbsesrabsssesrmeeeeaasseessbrsressasseaaatneeessnreesnasosanseeenanmnne snnneesemaneaba 615,494 539,903
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and admInISITATIVE ... s 101,590 87,112
Depreciation and amMOrtiZAHON ........oovieiiiiiiii e e asst e s sae st ses e se e besaessee e e ees 8,637 9,705
Marketing and reServation ... ... e s 316,827 273,267
HOTET OPEIALIONS .c.eirvirrirresreei vttt oo st e bR e b e b sk kbbb bR e s 3,241 3,194
Total OPETAtINE EXPEISES ..ottt e re s s e s ar £ e 430,295 373,278
OPETALITE TMCOTIIC ..ottt e et sa et r e e e i b e e st s b s sa bt a4 s R e s e SRs st P e SR T sm e g emems e seeeemsomseemensme e eisasbebs 185,199 166,625
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
I IIETEST EXPEIISE. 1. vuvvururerererreirienseseseresneresarasceceasacasnes s e s ae e e e e e eren s b sd s bbb s e s bbb e e et bna e 14,293 14,098
Interest and Other INVESTIMIENT INCOINIE 1.vvvvvieeivveeisreirereeosreiieesisessesesesessnessaseenseessasabesssssesisseassesistesarnsannes (1,750) (2,041)
Equity in net income of affiliates ... (1,230) (1,052)
Loss on extinguishment of debt ... — 342
Other iNCOME and EXPENSES, TMEL c.o..vuverermrcrireeceeierie e e st i ss b s bbb e s n e bt n s a e 11,313 11,347
INCOMIE DEfOTE INCOMIE LAXES ...ooieeeeeeiece et eeeeesereenecseete e bessseass st e sanesaesseeseeatesanes rrersnerasnrasstess 173,886 155,278
TICOTIIE TAXES +vvvieraveeeraranesensnressanasesaseseesasnsssanesemesesansnsseasansasssasnssssonssbesbtssiasasssesbbesasasassesmenansrsreesrnssanintans 62,585 42,491
NEE EMICOIMIE ...t eeieeet et e et e ebe e bt sebaa s aes e e b e e b e s aseeRa e b aan b e s e e s e saeeameoar e ore s R remebabs st s st e nan et a e st e s ennssas $ 111,301 $ 112,787
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted.......cocoiviiiiiininn e 65,331 67,050
Diluted earmnings PET SRATE .....oovvvirreeereerrtee e s sass s bbb s et naee 5 1.70 3 1.68

Management analyzes its business based on franchising revenues, which is total revenues excluding marketing and
reservation revenues and hotel operations, and franchise operating expenses that are reflected as selling, general and
administrative expenses.

Franchising Revenues. Franchising revenues were $294.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared
to $262.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The growth in franchising revenues is primarily due to increases
in royalty revenues and initial and rclicensing fees, brand solutions and other revenues of approximately 12%, 13%, 17%
and 15%, respectively.

Domestic royalty fees increased $18.6 million to $214.1 million from $195.5 million in 2006, an increase of 10%.
The increase in royalties is attributable to a combination of factors including a 4.3% increase in the number of domestic
franchised hotel rooms, a 4.0% increase in RevPAR and an increase in the effective royalty rate of the domestic hotel
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system to 4.14% from 4.09%. System-wide RevPAR increases resulted primarily from an average daily rate (“ADR”)
increase of 4.9% from the prior year.

A summary of the Company’s domestic franchised hotels operating information for the years ending December 31 is
as follows:

2007 2006 Change
Average Average Average
Daily Rate Occupancy RevPAR  Daily Rate Qccupancy RevPAR Daily Rate Qccupaney RevPAR
Comfort Inn..........c....... 5 77.14 63.1% $48.70 $ 73.08 63.0% $ 46.06 5.6% 10 bps 57%
Comfort Suites............. 87.23 65.5% 57.11 §2.93 67.0% 55.59 5.2% (150) bps 2.7%
Sleep . 69.67 62.5% 43.52 66.44 62.4% 41.43 4.9% 10 bps 5.0%
Midscale without

Food &

Beverage........ 78.23 63.5% 49.70 74.18 63.7% 47.26 5.5% (20) bps 5.2%
Quality...cocoovriierine 70.30 54.2% 38.09 66.89 55.3% 37.01 5.1% (110) bps 29%
Clanon.......ceoeeeeeeereenes 80.86 51.7% 41.79 78.98 51.2% 40.41 2.4% 50 bps 34%

Midscale with

Food &

Beverage........ 72.74 53.6% 38.97 69.76 54.3% 37.87 4.3% {70} bps 29%
Econo Lodge ................ 54,40 48.0% 26.10 53.09 47.7% 25.31 2.5% 30 bps 3.1%
Rodeway........cococninens 53.24 47.6% 25.32 51.66 45.8% 23.66 3.1% 180 bps 7.0%

Economy............. 54.14 47.9% 25.93 52.83 47.3% 24.99 2.5% 60 bps 3.8%
MainStay .....coveveieeninens 70.04 68.5% 47.98 67.26 69.4% 46,66 4.1% (90} bps 2.8%
Suburban.......c.ccoenne. 40.13 67.3% 27.01 38.30 72.4% 27.73 4.8% (510) bps (2.6)%

Extended Stay..... 47.10 67.6% 31.83 4381 71.8% 31.46 7.5% (420) bps 1.2%
Total oo § 72.07 57.9% $41.75  $ 68.71 58.4% § 4013 4.9% {50) bps 4.0%

The number of domestic rooms on-line increased to 354,139 as of December 31, 2007 from 339,441 as of
December 31, 2006, an increase of 4.3%. The total number of domestic hotels on-line grew 5.6% to 4,445 as of
December 31, 2007 from 4,211 as of December 31, 2006. A summary of the domestic hotels and available rooms at
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 by brand is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 Variance
Hotels Rooms Hotels Rooms Hotels Yo Rooms %o

Comfort INn ..ot 1,434 112,042 1,415 110,877 19 1.3% 1,165 1.1%
Comfort Suites..........ooovnvveeceieeeeeee e, 481 37,358 433 33,976 48 11.1% 3,382 10.0%
SlEED oo 346 25,728 327 24,575 19 5.8% 1,153 4.7%

Midscale without Food & Beverage. 2,261 175,128 2,175 169,428 _8_6 4.0% 5,700 3.4%
Quality ... 828 79.276 736 72,054 92 12.5% 7,222 10.0%
Clarion ..o 167 23,319 162 23,945 _5 3.1% (626) (2.6)%

Midscale with Food & Beverage...... 995 102,595 898 95999 _ 97 10.8% 6,596 6.9%
Econo Lodge ....cuouveveeeieeneeeeeeeeece e, 825 50,403 816 49,679 9 1.1% 724 1.5%
Rodeway ... 276 16,523 233 14,168 _ 43 18.5% 2,355 16.6%

ECOnOMY oo 1,101 66,926 1,049 63,847 _5_2 5.0% 3,079 4.8%
MainStay .....coooveeviviie e, 30 2,258 29 2,183 1 3.4% 75 34%
Suburban ........ocoo o 54 6,773 60 7,984 _ (6) (10.0)% (1,211) (15.2)%

Extended Stay....cocooiiiin, 84 9,031 89 10,167 (5) (5.6)% {1,136} (11.2)%
Cambria SUILES.........covvvrrrrrriveeiesie s 4 459 — — _ 4 NM 459 NM
Total Domestic Franchises.......c.ocoveernan... 4,445 354,139 4211 339441 ﬁ 5.6% 14,698 4.3%

International available rooms declined to 97,888 as of December 31, 2007 from 97,944 as of December 31, 2006.
The total number of intermnational hotels on-line declined from 1,165 as of December 3t, 2006 to 1,125 as of
December 31, 2007.
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company had 1,004 franchised hotels with 79,342 rooms under construction, awaiting
conversion or approved for development in its domestic system as compared to 860 hotels and 66,238 rooms at
December 31, 2006. The number of new construction franchised hotels in the Company’s domestic pipeline increased
21% to 728 at December 31, 2007 from 602 at December 31, 2006. The Company had an additional 89 franchised hotels
with 8,640 rooms under development in its international system as of December 31, 2007 compared to 70 hotels and
6,317 rooms at December 31, 2006. While the Company’s hotel pipeline provides a strong platform for growth, a hotel in
the pipeline does not always result in an open and operating hotel due to various factors.

A summary of the domestic franchised hotels under construction, awaiting conversion or approved for development
at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 by brand is as follows:

December 3t, 2007 December 31, 2006 Yariance
New
. . Conversion Construction Total
New Now
Conversion Construction  Total Conversion Construction  Total Units % Units % Units '/_.
Comfort Inn...oeeeiiinins 54 135 189 56 124 180 {2) (Y% 11 9% 9 5%
Comfort Suites......covrueenes 1 278 79 3 233 236 2y (BN 45 19% 43 18%
Sleep. e — 138 138 — 123 123 — NM 15 12% 15 12%
Midscale without
Food &
Beverage........ 55 551 606 59 480 539 4 ()% " 15% 67 12%
QUALIEY e 71 15 86 76 10 8% () (D% 5 50% @ — @ —
Chron...oeeen 30 7 37 1! 4 15 19 173% 3 75% 22 147%
Midscale with
Food &
Beverage......... 101 22 123 87 14 101 14 16% 8 57% 22 22%
Econo Lodge .....oceveeeee. 46 3 49 41 5 46 5 12% (2) (40)% 3 7%
Rodeway....coovvecverncnncnn 68 3 71 66 3 69 2 3% — — 2 3%
Economy.............. 114 6 120 107 8 115 7 7% (2) (25)% 5 4%
MainStay ..ooovvrieenvirnnnns 2 46 48 — 33 33 2 NM 13 39% 15 45%
Suburban........oooever e 4 40 44 5 24 29 (1) (0% 16 6% 15 52%
Extended Stay ... 6 86 92 5 57 62 1 20% 29 51% 30 48%
Cambria Suites ......coevnen — 63 63 — 43 43 — NM 20 47% 20 47%
276 728 1,004 258 602 860 18 7% 126 21% 144 17%

=

Net domestic franchise additions during 2007 increased 71 units to 234 compared to 163 for the same period a year
ago. Gross domestic franchise additions increased from 381 for 2006 to 435 for 2007. Net franchise terminations declined
to 201 for 2007 from 218 in 2006. During 2007, the Company has continued to execute its strategy to replace franchised
hotels that do not meet our brand standards or are underperforming in their market. As the competition gets stronger and
more focused on limited service franchising, the Company will continue to focus on improving its system hotels and
utilizing the domestic hotels under development as a strong platform for continued system growth.

International royalties increased $6.0 million or 37% from $16.2 million in 2006 to $22.2 million in 2007 primarily
due to the commencement of direct franchising operations in continental Europe which contributed $3.3 million of
additional royalties.

New domestic franchise agreements executed during 2007 totaled 770 representing 61,778 rooms compared to 720
agreements representing 57,365 rooms executed in the same period in 2006. During 2007, 327 of the exccuted agreements
were for new construction hotel franchises, representing 26,029 rooms, compared to 288 contracts, representing 22,035
rooms for 2006. Conversion hotel franchise executed contracts totaled 443 representing 35,749 rooms for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to 432 agreements representing 35,330 rooms for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Domestic initial fee revenue, included in the initial franchise and relicensing fees caption above, generated from executed
franchise agreements increased 17% to $21.0 million for 2007 from $17.9 miilion for 2006. The increased revenues
primarily reflect an increase in executed agreements and higher average initial fees than the prior year.
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A summary of executed domestic franchise agreements by brand for 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 1006 % Change
New New New
Construction Conversion Total Construction Conversion Total Construction Conversion Total

Comfort I eeeevneeereee. 48 62 110 67 65 132 (28)% (5% (17)%

Comfort Suites... 114 4 118 98 3 101 16% 33% 17%

Sleep .o 71 1 72 58 1 59 22% 0% 22%

Midscale without

Food & Beverage .. 233 67 300 223 69 292 4% (3% 3%

Quality ..o 11 153 164 6 143 149 83% 7% 10%

Clanion.........cocevieeeeecncenen 6 42 48 2 26 28 200% 62% 71%
Midscale with Food

& Beverage.......... 17 195 212 8 169 177 113% 15% 20%

Econo Lodge........ooooovcec....... 3 77 80 1 80 81 200% 4% (1%

Rodeway......ccceovvveceecriinnne 2 929 101 3 105 108 33)Y% (6)% {6)%

Economy ........ccovve 5 176 181 4 185 189 25% (5)Y% ()%

MainStay ....ocoooevvviererreeneens 22 2 24 9 } 10 144% 100% 140%

Suburban.........ooeiieviicnn 2 3 24 14 2 22 50% (63)% 9%

Extended Stay ........... 43 5 48 23 9 32 87% (4% 50%

Cambria Suites ..........ccoceee. 29 -— 29 30 — 30 3% NM (3%

Total Domestic System........ 327 443 770 288 432 720 14% 3% 7%

Relicensing fees are charged to the new property owner of a franchised property whenever an ownership change
occurs and the property remains in the franchise system. During the year ended December 31, 2007, relicensings
increased 7% to 403 from 378 in 2006. The increase in relicensing contracts resulted in an increase of fees of
approximately 6% to $12.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $11.7 million for the same period of 2006.

Brand solutions revenue increased $2.3 million or 17% to $16.3 million primarily resulting from increased vendor
sponsorships of our annual franchisee convention.

Other income increased $1.0 million to $8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 primarily due to an
increase in liquidated damage collections related to the early termination of franchise agreements.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses: The cost to operate the franchising business is reflected in selling,
general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses were $101.6 million for
2007, an increase of $14.5 million from the 2006 total of $87.1 million. As a percentage of revenues, excluding marketing
and reservation fees and hotel operations, total SG&A expenses were 34.6% for 2007 compared to 33.2% for 2006.
Expenses as a percentage of franchise revenues increased primarily due to an additional $3.3 million in expenses related
to the commencement of direct franchising operations in continental Europe and $3.7 million in termination benefits
related to the termination of certain executive officers.

Depreciation and Amortization: Expenses declined $1.1 million to $8.6 million for 2007 due to the 2006
acceleration of depreciation resulting from the renovation and replacement of furniture, fixtures and equipment at two of
the Company-owned Mainstay Suites.

Marketing and Reservations: The Company’s franchise agreements require the payment of franchise fees, which
include marketing and reservation fees. The fees, which are based on a percentage of the franchisees’ gross room
revenues, are used exclusively by the Company for expenses associated with providing franchise services such as central
reservation systems, national marketing and media advertising. The Company is contractually obligated to expend the
marketing and reservation fees it collects from franchisees in accordance with the franchise agreements; as such, no
income or loss to the Company is generated.

Total marketing and reservations revenues were $316.8 million and $273.3 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Depreciation and amortization attributable to marketing and reservation activities was $8.3 million and $7.9 million for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Interest expense attributable to reservation activities was $0.5
million and $0.9 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Marketing and reservation activities provided positive cash flow

34




of $12.0 million and $19.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, the Company’s balance sheet includes a receivable of $6.8 million and $6.7 million, respectively resulting
from cumulative marketing expenses incurred in excess of cumulative marketing fee revenues earned. These receivables
are recorded as an asset in the financial statements as the Company has the contractual authority to require that the
franchisees in the system at any given point repay the Company for any deficits related to marketing and reservations
activities. The Company’s current franchisees are legally obligated to pay any assessment the Company imposes on its
franchisees to obtain reimbursement of such deficit regardless of whether those constituents continue to generate gross
room revenue. The Company has no present intention to accelerate repayment of the deficit from current franchisees. A
payable has been recorded in the Company’s balance sheet within other long-term liabilities related to cumulative
reservation fee revenues received in excess of reservation fee expenses incurred totaling $11.9 million and $8.4 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Cumulative reservation and marketing fees not expended are recorded as a
payable in the financial statements and are carried over to the next fiscal year and expended in accordance with the
franchise agreements.

Other Income and Expenses, Net: Other income and expenses, net, were $11.3 million for both 2007 and 2006.
interest expense increased slightly from $14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $i4.3 million due to
higher average outstanding borrowings during the year. The Company’s weighted average intercst rate declined from
6.6% as of December 31, 2006 to 6.0% as of December 31, 2007. Interest and other investment income declined from
$2.0 million in 2006 to $1.8 million primarily due to a decline in the fair value of investments held in non-qualified
employee benefit plans. Other income and expenses, net for the year ended December 31, 2006 include a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $0.3 million attributable to the refinancing of our senior credit facility.

Income Taxes: The Company’s effective income tax provision rate was 36.0% for 2007, compared to an effective
income tax provision rate of 27.4% for 2006. The effective income tax rate increased primarily due to the prior year
resolution of provisions for income tax contingencies totaling approximately $12.8 million compared to $0.3 million
during 2007. Depending upon the outcome of certain income tax contingencies up to an additional $1.6 million of
additional tax benefits may be reflected in our 2008 results of operations from the resolution of tax contingency reserves.

Net income for 2007 decreased by 1% to $111.3 million, and diluted earnings per share increased 1% to $1.70 for
2007 from $1.68 reported for 2006.
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Comparison of 2006 Operating Results and 2005 Operating Results

The Company recorded net income of $112.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $25.2
million, or 29% from $87.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, The increase in net income for the year is
primarily attributable to a $22.9 million improvement in operating income and a decline in the effective income tax rate
from 33.0% to 27.4%. The effective income tax rate declined primarily due to the resolution of tax contingencies of
approximately $12.8 million in 2006 compared to $4.9 million in 2005 as well as an additional $1.2 million of income tax
expense in 2005 related to the Company’s repatriation of foreign earnings. Operating income increased as a result of a
$32.1 million, or 14% increase in franchising revenues (total revenues excluding marketing and reservation revenues and
hotel operations) primarily offset by an $8.9 million or 11% increase in selling, general and administrative expense.

Summarized financial results for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005

{In thousands, except
per share amounis)

REVENUES:
ROYVAIY LS oviiiiieiieiec et ettt et s b ss e s e st ebas s b ee bbb bbb e ne e snnanns $211,645 $ 187,340
Initial franchise and reliCensing fEES. ... .o it es st es et e err e beres 29,629 25,388
BIANA SOLIUHONS ...voe e e et eeee e e et e et e e ete e st eser e ee et e eneeeesee e s et e seeaaasnessateenssansasesrses sreesannenneeennneennes 13,945 13,382
Marketing and TESEIVALION ........couoeiiriieieieiie ettt e e s s b e sese b abe s b babe b st smnssana s et aseenesns 273,267 237,822
HOBE] OPETALIONS ...c.coiitieei ettt eb et e et aaa s e e b e n b b e see e s e e sesnenbenes 4,505 4,293
DIRBT ..o st b bbb kbbb bbb bS48k RS £h £t £h bbbkt 6,912 3,873
TOAL TEVETIUES ....eiieiiiieiieeeectee et et et et et b et ab e s tasbes eera s ant e seeer e neeheemeenbesmtshe e b easanbasnaises 539,903 472,098
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and adMINISTATIVE .......c.cvoiiiieceeecee et eb s ee et en et ensnens 87,112 78,250
Depreciation and BMIOTTZAION i asceceesaasaeseesssaeescs raasess saases aeentese seeasensese seensasassensasasns 9,705 9,051
MaArKeting And TFESEIVAIION ... ... oeeeeeeeeeieee e teeerars v st st st s e st ssre st ses b st sbassteas e seamanssirsrsbesrerrrsnstssberbesssres 273,267 237,822
HOME] OPRIALIONS ...ttt ettt ettt e sttt es b s e et s eseeseenses s e e e aEemE s eaaebsn e asba e st s bs b rmse e 3,194 3,225
TO1a] OPCFAUINE EXPENSES .uvcveviiiirieieteiiaititre et et e s seeseseteseeteseeeeseseasebesssessamens b snsnsessassesesessanesins 373,278 328,348
OPCTATING IICOME ...tiuiiitete ittt v et sr et rr e s et e e e ke be b et ake e bese et beme e re s emeasae e s a4 e s a8 s e et enss et et srseassens 166,625 143,750
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
e (e A 4 4= - OO T USSPy OO P 14,098 15,325
Interest and other iNVESIMENE INCOMIE ... e e (2,041) (1,094)
Equity in net income of affilIAES .........ooiriii bbb s (1,052) (803)
Loss on extinguishment of debt . ... s 342 —
MBET ottt ettt ettt £ et et et s ea et et s ge e A aa b et e eRaat et e eE et eEeee et nEe et e reeaenbeseeneebesaaner — {420)
Other inCome and EXPENSES, TIEL ...c.vvririieeieiei ettt s e st sas e b ses bt s eebe s 11,347 13,008
INCOITIE DETOIE INCOIMIE LAXES ...iiivvvieieineeieistet i ie i etee e it i s e s te e e s et ee e s ettt aee e s e eeeessses s sabmeassaabesseaaasesssbbasesssanenen 155,278 130,742
IEECOITIE BAXES ..o st ee s st e e ettt e e e ettt b e e st et e eeomeeeeee s et e eeaseeeesasmeeeeasteeaaRbaaaeesasssanassste sismmnesenmeeeeanen 42,491 43,177
INBE ITICOTIIE 1ottt et e et et e bt es e oo e e meeaeemeeseesae e emteeseesee s essaoEe o8 oAt oA be e ebbs s ebem s e senseseaneessns $ 112,787 $ 87,565
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted..............ooovivrvriinnin e e 67,050 66,336
Diluted earnings Per SRATe ..ot et b et b $ 168 3 1.32

Management analyzes its business based on franchising revenues, which is total revenues excluding marketing and
reservation revenues and hotel operations, and franchise operating expenses that are reflected as seiling, generai and
administrative expenses.

Franchising Revenues: Franchising revenues were $262.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $230.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The growth in franchising revenues is primarily due to increases
in royalty revenues and initial and relicensing fees and other revenues of approximately 13%, 17% and 78%, respectively.

Domestic royalty fees increased $19.1 million to $195.5 million from $176.4 million in 2005, an increase of 10.8%.
Excluding the franchises obtained in the September 28, 2005 acquisition of Suburban, the increase in royalties is
attributable to a combination of factors including a 3.3% increase in the number of domestic franchised hotel rooms, a
6.1% increase in RevPAR and an increase in the effective royalty rate of the domestic hotel system to 4.10% from 4.08%.
System-wide RevPAR increases resulted primarily from an average daily rate (“ADR™) increase of 5.2% from the prior

36




year. The acquisition of Suburban contributed approximately $3.0 million of royalty fees for the twelve months ending
Dezcember 31, 2006 compared to $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

A summary of the Company’s domestic franchised hotels operating information is as follows:

2006 2005 Change
Average Averape Average
Daily Rate  Occupancy RevPAR Daily Rate  Occupancy RevPAR Daily Rate Occupancy RevPAR
Comfort [nn .....coevnennnn. $ 73.08 63.0% $46.06 $ 68.84 61.7% § 4245 6.2% 130 bps 8.5%
Comfort Suites..........c...c.. 82.93 67.0% 55.59 77.51 66.3% 51.36 7.0% 70 bps 8.2%
SIEEP e 66.44 62.4% 41.43 62.52 61.0% 38.16 6.3% 140 bps 8.6%
Midscale without

Food & Beverage ... 74.18 63.7% 47.26 69.68 62.4% 43.51 6.5% 130 bps 8.6%
Quality .o 66.89 55.3% 37.01 64.86 54.6% 3541 3.1% 70 bps 4.5%
Clanion ....oooveevevvcrvreineens 78.98 51.2% 40.41 74.62 52.5% 39.15 5.8%  (130)bps 3.2%

Midscale with Food &

Beverage................. 69.76 54.3% 37.87 67.41 54.0% 36.41 3.5% 30 bps 4.0%
Econo Lodge.....cccocoeeeens 53.09 47.7% 25.31 50.95 48.2% 24.56 4.2% (50)bps 3.1%
Rodeway ....cccooovveevevivnnenns 51.66 45.8% 23.66 49.91 46.7% 23.31 3.5% (9Mbps £.5%

Economy .......cccocovevnen, 52.83 47.3% 24.99 50.78 48.0% 24.35 4.0% {70)bps 2.6%
MainStay.....ccooveveennennnenas 67.26 69.4% 46.66 64.76 65.7% 42.54 3.9% 370 bps 9.7%
Total Domestic System* ... $ 69.71 58.0% $4046 5 66.24 57.6% § 38.15 52% 40 bps 6.1%

* Amounts exclude Suburban activity from 2006 because full year comparable pre-acquisition data for 2005 is not available.

Including franchises acquired from Suburban, the number of domestic rooms on-line increased to 339,441 as of
December 31, 2006 from 329,353 as of December 31, 2003, an increase of 3.1%. The total number of domestic hotels on-
line grew 4.0% to 4,211 as of December 31, 2006 from 4,048 as of December 31, 2005.

A summary of the domestic hotels and available rooms at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 by brand is as
follows:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 Yariance
Hotels Rooms Hotels Rooms Hotels %% Rooms %%

Comfort INM ..o 1,415 110,877 1,428 111,598 a3 (0.9% (721} (0.6)%
Comfort SUites .....cooeveeeie e 433 33,976 411 32,251 22 5.4% 1,725 5.3%
SlEep oo 327 24,575 319 24,205 8 2.5% 370 1.5%

Midscale without Food & Beverage... 2,175 169,428 2,158 168,054 17 0.8% 1,374 0.8%
QUality o 736 72,054 660 66,316 76 11.5% 5,738 8.7%
L0 F:1 T RS T ORI 162 23,945 153 23,554 9 5.9% 391 1.7%

Midscale with Food & Beverage........ 898 95,999 813 89,870 85 10.5% 6,129 6.8%
Eeono Lodge ..o 816 49,679 805 49 763 11 1.4% (84) (0.2)%
Rodeway ..o 233 14,168 180 11,051 53 29.4% 3,117 28.2%

Economy ..o 1,049 63,847 985 60,814 64 6.5% 3,033 5.0%
IMAINSLAY v 29 2,183 27 2,047 2 7.4% 136 6.6%
BUBUMBAN ..o 60 7,984 65 8,568 (5) (7. 7% (584) (6.8)%

Extended Stay......ccoocooiiiinciincnae 89 10,167 92 10,615 3) (3.3)% (448) (4.2Y%
Total Domestic Franchises............ccc.ccovvin. 4,211 339441 4,048 329,353 163 4.0% 10,088 3.1%

International available rooms increased to 97,944 as of December 31, 2006 from 97,703 as of December 31, 2005, a
0).2% increase. The total number of international hotels on-line increased from 1,162 as of December 31, 2005 to 1,165 as
of December 31, 2006.

37



As of December 31, 2006, the Company had 860 franchised hotels with 66,238 rooms under construction, awaiting
conversion or approved for development in its domestic system as compared to 603 hotels and 46,464 rooms at
December 31, 2005. The number of new construction franchised hotels in the Company’s ‘domestic pipeline increased
46% to 602 at December 31, 2006 from 413 at December 31, 2005. The Company had an additional 70 franchised hotels
with 6,317 rooms under development in its international system as of December 31, 2006 compared to 84 hotels and
7,611 rooms at December 31, 2005. While the Company’s hotel pipeline provides a strong platform for growth, a hotel in
the pipeline does not always result in an open and operating hotel due to various factors.

A summary of the domestic franchised hotels under construction, awaiting conversion or approved for development
at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 by brand is as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005 Variance
New
New New Conversien Construction Total
Conversion Construction  Total  Conversion Construction  Total Units S Units % Units %
Comfort Inn....... 56 124 180 41 85 126 15 37% 39 46% 54 43%
Comfort Suites... 3 233 236 2 165 167 1 50% 68 41% 69 41%
Sleep ..o — 123 123 1 88 89 (1) (m)% 35 40% 34 _:igﬁ:
Midscale without
Food &
Beverage.......... 59 480 539 44 338 382 15 _34% 142 42% 157 41%
Quality ..o 76 10 86 54 12 66 22 41 % (2) (17)% 20 30%
Clarion.......cueeceeeeeeenn 11 4 15 13 4 17 (2) u)% — 0% (2) (_@%
Midscale with
Food &
Beverage......... 87 14 101 67 16 83 20 ﬁ% (2} {13)% 18 E’/u
Econo Lodge......ccceceee 41 5 46 41 9 50 — 0% (4) (4% 4) {8)%
Rodeway.......cccovveerninns 66 3 69 35 — 35 31 ﬂ% 3 NM 34 EA
Economy.......c....... 107 8 115 76 9 85 31 _ﬂ% (1) (11Y% 30 EA)
MainStay .....ccoecivecenens — 33 33 | 29 30 {1y (dom% 4 14% 3 10%
Suburban..........cceveveenen, 5 24 29 2 9 11 3 150% 15 167% 18 164%
Extended Stay ... 5 57 62 3 38 41 2 ﬂ% 19 50% 21 ﬁ%
Cambria Suites ............. _ 43 43 — 12 12 — NM 31 258% 31 2&%
258 602 860 190 413 603 68 _36% 189 46% 257 ﬂ%

Excluding the acquisition of Suburban on September 28, 2005, net domestic franchise additions during 2006
increased 14 units to 163 compared to 149 for the same period a year ago. Gross domestic franchise additions increased
from 339 for 2005 to 381 for 2006. Net franchise terminations increased to 218 for 2006 from 190 in 2005.

International royaltics increased $5.2 million or 47% from $11.0 million in 2005 to $16.2 million in 2006 primarily
due to the commencement of royalty payments by over 300 properties in continental Europe under our master franchise
agreement with RHC. Prior to January 1, 2006, only reservation fees were assessed to the properties in RHC’s portfolio.
Beginning in January 2006, the Company began to assess royalty and marketing fees in addition to the reservation fees.

Domestic initial fee revenue, included in the initial franchise and relicensing fees caption above, generated from
executed domestic franchise agreements increased 18.5% to $17.9 million for 2006 from $15.1 miltion for 2005. The
increased revenues primarily reflect increased sales of our new construction brands, most notably our Cambria Suites and
Comfort Suites offerings, which carry a higher average initial fee than our other brands. New domestic franchise
agreements executed in 2006 totaled 720 representing 57,365 rooms compared to 639 agreements representing 52,862
rooms executed in 2005. During 2006, 288 of the executed agreements were for new construction hotel franchises,
representing 22,035 rooms, compared to 237 contracts, representing 18,096 rooms for the same period a year ago, both
increases of approximately 22%. The growth in conversion hotel franchise executed contracts increased 7% from 402 for
2005 to 432 for 2006. During 2006, the Company executed 30 new franchise agreements for its Cambria Suites brand
bringing the total contracts executed since its launch in January 2005 10 43.
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A summary of executed domestic franchise agreements by brand for 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 2005 % Change
New New New

Construction Conversion Total Construction Conversion Total Construction Conversion Total
Comfort Inn.....ooovvvvverennee 67 65 132 53 56 109 26% 16% 21%
Comfort Suites................. 98 3 101 89 5 94 10% 40)% 7%
Slzep i 58 1 59 55 2 57 5% (50)% 4%

Midscale without
Food & Beverage.. 223 69 292 197 63 260 13% 10% 12%
Quality ........... 6 143 149 5 148 153 20% {3)% 3%
Clarion.....ccccccicviirnninnns 2 26 28 4 31 35 (50)% (16)%% (20)%
Midscale with Food

& Beverage......... 8 169 177 9 179 188 (11% (6)%% {6)%
Econo Lodge.......cocneeee. 1 80 81 4 85 89 (75)% (6)% (9)%
Rodeway ....coveviivarerenene 3 105 108 — 75 75 NM 40% 44%
Economy.....cccvenee.. 4 185 189 4 160 164 0% 16% 15%
MainS1ay .....coovrireiivene. 9 1 10 14 — 14 (36)% NM (29Y%

Suburban.........c.ccocivirenne 14 8 22 — — — NM NM NM
Extended Stay......... 23 9 32 14 — 14 64% NM 129%
Cambria Suites ................ 30 — 30 13 — 13 131% NM 131%
Total Domestic System.... 288 432 720 237 402 639 22% 7% 13%

Relicensing fees increased 14% to $11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $10.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005. Relicensing fees are charged to the new property owner of a franchised property
whenever an ownership change occurs and the property remains in the franchise system. During 2006, relicensings
increased 14% from 332 in 2005 to 378 for 2006.

Other income increased $3.0 million to $6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily due to an
increase in liquidated damage collections related to the early termination of franchise agreements.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses: The cost to operate the franchising business is reflected in selling,
general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A™) expenses were $87.1 million for
2006, an increase of $8.9 million from the 2005 total of $78.2 million. As a percentage of revenues, excluding marketing
and reservation fees and hotel operations, total SG&A expenses were 33.2% for 2006 compared to 34.0% for 2005.
Expenses increased primarily due to higher compensation costs related to stock compensation, variable franchise sales
compensation, the launch of the Company’s Cambria Suites brand and the acquisition of Suburban. Despite the increase in
expenses, SG&A as a percentage of franchise revenues declined since our variable overhcad costs associated with
franchise system growth have historically been less than incremental royaity fees generated from new franchises.

Depreciation and Amortization: Expenses increased $0.6 million to $9.7 million for 2006 primarily due to the
zcceleration of depreciation resulting from the renovation and replacement of furniture, fixtures and equipment at two of
the Company-owned Mainstay Suites during the second quarter.

Marketing and Reservations: The Company’s franchise agreements require the payment of franchise fees, which
inctude marketing and reservation fees. The fees, which are based on a percentage of the franchisees’ gross room
revenues, are used exclusively by the Company for expenses associated with providing franchise services such as central
reservation systems, national marketing and media advertising. The Company is contractually obligated to expend the
marketing and reservation fees it collects from franchisees in accordance with the franchise agreements; as such, no
income or loss to the Company 1s generated.

Total marketing and reservations revenues were $273.3 million and $237.8 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Depreciation and amortization attributable to marketing and reservation activities was $7.9 million and $7.6 million for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Interest expense attributable to reservation activities was $0.9
million and $1.1 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively. Marketing and reservation activities provided positive cash flow
nf $19.0 million and $19.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31,
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2006 and 2005, the Company’s balance sheet includes a receivable of $6.7 million and $13.2 million, respectively
resulting from cumulative marketing expenses incurred in excess of cumulative marketing fee revenues earned. These
receivables are recorded as an asset in the financial statements as the Company has the contractual authority to require that
the franchisees in the system at any given point repay the Company for any deficits related to marketing and reservations
activities, The Company’s current franchisees are legally obligated to pay any assessment the Company imposes on its
franchisees to obtain reimbursement of such deficit regardless of whether those constituents continue to generate gross
room revenue. The Company has no present intention to accelerate repayment of the deficit from current franchisees. A
payable has been recorded in the Company’s balance sheet within other long-term liabilities related to cumulative
reservation fee revenues received in excess of reservation fee expenses incurred totaling $8.4 million and $3.6 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Cumulative reservation and marketing fees not expended are recorded as a
payable in the financial statements and are carried over to the next fiscal year and expended in accordance with the
franchise agreements.

Other Income and Expenses, Net: Other income and expenscs, net, declined $1.7 million to an expense of $11.3
million for 2006 from $13.0 million for 2005. This decline resulted primarily from a reduction in interest expense from
$15.3 million to $14.1 million and a $0.9 million increase in interest income and the appreciation of investments held in
the non-qualified employee benefit plans. Interest expense declined due to lower outstanding borrowings on the
Company’s variable rate debt offset by higher average interest rates. The Company’s weighted average interest rate as of
December 31, 2006 was 6.6% compared to 6.0% as of December 31, 2005. The increase in investment income and
decline in interest expense was offset by a loss on extinguishment of debt of $0.3 million attributable to the refinancing of
our senior credit facility during the second quarter of 2006 and a $0.4 million gain on sale of investments in the third
quarter of 2005.

Income Taxes: The Company’s effective income tax provision rate was 27.4% for 2006, compared to the effective
income tax provision rate of 33.0% for 2005. The effective income tax rate declined primarily due to the resolution of
provisions for income tax contingencies totaling approximately $12.8 million as well as an increase in the proportion of
foreign income earned over the prior year period, which is taxed at lower rates than statutory federal income tax rates. The
effective income tax rate for 2005 also includes additional tax expense of approximately $1.2 million related to the
Company’s repatriation of foreign earnings and a reduction of income tax expense related to the resolution of certain tax
contingencies of approximately $4.9 million.

Net income for 2006 increased by 28.8% to $112.8 million, and diluted earnings per share increased 27% 1o $1.68
for 2006 from $1.32 reported for 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities declined $7.8 million to $146.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2007 from $153.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, respectively. The decline in cash flows from operating
activities primarily reflects timing of working capital items and lower cash repayments from marketing and reservation
activities compared to the prior year.

Net cash repayments related to marketing and reservation activities totaled $12.0 million during 2007 compared to
repayments of $19.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2006, The Company expects marketing and reservation
activities to be a use of cash between $1.0 million and $3.0 million in 2008.

Cash used in investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $21.3 million, $17.3
million and $24.5 million, respectively. During 2005, investing cash flows included the payment of $7.3 million related to
the Company’s acquisition of Suburban. As a lodging franchisor, the Company has relatively low capital expenditure
requirements. During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, capital expenditures totaled $12.0 million, $7.7
million, and $11.5 million, respectively. Capital expenditures for 2007 primarily include leasehold improvements to the
Company’s facilities as well as upgrades of system-wide property and yield management systems and the purchase of
computer equipment. In addition, the Company provides financing to franchisees for property improvements, hotel
development efforts and other purposes. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company advanced $7.4 million, $2.4 million
and $2.7 million, respectively. At December 31, 2007, the Company had commitments to extend an additional $9.5
million in financing provided certain conditions are met by its franchiseces of which $5.2 million is expected to be
advanced in 2008,
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Financing cash flows relate primarily to the Company’s borrowings under its credit lines, treasury stock purchases
and dividends. On June 16, 2006, the Company entered into a $350 million senior unsccured revolving credit agreement
(the “Revolver™), with a syndicate of lenders. The proceeds from the Revolver were used to refinance and terminate a
previous revolving facility. The Revolver allows the Company to borrow, repay and reborrow revolving loans up to $350
million (which includes swingline loans for up to $20 million and standby letters of credit up to $30 million) until the
scheduled maturity date of June 16, 2011. The Company has the ability to request an increase in available borrowings
under the Revolver by an additional amount of up to $150 million by obtaining the agrecment of the existing lenders to
increase their lending commitments or by adding additional lenders. The rate of interest generally applicable for revolving
loans under the Revolver are, at the Company’s option, equal to either (i) the greater of the prime rate or the federal funds
effective rate plus 50 basis points, or (i) an adjusted LIBOR rate plus a margin between 22 and 70 basis points based on
the Company’s credit rating. The Revolver requires the Company to pay a quarterly facility fee, based upon the credit
rating of the Company, at a rate between 8 and 17 /2 basis points, on the full amount of the commitment (regardless of
usage). The Revolver also requires the payment of a quarterly usage fee, based upon the credit rating of the Company, at a
rate between 10 and 12 '/2 basis points, on the amount outstanding under the commitment, at all times when the amount
borrowed under the Revolver exceeds 50% of the total commitment. The Revolver includes customary financial and other
covenants that require the maintenance of certain ratios including maximum leverage and interest coverage. The Revolver
also restricts the Company’s ability to make certain investments, incur certain debt, and dispose of assets, among other
rastrictions. At December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Revolver. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company had $172.4 million of revolving loans outstanding pursuant to the Revolver.

The proceeds from the Revolver are used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, debt repayment,
stock repurchases, dividends and investments.

In 1998, the Company completed a $100 million senior unsecured note offering (“the Senior Notes™) al a discount of
%0.6 million, bearing a coupon rate of 7.13% with an effective rate of 7.22%. The Company used the net proceeds from
the offering of approximately $99 million to repay amounts outstanding under the Company’s previous credit facility. The
Senior Notes will mature on May [, 2008, with interest to be paid semi-annually. The Senior Notes have been classified as
& long-term liability at December 31, 2007, since the Company’s intention is to repay the Senior Notes upon maturity by
utilizing the available capacity of the Revolver.

The Senior Notes contain a call provision that would require the Company to pay a premium if the Senior Notes
were redeemed prior to their maturity. At December 31, 2007, the cal) provision would have resulted in a premium of $2.4
million.

The Company’s Senior Notes are guaranteed jointly, severally, fully and unconditionally by 7 wholly-owned
domestic subsidiaries. There are no legal or regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends to Choice Hotels
International, Inc. from subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Senior Notes.

The Company has a line of credit with a bank providing up to an aggregate of $10 million of borrowings which is
due upon demand. The line of credit ranks pari-pasu (or equally) with the Revolver. Borrowings under the line of credit
bear interest at rates established at the time of the borrowings based on prime minus 175 basis points. As of December 31,
2007, no amounts were outstanding pursuant to this line of credit.

In the second quarter of 2007, the Company repaid an outstanding note with a batance of $0.4 million by utilizing
proceeds from the Revolver. The note had an original maturity date of January 1, 2009. This loan bore interest based on
seventy percent of prime and required monthly principal and interest payments.

As December 31, 2007, total debt outstanding for the Company was $272.4 million. With the exception of the
Zompany’s Senior Notes, which are scheduled to mature in May 2008, no outstanding debt amounts at December 31,
2007 were scheduled to mature in the twelve months ending December 31, 2008.

Through December 31, 2007, the Company had purchased 38.6 million shares (including 33.0 million prior to the
two-for-one stock split) of its common stock under its share repurchase program at a total cost of $895.9 million.
Considering the effect of the two-for-one stock split in October 2005, the Company has repurchased 71.5 million shares at
an average price of $12.52 per share. In September 2007, the board of directors authorized an increase under the
Company’s existing stock repurchase program to acquire up to an additional 3 million shares of its outstanding common
stock. At December 31, 2007, the Company had approximately 62.1 million shares of common stock outstanding and had
remaining authorization to purchase up to 3.2 million shares. Subsequent to December 31, 2007 through February 29,
2008, the Company had not repurchased any additional shares of its common stock.
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In September 2005, the Company’s board of directors increased the quarterly dividend rate to $0.13, or a 15.6%
increase from the previously quarterly rate of $0.1125. This increase raised the annual dividend rate on the Company’s
common stock from $0.45 to $0.52 per share. Dividends paid in 2005 were approximately $30.2 million. In 2006, the
Company’s board of directors again increased the quarterly dividend rate to $0.15, a 15.4% increase from the previous
quarterly rate of $0.13. This increase raised the annual dividend rate on the Company’s common stock from $0.52 to
$0.60 per share. Dividends paid in 2006 were approximately $35.4 million. In 2007, the Company’s board of directors
again increased the quarterly dividend rate to $0.17, a 13% increase from the previous quarterly rate of $0.15. This
increase raises the annual dividend rate on the Company’s common stock from $0.60 to $0.68 per share. Dividends paid
in 2007 were approximately $40.1 million. Based on our present dividend rate and outstanding share count, aggregate
annual dividends for 2008 would be approximately $42.0 million,

The Company expects to continue to return value to its shareholders through a combination of dividends and share
repurchases, subject to market and other conditions.

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a $3.7 million charge in selling, general and administrative
expenses for employee termination benefits relating to the termination of certain executive officers. Termination benefits
include salary continuation of approximately $2.5 million, SERP curtailment expenses of $0.2 million and $1.0 million of
accelerated share based compensation. As a result of those separations, the Company will remit to those officers
approximately $1.5 million of cash termination benefits over the next twelve months as well as $1.0 million of deferred
compensation and retirement plan obligations.

As of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, the Company had $7.1 million and $6.7 million, respectively of total
unrecognized tax benefits of which approximately $4.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively would affect the effective
tax rate if recognized. These unrecognized tax benefits relate principally to state tax filing positions and stock-based
compensation deductions. The Company believes it is reasonably possible it will recognize tax benefits of up to
$1.6 million within the next twelve months. This isdue tothe anticipated lapse of applicable statutes of
limitations regarding state tax positions and stock-based compensation deductions.

During 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Suburban Franchise Holding Company, Inc. (“Suburban™)
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Suburban Franchise Systems, Inc. Beginning on the third anniversary of the closing, the
merger provided for contingent cash payments of up to $5.0 million to be made upon the satisfaction of certain criteria.
During 2007, the Company has determined that the performance conditions can no longer be satisfied and therefore the
contingent consideration will not be earned.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007

Payment due by period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
{in millians)

Long-term debt™ .._............ovorierime et §2748 $ 24 § — $272.4 58 —
Operating lease OblIgations........ccovieeiererinreiniisic e 329 5.8 10.8 10.5 5.8
Purchase obligations ...t 0.5 0.5 — — —
Other long-term Liabilities™ ......co.oovcoivoiioeoee e 57.6 — 20.2 6.4 31.0
Total contractual cash obligations.........covvev e $3658 $ 87 § 310 $ 2893 $ 368

() Long-term debt amounts include interest on fixed rate debt obligations. The Senior Notes have been classified as a
long term liability, since the Company’s intention is to repay the Senior Notes upon maturity by utilizing the
available capacity of the Revolver.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits and the rclated interest and penalties totaled $8.0 million at
December 31, 2007 and is not reflected in the Contractual Obligations table. We have several open tax positions, and
it is possible that the amount of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits could change over the next year. While it
is possible that one or more of these open positions may be resolved in the next year, it is not anticipated that a
significant impact to the unrecognized tax benefit balance will occur.

(2}

The Company believes that cash flows from operations and available financing capacity are adequate to meet
expected future operating, investing and financing needs of the business.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements: In March 2006, the Company guaranteed $1 million of a bank loan funding a
franchisee’s construction of a Cambria Suites in Green Bay, Wisconsin. The guaranty was scheduled to expire in
September 2010, In February 2007, the Company was released from its obligations under the March 2006 guaranty, and
subsequently, on May 3, 2007, issued a new $1 million guaranty for a bank loan funding the construction for the same
franchisee’s Cambria Suites in Green Bay, Wisconsin, The guaranty expires in August 2010. The Company has received
personal guarantees from several of the franchisee’s principal owners related to the repayment of any amounts paid by the
Company under the guaranty.

Inflation: Inflation has been moderate in recent years and has not had a significant impact on our business.

Seasonality: The hotel industry is seasonal in nature. For most of the Company’s franchised hotels, demand is lower
in December through March than during the remainder of the year. Qur principal source of revenues is franchise fees
based on the gross room revenues of our franchised propertics. The Company’s franchise fee revenues and operating
income reflect the industry’s seasonality and historically have been lower in the first quarter than in the second, third or
fourth quarters.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting policies comply with principles generally accepted in the United States. We have described below
those policies that we believe are critical and require the use of complex judgment or significant estimates in their
application. Additional discussion of these policies is included in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition.

The Company accounts for initial, relicensing and continuing franchise fees in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™} No. 45, “Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.” We recognize continuing
franchise fees, including royalty, marketing and reservations fees, when earned and receivable from our franchisees.
Franchise fees are typically based on a percentage of gross room revenues of each franchisee. Qur cstimate of the
allowance for uncollectible royalty fees is charged to selling, general and administrative expense.

The Company may also enter into master development agreements (“MDAs™) with developers that grant limited
exclusive development rights and preferential franchise agreement terms for one-time, non-rcfundable fees. When these
fees are not contingent upon the number of agreements executed under the MDA, the Company accounts for these up-
front fees in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (‘SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB No. 104™) and
recognizes the up-front fees over the MDAs’ contractual life.

Initial franchise and relicensing fees are recognized, in most instances, in the period the related franchise agreement
is executed because the initial franchise and relicensing fees are non-refundable and the Company has no continuing
obligations related to the franchisee. We defer the initial franchise and relicensing fee revenue related to franchise
agreements which include incentives until the incentive criteria are met or the agreement is terminated, whichever occurs
first.

We account for brand solutions revenues from endorsed vendors in accordance with SAB 104. SAB 104 provides
guidance on the recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial statements. Pursuant to SAB 104, the
Company recognizes brand solutions revenues when the services are performed or the product delivered, evidence of an
arrangement exists, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. We defer the recognition of brand
solutions revenues related to certain upfront fees and recognize them over a period corresponding to the Company’s
estimate of the life of the arrangement.

Marketing and Reservation Revenues and Expenses.

The Company records marketing and reservation revenues and expenses in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF™) Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent,” which requires that
these revenues and expenses be recorded gross. [n addition, net advances to and repayments from the franchise system for
marketing and reservation activities are presented as cash flows from operating activities.

Reservation fees and marketing fees not expended in the current year arc carried over to the next fiscal year and
expended in accordance with the franchise agreements. Shortfall amounts are similarly recovered in subsequent years.
Cumulative excess or shortfall amounts from the operation of these programs are recorded as a marketing or reservation
fee payable or receivable. Under the terms of the franchise agreements, the Company may advance capital as necessary
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for marketing and reservation activities and recover such advances through future fees. Our current assessment is that the
credit risk associated with the marketing fee receivable is mitigated due to our contractual right to recover these amounts
from a large geographically dispersed group of franchisees.

Choice Privileges is our frequent guest incentive marketing program. Choice Privileges enables members to earn
points based on their spending levels at participating brands and, to a lesser degree, through participation in affiliated
partners’ programs, such as those offered by credit card companies. The points may be redeemed for free accommodations
or other benefits. Points cannot be redeemed for cash.

The Company collects a percentage of program members’ room revenue from participating franchises. Revenues are
deferred in an amount equal to the fair value of the future redemption obligation. A third-party actuary estimates the
eventual redemption rates and point values using various actuarial methods. These judgmental factors determine the
required liability for outstanding points. Upon redemption of the points, the Company recognizes the previously deferred
revenue as well as the corresponding expense relating to the cost of the awards redeemed. Revenues in excess of the
estimated future redemption obligation are recognized when earned to reimburse the Company for costs incurred to
operate the program, including administrative costs, marketing, promotion and performing member services. Costs to
operate the program, excluding estimated redemption values, arc expensed when incurred.

Impairment Policy.

We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impairments on an annual basis, or during the year if an
event or other circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the carrying amount of the asset. We evaluate
impairment of goodwill by comparing the fair value of our net assets with the carrying amount of goodwill. We evaluate
the potential impairment of property and equipment and other long-lived assets, including franchise rights on an annual
basis or whenever an event or other circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the carrying value of the
asset. Our evaluation is based upon future cash flow projections, These projections reflect management’s best assumptions
and estimates. Significant management judgment is involved in developing these projections, and they include inherent
uncertainties, If different projections had been used in the current period, the balances for non-current assets could have
been materially impacted. Furthermore, if management uses different projections or if different conditions occur in future
periods, future-operating results could be materially impacted.

Stock Compensation.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004),
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requires that compensation cost relating to share based
payment transactions be recognized in financial statements based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments
issued. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective application
method and began applying its provisions to: (i) new awards, (ii) awards modified subsequent to the adoption date and
(iii) outstanding awards for which all requisite service had not yet been rendered. Under the modified-prospective
application method, compensation costs were recognized on the unvested portion of awards beginning on January 1, 2006
based on the grant-date fair value used for pro-forma disclosures under SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure” over the remaining vesting period. Under this transition method, prior period
results have not been restated. The adoption of SFAS No. 123R reduced operating income and net income by
approximately $0.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively, and had no impact on earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s operating income, net income or
reported earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 since the Company has been expensing share-based
awards granted since January 1, 2003 under the provisions of SFAS No. 123. Cash flows from financing activities for the
years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 includes $6.2 million and $12.7 million, respectively in excess tax benefits
from stock-based compensation resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. Under SFAS No. 123, cash flows from
operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2005 included $9.9 million of excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation. Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company accounted for stock-based awards under APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock [ssued to Employees” (“APB No. 257).

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, no stock-based compensation cost was reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income related to the grant of stock options which occurred prior to January 1, 2003, because
the Company accounted for those grants under APB Opinion No. 25 and all such stock options granted had an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Therefore, the cost related to stock-
based employee compensation included in the determination of net income for the year ended 2005 is less than that which
would have been recognized if the fair value based method had been applied to all awards since the original effective date
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of SFAS No. 123. The effect on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 148 to all stock compensation for the year ended 2005 is set forth in Note | to our
onsolidated financial statemments.

Income Taxes.

Our income tax expense and related balance sheet amounts involve significant management estimates and
judgments. Judgments regarding realization of deferred tax assets and the ultimate outcome of tax-related contingencies
represent key items involved in the determination of income tax expense and related balance sheet accounts.

The Company does not provide additional United States income taxes on undistributed earnings of consolidated
foreign subsidiaries included in retained earnings. Such earnings could become taxable upon the sale or liquidation of
these foreign subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The Company’s intent is for such earnings to be reinvested by the
subsidiaries. On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA”) was signed into law, The AJCA
included a temporary on-time incentive for United States multinational corporations to repatriate accumulated income of
foreign subsidiaries by providing an 85 percent dividends received deduction for qualifying dividends from controlled
foreign corporations. The Company repatriated earnings pursuant to AJCA totaling $23.5 million in the fourth quarter of
2005 resulting in an income tax provision of $1.2 million.

Deferred tax assets represent items to be used as a tax deduction or credit in future tax returns for which we have
already properly recorded the tax benefit in our income statement. Realization of our deferred tax assets reflects our tax
planning strategies. We establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets that we do not believe will be realized.

Tax assessments and resolution of tax contingencies may arise several years after tax returns have been filed.
Predicting the outcome of such tax assessments involves uncertainty; however, we believe that recorded tax liabilities
adequately account for our analysis of probable outcomes.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097, (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes” by prescribing a recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the
financial statements. FIN 48 provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as required. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 was
recorded in retained earnings and other accounts as applicable. Uncertain tax benefits of §7.1 million were recorded
against tax contingencies and additional paid in capital as of January 1, 2007, which represents a $3.1 million increase in
tax contingencies recorded as of December 31, 2006. Accrued interest and penalties of $0.1 million were recorded against
retained earnings as of January 1, 2007.

Estimated interest and penalties related to the uncertain tax benefits are classified as a component of income tax
expense in the consolidated statements of income and totaled $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Accrued
interest and penalties were $1.1 million and $1.3 million as of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007.

As of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, the Company had $7.1 million and $6.7 million, respectively of total
unrecognized tax benefits of which approximately $4.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively would affect the effective
tax rate if recognized. Additions of $1.3 million represented unrecognized tax benefits for current year tax positions
related to state tax positions and stock-based compensation deductions. Reductions of $1.6 million were due to lapse of
applicable statutes of limitations. The Company believes it is reasonably possible it will recognize tax benefits of up to
$1.6 million within the next twelve months, This isdue tothe anticipated lapse of applicable statutes of
limitations regarding state tax positions and stock-based compensation deductions.

The Company’s uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to examination by the relevant tax
authorities. The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple
state and foreign jurisdictions. The Company has substantially conciuded all U.S. federal income tax matters for years
through 2003. Substantially all material state and local and foreign income tax matters have been concluded for years
through 2003, U.S. federal income tax returns for 2004 through 2006 are currently open for examination.

Pension, Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

The Company sponsors two non-qualified retirement savings and investment plans for certain employees and senior
executives. Employee and Company contributions are maintained in separate irrevocable trusts. Legally, the assets of the
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trusts remain those of the Company; however, access to the trusts’ assets is severely restricted. The trusts’ cannot be
revoked by the Company or an acquirer, but the assets are subject to the claims of the Company’s general creditors. The
participants do not have the right to assign or transfer contractual rights in the trusts. The Company accounts for these
plans in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF™) No. 97-14, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation
Arrangements Where Amounts Earned Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested.” Pursuant to EITF 97-14, as of
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Company had recorded a deferred compensation liabitity of $36.5
million and $32.9 million, respectively. The change in the deferred compensation obligation related to changes in the fair
value of the diversified investments held in trust and to earnings credited to participants is recorded in compensation
expense. The diversified investments held in the trusts were $34.5 million and $31.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively, and are recorded at their fair value, based on quoted market prices. The change in the
fair value of the diversified assets held in trust is recorded in accordance with SFAS 115 as trading security income (loss)
and is included in other income and expenses, net in the accompanying statements of income.

Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),” (“SFAS
No. 158”) which requires employers to: (a) recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a plan’s over
funded status or a liability for a plan’s under funded status; (b) measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine
its funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year; and (c) recognize changes in the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur. Those changes were reported in comprehensive
income of the Company. As a result of this adoption, the Company increased its pension benefit obligations at
December 31, 2006 by approximately $2.6 million with a corresponding change, net of tax, reporied in comprehensive
income. See Notes 1 and 16 to our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™ (“SFAS No. 157”) which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. In November 2007, the FASB agreed to
partially defer the effective date, for one year, of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities, except those that
are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. The Company is currently
cvaluating the impact that SFAS No. 157 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”
(“SFAS No. 159”) which provides reporting entitics an option to report certain financial instruments and other items at
fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of a
reporting entity’s first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect to elect the fair value
measurement option of any financial assets or liabilities at the present time.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (“SFAS 1607), “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—An Amendment of ARB No. 51”. SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards
for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of
this statement will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS Standards No. 141 (Revised 2007) (“SFAS 141R™), “Business
Combinations”. SFAS 141R will change the accounting for business combinations by requiring an acquiring entity to
recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition-date fair value with limited
exceptions. SFAS 141R will also change the accounting treatment and disclosure for certain specific items in a business
combination. SFAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Choice Hotels International, Inc. and its subsidiaries (together “the Company”) is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on
management’s assessment under those criteria, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

Munagement’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report which appears herein.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Choice Hotels International, Inc. and subsidiaries

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of
shareholders’ deficit and comprehensive income and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Choice Hotels International, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in [nternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying "Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting.” Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Wa@op‘uul’

McLean, Virginia
February 29, 2008
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CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

{In thousands, except
per share amounts)

REVENUES:
ROYALIY fCES .ottt e e $ 236,346 £211,645 $ 187,340
Initial franchise and relicensing fees ........ccovvvrner e 33,389 29,629 25,388
Brand SOMIONS ......oii e es ittt rr et ts e et bt e e e sbsssesrmeee s s re e e e snresnannees 16,283 13,945 13,382
Marketing and reservation...........ccoo e 316,827 273,267 237,822
HOtel OPETAtIONS ©..vvvvevvreceeirrnierevnre e bdsa bbb 4,692 4,505 4,293
711 T~ RO YU OO UUUSU OO USSP OO OO 7,957 6,912 3,873
TOtAl FEVEIMUES .......oeocieiiiieeirieireseesiarsrsreenne s b e e ine e s be s seeemesenseeennessare sirbans 615,494 539,903 472,098
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and adminisStrative o........cc.ooveecvverienin s e eeees 101,590 87,112 78,250
Depreciation and amortization ... 8,637 9,705 9,051
Marketing and reservation...........e oo rceiee et 316,827 273,267 237,822
HOtEl OPEIATIONS .....c.ooveieie ettt ean st s 3,241 3,194 3,225
Taotal operating eXpenses ...........c.coovvnieiiceriiccinn s 430,295 373,278 328,348
OPETALIME HMCOMIC . ....ooiiiii e recinitei it sn et sn s a e s s r s ras e re s sesm e sesaeesssiesne e e snens 185,199 166,625 143,750
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
INLETEST EXPRIISE ..ottt e m e es e nan s 14,293 14,098 15,325
Interest and other INVeStMENt iNCOME .....oouir i e eerree e rrresecrree s sene s e rmeeeeeans {1,750) (2,041) (1,094)
Equity in net income of affiliates ... {1,230) (1,052) (803)
Loss on extinguishment of debl..........c.ccooniiniiiceecrerre e — 342 _
0.1 7= U U O OO U PO UU VO UU SO PPN — — (420)
Other income and eXpenses, Net...........ccccoovviiniiiine e 11,313 11,347 13,008
T1ICOME DETOre IMCOMIE TAXES ...oeeeieeteieree et ie e et e e e eeeeeaeeeeeateeaeaanneeeesavssesaberarssaesnnneans 173,886 155,278 130,742
TIICOINME BANES ..ottt et ees bt eatseteseeebea e ebstabsesbsessansasnaassseseansaanseansesasesmnescannmenreen 62,585 42,491 43,177
IN L RILCOIINC «..oveveeeeeeeceeeee e eeees s e e eeenaeeesnreteseeseessasnesa s ee e e neseeameeaaaseteesiasssesbbaeanssssessnnnns $111,301 $112,787 $ 87,565
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic............cccooiiinae 64,213 65,387 64,429
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted....................ccoooiiinnn 65,331 67,050 66,336
Basic earnings per share...........cceiiiii e $ 173 8 1.72 $ 1.36
Diluted earnings Per ShATe ..o e $ L7 $ 168 $ 132
Cash dividends declared per Share. ... s $ 0.4 $ 056 $ 0485

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

49




CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006

(In thousands, cxcept
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash €qUIVAIENES .............ocoieiiiieecc ettt st s s ma et s bt amsens $ 40377 § 35841
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,213 and $3,937, respectively)........... 40,855 41,694
Deferred INCOMIE LAXES. ..o crrce e ererrs s e o te e tansse e sae s saeasee e et e enresar e neanerararsearesssesrens 2,387 1,790
Investments, employee benefit plans, at fair value........oooiiii i 1,002 —
INCOME tAXES FECEIVADIE L. v ettt oo e e e b e e bt s s s bt e eeeeeeeeeeesereeasnrs 1,698 —
OthEr CUITENIL ASSELS - veeeeeieiieiie ettt ee sttt e ce et ce st et e bevas it enees e e e e s e smeebasaesyssesennsenn 13,632 7,757
TOLA] CUTTEIE ASSEES....... .ottt ittt et et e et eee e s s es bt e et s e tb s e ebbeeemsee s senasaeares 105,951 87,082
Property and equipment, @t COSE, MET ...t st sb s 43,887 42,802
GOOAWIIL ...ooeoeee sttt ettt r e aa e s s s e e se bbb e s abase e se s e e be s e e st beseaesenene 65,813 65,813
Franchise rights and other identifiable intangibles, Net........cccocvivmrviiin s ee et 31,979 35,509
Receivable—marketing 888 .....cov it 6,782 6,662
Investments, employee benefit plans, at fair VAU .......c..oooviiriieee v 33,488 31,529
DIEfEITEU IMCOMIE LAXES -.ooeeiiiiiii ittt ersveee e e e en et erssureseeee s cas e eaeeaseerertsresaansesse s esensansaseaeateseenenaneas 29,205 22,451
OTET BSSEES ..ot bbbt s et a s 11,279 11,461
TOAL BSSEES - oooereisiiiiiee e e ste st e e e srerae e e s e s e et et arasanssansaseeesae e e st arntsrneraranbaansaansaane $ 328,384 $ 303,309

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities

Current portion of Tong-1erm deb ..o e $ — $ 146
ACCOUNTS PAYADBIE L.v ittt sttt 55,288 41,816
Accrued expenses AN OthET ... ..o e et et see e s r e et ene e 40,907 45,306
DEfEITEA TRVEIIUE .ot eeie ettt e e et s et e et et e asate e tee e s essbe e se s aanse e nbesorrsssntessaeaannennses 48,660 47,167
INCOME taXES PAYADIE ..ot 1,659 5,356
Deferred compensation and retirement plan obligations ...........ccocccvive i 1,002 —
Total current Habilities...........c.oovviiiir s 147,516 139,791
LONE-TEIIN @B ..ot e bbbt e ere et sba et e snen 272,378 172,350
Deferred compensation and retirement plan obligations ..........coece v 43,132 40,101
OMher HaBIIEIES oov.veeciviiiieie sttt bbb bt c b 22,419 13,407
Total Habilities ... ettt 485,445 365,689

Commitments and Contingencies

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 160,000,000 shares authorized; 95,345,362 shares issued at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and 62,091,679 and 66,355,553 shares outstanding at December 31,

2007 and 2000, FeSPECHIVEIY . ......viiciirr et e et st bbb e s e s aasa s basnanesre e ens 621 664
Additional paid-IN-CApItAl ......ccoriviei i e e e s s rane 86,243 81,689
Accumulated other comprehensive (L0SS) INCOIME ....c.oocveiiiririrne e 346 (772)
Treasury stock (33,253,683 and 28,989,809 shares at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively), at

L4 3 U O TS O OO S SO PO UUUROPPPON (798,110) (627,311)
RETAINEA CAITHNES ....oeevevietiieeet et rieb et et eas b e st et ae b e s b stas et b e st emen s e e e besnanensab et enenee 553,839 483,350

Total shareholders” deficit ... (157,061) (62,380)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit...............cccocooiiiii e $ 328384 § 303,309

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income . § 111,301 $  H12,787 § 87,565
Adjastments to rcconctlc net income to net cash pmvndcd by opcratmg activities:
Depreciation and amortization .. 8,617 9,705 9,051
Gain on sale of assets ... —_— — (386)
Provision for bad debts 905 (163) 391
MNon-cash stock compensanun and other churges 11,392 10,644 5.288
Loss on extinguishment of debt ..o —_ 342 —
Non-cash interest and other (income) loss..... 29 (1,576) (294}
Dividends received from equity method investees ... 1,245 1,095 681
Equity in net income of BffIHAIES ..ot e e et e et e s (1,230) (1,052) (803)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net uf'acquisilions:
Receivables... 671 (3.007) (2,415)
Rcccwablc—marketmg and reservation fees, net. 11,997 19,049 19,393
Accounts payable ... 13,466 6,888 1,923
Accrued expenses and olher.........‘......‘......‘... (5,364) (7,631) 12,594
Income taxes payable/receivable.......iin (5,395) 2,857 11,250
Deferred INCOME LAXES ..o eeemrereeerees (7,651} {17,214} {13,318)
Deferred revenue ... 1,493 15,036 8,822
Qther assets.. (2,559) (1.729) (2,040)
OURET HBDIIEHES ....cvvv v vesarveesresssersevs s seserassasessrsmees carcoessecs e creas meae sesmens soses sasms s emens eras seserassmmnnsremm s et seneserreetbsssans 7,198 7.892 (4.414)
Net cash provided by operating activities ... ... e e 146,135 153,928 133,588
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Inv2stment in property and equipment.......... (11,963) (7,707) (11.504)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ........ (340) (826) (7.314)
Pur:hases of investments, employee bencf't plans (B,686) {10,515) (8,929)
Proceeds from sales of investments, employee benefit plans... 6,049 3,728 3,539
Issuance of notes receivable.....oocene. (7,395) (2,433) (2,667)
Collection of notes receivable............. 1,806 868 462
Proceeds from disposilion of assets ... — — 2.811
Otber items, Net ..o (728) {446) (929)
Net cash used in INVESTING ACHVIIES ..ot smas s et s e (21,2609 (17,331} (24,531)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments of long-term debt... (422) {146) (150)
Net borrowings (repayments) pursuam o rcvolvmt, crcdn facﬂlly 100,199 (101,500) (55.129)
DeDt issuance costs... . _ (477) (193)
Excess tax benefits from smck based compcnsauon . 6,209 12,699 —_
Purchase oftrcasury stock (185,935) (1,365) (49,154)
Dividends paid.... (40,139 (35,386) (30,241)
Proceeads from exercise ofslock OPTIONS. ststtssstss s sab s sab s bbbt 2o sme e s en s s e e A et s ne e b b b8 b a8 5,749 8,498 14,213
Net cash used in financing ACHIVILIES ..o e e (114,339) (117,677) (120,654)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ... 10,536 18,920 (11.597)
Casih and cash equivalents at beginning of period.........c.oooomeiiieie e 35,841 16,921 28,518
Cash and cash equivalents 2t end of PerfOf............c.o.oeoeeecee oot s s rse s e s eens s eenssoraesoeen 5 46377 § 0 35841 § 16921
Supplemental disclesure of cash flow information:
Cash payments during the year for:
[ncome taxes, net of refunds... $ 68969 $ 56,629 § 50173
[nterest ... $ 14,001 ¥ 14,346 § 16,053
Non-cash inv estmg activities:
Acquisitions, liabilities assUMEd ... et e e bbb ear — $ 1,701 3 5,526
Non-cash financing activities:
Declaration of dividends .. $ 40,726 § 36,859 £ 31410
Income tax benefit rc.alucd rcl.m:d to slock opuons exermscd —_ — 3 9,872
| Issuance of restricted shares of common stock................. $ 6,343 1y 7,005 A R.491
Issuance of treasury stock to employee stock purchase plan........o.. S 604 3 546 —_

' The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{In thousands, except share amounts)

Common Common Accumulated
Stock - Stock - Additional Cther
Shares Par Paid-in- Comprehensive Deferred Treasury Comprehensive Retained
Outstanding Vatue Capital Income (Loss) Compensation Stock income Earnings Total
Balance as of December 31, 2004 .o 32312433 § 323 0§ 76,869 1400 $ (1.600) $ (631.312) $ 351,267 § (203,053
Comprehensive income
Net income. — — —_— — — — $  R7.565 87.565 87,569
Other comprehenswe income, nel of tax
Fareign currency translation adjustments..... — —_ — — — — {351) — (35
Amortization of deferred gain on hcdgc.
net of taxes.. — — — — — — (67) — (67
Unrealized toss on available for sale
securities, net of Xes. ..o..coceveeeecveeenee. — —_ — — — — (25) —_ (23
Rectassification adjustment for gains on “
available for sale securities included
i1 NET ICOIIE. v e — — —_ — — — (98) — (S'ﬁr
Other comprehensive income......oo.oeeevunene. — — — {541) — — (341) — —
Comprehensive income........ouievv oo e oo e S R7024
Exercise of stock options ... . 1,275,737 13 2,087 — — 21,997 — 24,097
Issuance and cancellation of restnctcd stock 149,283 1 (7.876) _ — 7.875 — —_
Stock compensation related to stock options.............. — — 1,806 — —_ — — 1.804
Amortization of deferred compensation related 1o
restricted stock grants — — 2,680 — 802 — — 3.48]
Dividends declared.. — — — — — — (31,410) (31,411
Treasury purchascs.. (1,107 .466) {n — — - 49,111) — (49,12
Two-for-one common stock split. 32,589,654 326 (326) — — — — —
Balance as of December 31, 2005 ..........ocooincecneees 65219641 § 652 § 75,240 5 859 5 (798) § (650,551) § 407422 3 (167174
Comprehensive income
NEL ICOMIE et ecene et et t1 e ee et ereresee e e mmamee s —_ — —_ —_ —_— — $ 112,787 112,787 112,787
Other cumprchcnswe income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments ... —_ — — — — — 314 —_ 314
Amortization of deferred gain on hedge,
net of taxes ., — — — — — — {7) — (67
Other comprehensive income —_ — —_ 247 — — 247 —_ —
Cemprehensive income § 113,034
Exercise of s1ock options .........c.cveoeeeevrecevemeesens s 1,037,979 11 3,249 —_ _ 17,937 — 21,197
Issuance and cancellation of restricted stock..... 114,500 1 {6.099) —_ — 6,098 — —
Stock compensation related 1o stock aptions.... —_ — 4,023 — — — —_ 4,023
Amartization of deferred compensation related to
restricted stock grants. — — 6,074 — — — — 6,074
Dividends declared.. — — — — — — (36,859) (36,859
Treasury purchases.. (28,791) — — — — {1.341) —_ (1,331
Issuance of treasury shares .. 12,226 — — — — 546 — 546
Reclassification required by S S No, 123R . — — (798) —_ T9R — — -
Adjustment te initially apply SFAS No. 158, net nf
tax of $1.1 million ., . — — — _(1.879) — — — (1,878]
Balance as of December 31, 2006 66,355,553 § 664 § 81,689 5 (772 $  — 5 (627311 S 483350 % (62,380'
Comprehensive income
Net income ., - — — — — — — $ 11,301 111,301 111,301
Other mmprehenslve inwme, net ol' lax'
Amortization of pension related costs,
netof tax ........
Prior service costs, — — — — —_ — 27 — 27
Actuarial loss — — — — — — 37 — 37,
Pension curtailment and
remeasurement, net of tax —_ — — —_ — — 758 — 758|
Actuarial pension loss, net of tax. — — — — — —_ 319) — (319
Foreign currency translation
adjustments .. . — —— — — — — 682 — 682
Amortization of deferred gnin on hedge,
net of taxes.. - —_ —_ — — —_ — ©7) — (67
Other comprehensi —_ — —_ 1,118 —_ — 1,118 — —_
Comprehensive ingome............ccceeeevecrcee s § 112419
Exercise of stock options .. 565,261 [ 2,297 — — 9,508 11,811
Issuance and cancellation o:' reslrlcted stock .. 113,684 1 (4,908) — — 4,907 — -
Stock compensation related to stock options.......... — — 3378 — — — — 33718
Amortization of deferred compensation related
to restricted stock grants............oooceeernenecens — — 6,864 — — — — 6,364
Dividends declared.... — — _ — — — (40,726) {40,726
Treasury purchases... (4.959,378) (50} — — — (185.818) — (185,868
Issnznce of treasary shares ., 16,559 — — — — 604 — 604
Cumulative impact of the adoption of FIN 48 — — {3,077 — — — {86} (3,163
Balance as of December 31, 2007.. 6250915679 s 621 % 86,243 3 Mé 3} — 3 _(798,110) $ 553839 § (157061

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies
Company Information

Choice Hotels International, Inc. and subsidiaries (together “the Company™) is in the business of hotel franchising.
As of December 31, 2007, the Company had franchise agreements representing 5,570 open hotels and 1,093 hotels under
development in 49 states, the District of Columbia and 39 countries and territories outside the United States under the
brand names: Comfort Inn®, Comfort Suites¥, Quality® , Clarion®, Sleep Inn®, Econo Lodge®, Rodeway Inn®, MainStay
Suites®, Suburban Extended Stay Hotel®, Cambria Suites® and Flag Hotels®.

Our direct lodging property real estate exposure at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was limited to three company-
owned MainStay Suites® hotels.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Choice Hotels International, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

On October 30, 2006, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Choice Hotels Franchise GmbH (*CHG”), a
franchising business operating principally in Germany and surrounding countries. The results of CHG have been
consolidated since Qctober 30, 2006.

During 2006, the Company formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Choice Hotels France SAS (“CHF”), which acquired
the assets of a franchising business in continental Europe. The acquisition was completed on November 30, 2006 and the
results of CHF have been included since that date.

During 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Suburban Franchise Holding Company, Inc. (“Suburban™)
(the “Suburban Transaction”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Suburban Franchise Systems, Inc. The results of Suburban
have been consolidated since September 28, 2005.

Reclassifications in Consolidated Financial Statements

Marketing and reservation revenues and expenses in the prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation with no effect on previously reported net income or shareholders’ deficit.

Revenue Recognition

The Company accounts for initial, relicensing and continuing franchise fees in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 45, “Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.” The Company enters into
franchise agreements to provide franchisees with various marketing services, a centralized reservation system and limited
non-exclusive rights to utilize the Company’s registered tradenames and trademarks. These agreements typically have an
initial term of up to twenty years with provisions permitting franchisees to terminate after five, ten, or fifteen years under
certain circumstances. In most instances, initial franchise and relicensing fees are recognized upon execution of the
franchise agreement because the initial franchise and relicensing fees are non-refundable and the Company has no
continuing obligations related to the franchisee. The initial franchise and relicensing fees related to executed franchise
agreements which include incentives, such as future potential rebates, are deferred and recognized when the incentive
criteria are met or the agreement is terminated, whichever occurs first.

The Company may also enter into master development agreements (“MDAs”™) with developers that grant limited
exclusive development rights and preferential franchise agreement terms for one-time, non-refundable fees. When these
fizes are not contingent upon the number of agreements executed under the MDA, the Company accounts for these up-
front fees in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (‘'SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB No. 104”) and
rzcognizes the up-front fees over the MDAS’ contractual life.
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CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

Royalty fees, which are typically based on a percentage of gross room revenues of each franchisee, are recorded
when earned and receivable from the franchisee. An estimate of uncollectible royalty fees is charged to bad debt expense
and included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

The Company generates brand solutions revenues from endorsed vendors. Brand solutions revenues are generally
carned based on the level of goods or services purchased from endorsed vendors by hotel franchise owners and hotel
guests who stay in the Company’s franchised hotels. The Company accounts for brand solutions revenues in accordance
with SAB No. 104 which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial
statements. The Company recognizes brand solutions revenues when the services are performed or the product is
delivered, evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. SAB No. 104
requires the Company to defer the recognition of brand selution’s revenues related to upfront fees. Such upfront fees are
generally recognized over a period corresponding to the Company’s estimate of the life of the arrangement.

Marketing and Reservation Revenues and Expenses

The Company’s franchise agreements require the payment of certain marketing and reservation fecs, which are used
exclusively by the Company for expenses associated with providing franchise services such as national marketing, media
advertising, central reservation systems and technology services. The Company is contractually obligated to expend the
marketing and reservation fees it collects from franchisees in accordance with the franchise agreements; as such, no
income or loss to the Company is generated. In accordance with our contracts, we include in marketing and reservation
expenses an allocation of costs for certain activities, such as human resources, legal, accounting, etc., required to carry out
marketing and reservation activities.

The Company records marketing and reservation revenues and cxpenses in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF) Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent,” which requires that
these revenues and expenses be recorded gross. In addition, net advances from and repayments related to marketing and
reservation activities are presented as cash flows from operating activities,

Choice Privileges is our principal frequent guest loyalty program. Choice Privileges enables members to earn points
based on their spending levels at participating brands and, to a lesser degree, through participation in affiliated partners’
programs, such as those offered by credit card companies. The peints, which we accumulate and track on the members’
behalf, may be redeemed for free accommodations, airline frequent flier program miles or other benefits. Points cannot be
redeemed for cash.

We provide Choice Privileges as a marketing program to participating hotels. The cost of operating the program,
including the estimated cost of award redemptions, are charged to the participating hotels by collecting a percentage of
program members’ room revenue from participating franchises. Revenues are deferred equal to the estimated fair value of
the future redemption obligation. A third-party actuary estimates redemption rates and point values using various actuarial
methods. These judgmental factors determine the required liabitity for unredeemed points. Upon redemption of the points,
the Company recognizes the previously deferred revenue as well as the corresponding expense relating to the cost of the
awards redeemed. Revenues in excess of the estimated future redemption obligation are recognized when earned to
reimburse the Company for costs incurred to operate the program, including administrative costs, marketing, promotion
and performing member services. Costs to operate the program, excluding estimated redemption values, are expensed
when incurred.
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CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk

Accounts receivable consist primarily of franchise and related fees due from hotel franchises and are recorded at the
invoiced amount. The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our
existing accounts receivable, We determine the allowance considering historical write-off experience and a review of aged
receivable balances. However, the Company considers its credit risk associated with trade receivables and the receivable
for marketing fees to be partially mitigated due 1o the dispersion of these receivables across a large number of
geographically diverse franchisees.

The Company records bad debt expense in selling, general and administrative expenses and marketing and
reservation expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income based on its assessment of the ultimate
rezlizability of reccivables considering historical collection experience and the economic environment. When the
Company determines that an account is not collectible, the account is written-off to the associated allowance for doubtful
accounts.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as the advertising occurs in accordance with American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Statement of Position 93-7, “Reporting on Advertising Costs.” Advertising expense was
$91.4 million, $74.4 million and $62.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Przpaid advertising at December 31, 2007 and 2006 totaled $3.1 million and $2.7 million, respectively, and is included
within other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The Company includes advertising costs
primarily in marketing and reservation expenses on the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, $12.5 million and $7.8 million, respectively, of book
overdrafts representing outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit are included in accounts pavable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets,

The Company maintains cash balances in banks, which, at times, may exceed the limits of amounts insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; however, because deposits are maintained at high quality financial institutions,
the Company does not believe that there is a significant risk of loss of uninsured amounts.

Capitalization Policies

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or their useful lives. Major
renovations, replacements and interest incurred during construction are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of property,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation are climinated from the accounts and any related gain or loss is recognized
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Maintenance, repairs and minor replacements are charged to
expense as incurred.

Impairment Policy

The Company evaluates the impairment of property and equipment and other long-lived assets, including franchise
rights and other definite-lived intangibles, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 states that an impairment of long-lived assets has occurred whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability is
measured based on net, undiscounted expected cash flows. Assets are considered to be impaired if the net, undiscounted
expected cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the assets. Impairment charges are recorded based upon the
difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the asset. The Company did not record any impairment on
long-lived assets during the three years ended December 31, 2007.




CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS——(continued)

The Company evatuates the impairment of goodwili and trademarks with indefinite lives in accordance with SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which requires intangible assets to be assessed on at least an annual
basis for impairment using a fair value basis. Because the Company has one reporting unit pursuant to SFAS No. 142 the
fair value of the Company’s net assets are used to determine if goodwill may be impaired. The Company did not record
any impairment of goodwill during the three years ended December 31, 2007, based on assessments performed by the
Company. In addition, the Company did not record any impairment of trademarks during the three years ended
December 31, 2007.

The Company evaluates the collectibility of notes receivable in accordance with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors For Impairment of a Loan.” SFAS No. 114 states that a loan is impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that a creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. All amounts due according to the contractual terms means that both the contractual interest payments and the
contractual principal payments of a loan will be collected as scheduled in the loan agreement. The Company reviews
outstanding notes receivable on a periodic basis to ensure that each is fully collectible. 1f the Company concludes that it
will be unable to collect all amounts due, the Company will record an impairment charge based on the present value of
expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. The Company recorded $0.2 million. $0.]
million and $0.2 million of impatrment charges related to notes receivable during the years ended December 31, 2007,
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 20035, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

Debt financing costs are deferred and amortized, using the effective interest method, over the term of the related
debt. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, unamortized deferred financing costs were $0.8 million and $1.0 million,
respectively, and are included in other non-current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

On June 16, 2006, the Company entered into a $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit agreement (“the
Revolver”), with a syndicate of lenders. The proceeds from the Revolver were used to refinance and terminate the
Company’s revolving credit facility entered into in July 2004 (“2004 Facility”). The Company accounted for the
refinancing of the 2004 Facility in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issue No. 98-14, “Debtor’s
Accounting for Changes in Line-of-Credit or Revolving-Debt Arrangements” (“EITF No. 98-14"). Pursuant to EITF
No. 98-14, the Company recorded a loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately $0.3 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Investments

The Company accounts for its investments in Choice Hotels Canada, Inc. (“CHC”) and Choice Hospitality (India)
Private Ltd (“CHN") in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 18, “The Equity Method of
Accounting for Investments in Common Stock.” The Company accounted for its investment in the common stock of
Choice Hotels Scandinavia (“CHS”) in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities,” and SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income™ until the sale of this investment in August
2005.

Derivatives

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires the recognition of the fair value of derivatives in the balance sheet, with
changes in the fair value recognized either in earnings or as a component of other comprehensive income dependent upon
the nature of the derivative. SFAS No. 133 also states that any deferred gain on previous hedging activity does not meet
the definition of a liability, due to a lack of expected future cash flows and therefore should be included in comprehensive
income. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006 the Company had no derivative financial instruments.




CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

Stock-based compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004),
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requires that compensation cost relating to share based
payment transactions be recognized in financial statements based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments
issued. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective application
method and began applying its provisions to: (i) new awards, (ii) awards modified subsequent to the adoption date and
(iii) outstanding awards for which all requisite service had not yet been rendered. Under the modified-prospective
application method, compensation costs were recognized on the unvested portion of awards beginning on January 1, 2006
based on the grant-date fair value used for pro-forma disclosures under SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure” over the remaining vesting period. Under this transition method, prior period
results have not been restated. The adoption of SFAS No. 123R reduced operating income and net income by
approximately $0.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively, and had no impact on earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s operating income, net income or
reported carnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 since the Company has been expensing share-based
awards granted since January 1, 2003 under the provisions of SFAS No. 123. Cash flows from financing activities for the
years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 includes $6.2 million and $12.7 million, respectively in excess tax benefits
from stock-based compensation resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. Under SFAS No. 123, cash flows from
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2005 included $9.9 million of excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation. Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company accounted for stock-based awards under APB Opmion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 257).

SFAS No. 123R also requires the Company to calculate the pool of income tax benefits that were previously
recorded in additional paid-in-capital and are available to absorb future income tax shortfalls that can result from the
exercise or maturity of stock awards. The Company has calculated its windfall pool under the short-cut method based on
the actual income tax benefits received from exercises and maturities of stock awards granted after October 15, 1997.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, no stock-based compensation cost was reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income related to the grant of stock options which occurred prior to January 1, 2003, because
the Company accounted for those grants under APB No. 25 and all such stock options granted had an exercise price equal
to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Therefore, the cost related to stock-based
employee compensation included in the determination of net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 is less than
taat which would have been recognized if the fair value based method had been applied to all awards since the original
effective date of SFAS No. 123.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and eamnings per share as if the fair value based method had
been applied to all outstanding and unvesied awards during the year ended December 31, 2005.

December 31, 2005

(In millions, except per
share amounts)

Net inCOME, 28 TEPOTIEW.......crieirirer i iec s n e ra e sars et e e e nre s st ebe e tatsseensas e etasesrabatebene } 876
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of related tax

BITECLS 1o e bbbttt et r et 29
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value method for all

awards, net of related taX effECLS .....ivvi ittt er et er e ebeeassee st ean e reseeates 4.7)
PrO fOIIMNA, NEE INCOMIE ....oiiit ettt et e et e et e st e sae s s rsseseneeaseesteeatesasesas e senneennesnnensaanssentonmeanee $ 858
Earnings per share:
Basic, @S5 FEPOITE ...........covrireeiiiiiieti ettt ettt et ss s e e et s s s s s et et et st tenenenenanana $ 136
BASIC, PIO FOITNA ...oiui e et st a s et s bbb s et n s e bbb e e eeseeneaesbese $ 133
DIlUEd, 8S FEPOIIEU ..o ceieee et s e s b e s e st s s b st e e e b sae b e sas et e s st sbesas s s sas et st eratateensernenes $ 1.32
Driluted, Pro fOIMa........ oot ettt sttt st e e e eseess s et s esee s enneees $ 129

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans and related accounting policies are described more fully in Note
18.

Sales Taxes

The Company presents taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities on a net basis and
therefore are excluded from our revenues in our consolidated financial statcments,

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
included in the financial statements or income tax returns, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company does not provide additional United States income taxes on undistributed earnings of consolidated
foreign subsidiaries included in retained eamnings. Such eamnings could become taxable upon the sale or liquidation of
these foreign subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The Company’s intent is for such earnings to be reinvested by the
subsidiaries. On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA
included a temporary one time incentive for United States multinational corporations to repatriate accumulated income of
foreign subsidiaries by providing an 85 percent dividends received deduction for qualifying dividends from controlled
foreign corporations. The Company repatriated earnings pursuant to AJCA totaling $23.5 million in the fourth quarter of
2005 resulting in an income tax provision of $1.2 million.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves significant judgment in estimating the impact of uncertainties in the
application of complex tax laws. Judgment is required in determining our worldwide income tax provision. In the ordinary
course of global business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. Some
of these uncertainties arise as a consequence of cost reimbursement arrangements among related entities. Although we
believe our estimates are reasonable, no assurance can be given that the final tax outcome of these matters will not be
different than that which is reflected in our historical income tax provisions and accruals. Tax assessments and resolution
of tax contingencies may arise several years after tax returns have been filed. Predicting the outcome of such tax
assessments involves uncertainty; however, we believe that recorded tax liabilities adequately account for our analysis of
probable outcomes. Resolution of these uncertainties in a manner inconsistent with the Company’s expectations could
have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations.
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Tax savings resulting from deductions greater than compensation cost reflected in net income, if any, for stock-
based employee compensation is credited directly to additional paid in capital when realization of such benefit is fully
assured.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109”7, (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes” by prescribing a recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the
financial statements. FIN 48 provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as required. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 was
recorded in retained carnings and other accounts as applicable. Uncertain tax benefits of $7.1 million were recorded
against tax contingencies and additional paid in capital as of January 1, 2007, which represents a $3.1 million increase in
lax contingencies recorded as of December 31, 2006. Accrued interest and penalties of $0.1 million were recorded against
retained earnings as of January 1, 2007.

As of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, the Company had $7.1 million and $6.7 million, respectively, of total
unrecognized tax benefits of which approximately $4.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively, would affect the effective
tax. rate if recognized. Additions of $1.3 million represented unrecognized tax bencfits for current ycar tax positions
related to state tax positions and stock-based compensation deductions. Reductions of $1.6 million were due to lapse of
applicable statutes of limitations. The Company believes it is reasonably possible it will recognize tax benefits of up to
$1.6 million within the next twelve months. This isdue tothe anticipated lapse of applicable statutes of
limitations regarding state tax positions and stock-based compensation deductions.

Estimated interest and penalties related to the uncertain tax benefits are classified as a component of income tax
expense in the consolidated statements of income and totaled $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Accrued
interest and penalties were $1.1 million and $1.3 million as of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007.

The Company’s uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to examination by the relevant tax
authorities. The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple
state and foreign jurisdictions. The Company has substantially concluded all U.S. federal income tax matters for years
through 2003. Substantially all material state and local and foreign income tax matters have been concluded for years
through 2003. U.S. federal income tax returns for 2004 through 2006 are currently open for examination.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share are computed under SFAS No. 128 “Earnings Per Share”. Basic earnings per share are computed
by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Unvested restricted stock and
performance vested restricted stock units (“PVRSU”) are excluded from the computation of basic earnings per share
because the shares have not yet been earned by the sharcholder. Stock options are also excluded since they are not
considered outstanding shares. Diluted carnings per share, assumes dilution and is computed based on the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding after consideration of the dilutive effect of stock options, unvested
restricted stock and PVRSU. The effect of dilutive securities is computed using the treasury stock method and average
market prices during the period. Dilutive sccurities with performance conditions are excluded from the computation until
tke performance conditions are met.
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Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States and require management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pension, Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

The Company sponsors two non-qualified retirement savings and investment plans for certain employees and senior
executives. Employee and Company contributions are maintained in separate irrevocable trusts. Legally, the assets of the
trusts remain those of the Company; however, access to the trusts’ assets is severely restricted. The trusts’ cannot be
revoked by the Company or an acquirer, but the assets are subject to the claims of the Company’s general creditors. The
participants do not have the right to assign or transfer contractual rights in the trusts. The Company accounts for these
plans in accordance with EITF No.97-14, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements Where Amounts
Earned Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested” (“EITF 97-14”). Pursuant to EITF 97-14, as of December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, the Company had recorded a deferred compensation liability of $36.5 million and $32.9 million,
respectively. The change in the deferred compensation obligation related to changes in the fair value of the diversified
investments held in trust and to earnings credited to participants is recorded in compensation expense. The diversified
investments held in the trusts were $34.5 million and $31.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
respectively, and are recorded at their fair value, based on quoted market prices. The change in the fair value of the
diversified assets held in trust is recorded in accordance with SFAS 115 as trading security income (loss) and is included
in other income and expenses, net in the accompanying statements of income.

Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),” (“SFAS
No. 158”) which requires employers to: (a) recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a plan’s over
funded status or a liability for a plan’s under funded status; (b) measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine
its funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year; and (c) recognize changes in the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur.

As a result of this adoption, the Company increased its pension benefit obligations at December 31, 2006 by
approximately $2.6 million with a corresponding change, net of tax, reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income. The Company previously measured its plan assets and benefit obligation as of its fiscal year end and therefore no
adjustments will be required resulting from the adoption of this provision. The following table illustrates the incremental
effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on individual line items in the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2006,

Before After
Application Application
of SFAS 158 Adjustments of SFAS 158
(In thousands)

Deferred compensation and retirement plan obligations ..........ocoocvvieenne, $ 37,463 $ 2,638 $ 40,101
Total HADIIIEIES «oveeneeee ittt ettt ettt sttt ete e b e bt eae 363,051 2,638 365,689
Deferred INCOIME LAXES .ccciiiii et et tb e ae b e e 21,329 1,122 22,451
Other assets (Intangible aSSet) ... .ovouieieieeeiieeerr e 362 (362) —
TOMA] BSSELS ..t cccrtiresre e creseere s e rr st e tas e sn e retat s s e e e enes 302,549 760 303,309
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME........ocoeeviceirivvesrireeecereecenan 1,106 {1,878) (772)
Total shareholders’ defiCitu .. oo, (60,502} (1.878) (62,380)

The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no ¢ffect on the Company’s consolidated statements of income or cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 2006, or for any prior period presented. See Note 16 to our consolidated financial
statements.

Prior to the adoption of the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, the Company recorded the liability for its
defined benefit post-retirement plans in accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers Accounting for Pensions” (“SFAS
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No. 87”). SFAS No. 87 required that a liability (minimum pension liability) be recorded when the accumulated benefit
obligation liability exceeded the fair value of plan assets. Under SFAS No. 87, changes in the funded status were not
immediately recognized, rather they were deferred and recognized ratably over future periods.

2. Stock Split

On September 14, 2005, the Company’s board of directors declared a two-for-one stock split effected in the form of
2 stock dividend. The stock dividend was distributed on October 21, 2005 to shareholders of record on Qctober 7, 2005.
As a result of the stock dividend, the accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect an increase in the number of
outstanding shares of common stock and the transfer of the par value of these additional shares from paid-in-capital.
Treasury shares were not split. Share data and earnings per share data in these consolidated financial statements reflect the
stock split, applied retroactively, to all periods presented. Previously awarded stock options and restricted stock awards
pavable in the Company’s common stock have been adjusted to reflect the stock dividend.

3.  Other Current Assets

Other current assets consist of the following at:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
PrEPaid EXPEMSES...ceveceiiitiiisis s s iraesee st b s $§ 9952 § 7444
INOLES FECETVADIE oot eeeeeeee s s et e e e et e eeteeeaee s bseene e sabaesaee s saeeaant st s A e e R e T e a T et e n s e e n b sk s e R 3,444 —
O RET CUITEIIT ASSEES 1 eeeeeoeeeceeteesteieseeseorresnseansassessssesesamearee s s sassseesen o hd e aasnaR e aar s r e e s s e en e b b st s s e e 236 313
0 VOUTUTR T T T OO U RO OO O P OO TOUUUTIU PP PP RSP ST PO $ 13632 § 7,757

During 2007, the Company provided short-term financing to a franchisee in support of the development of Cambria
Suites properties. At December 31, 2007, these notes and accrued interest totaled $3.4 million, net of a $0.4 million
allowance. The notes bear interest at 10% per annum and have been personally guaranteed by one of the franchisee’s
principal owners.

4. Property and Equipment

The components of property and equipment are:

December 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Land and 1and iIMPIOVEMENLS ......c.oviierirrrisieeserec st et $ 2544 § 2,644
Facilities in progress and software under development ... 653 842
Computer equipment and SOTIWATE ..o 88,275 108,546
Buildings and iMProvements ...t e 38,010 38,254
Furniture, fixtures and eqUIPMIENT .......occmurimirirrne e tbeb st s s 12,864 14,978

142,346 165,264
Less: Accurnulated depreciation and amOrtiZation ... (98,459) (122,462)
Property and eqUIPINENL, AL COSL, NMEE.....uiuiuirrerr ettt $ 43,887 % 42,802

On February 3, 2005, a parcel of land held for sale was sold for §1.7 million resulting in a gain on disposition of
property totaling $0.1 million.
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As facilities in progress are compleied and placed in service, they are transferred 1o appropriaie property and
equipment categories and depreciation begins. Depreciation expense, excluding amounts attributable to marketing and
reservation activities, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $3.0 million, $4.1 million and $4.0
million, respectively. Depreciation has been computed for financial reporting purposes using the straight-line method. A
summary of the ranges of estimated useful lives upon which depreciation rates are based follows:

Computer equipment and SOTIWAIE. ..o et ea st re e s b ararereneas 3-7 years
Buildings and UMPrOVEITIENTS. ......iue. i eerieeiiteer ettt ereeerbateserasssesaessas s bt st esesssaeesassesnses sresessnsasesenn 3-40 years
Furniture, fiIXtures and SQUIPINENE ......ccocoovieiiiiiiiie ettt sban e e et et e s et ete s srerrs e s r s ees e s et eenensens 3-15 years

5. Goodwill, Franchise Rights and Other Intangibles

Goodwill relates to the purchase price of a minority interest in the Company for consideration in excess of the
recorded minority interest and the Suburban Transaction. The components of goodwill are as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
{In thousands)
MINOTIEY EITETESE ..vvevieiniiiirinte e teiates et sb bttt es e e em s se 225 r sttt s s st ea bbb bm e bes s e s seseaearsnste $ 60,620 § 60,620
Suburban Transaction {S€€ NOLE 15) ..ottt ettt ee e eaee e raan 5,193 5,193
TOMAL .. vttt et sttt s e e b e e A b S et s s e e e e e aRe ARE e NS eAe s oAt s eb e e n e e e R b e b b e anae b enneeneeeneeantan $ 65813 $ 65813

Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company is not required to amortize goodwill.

Franchise rights totaling $28.3 million and $31.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, represent the
unamortized purchase price assigned to acquire long-term franchise contracts. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the
unamortized balance relates primarily to the Econo Lodge, Suburban Extended Stay Hotel and Flag franchise rights. The
franchise rights are being amortized over lives ranging from 5 to 17 years. Amortization cxpense for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $4.0 million, $4.0 million and $3.6 million, respectively. Franchise
rights are net of accumulated amortization of $53.9 million and $49.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The estimated annual amortization expense related to the Company’s franchise rights for each of the years ending
December 31, 2008 through 2012 is as follows:

\’ir (In millions)
2O e bt s e e Rt Rt nsas b rn 38
20009 e et btk eh et e et eRtse e aR e st e neeaenenen 38
20B0 e e RS e er e n s et ebd et 3.8
20 L T e e bbb e e es s s s b saeres 38
200 e b et ettt b e et et 38

Franchise rights and other identifiable intangible assets include approximately $3.7 million of unamortized
intangible assets related to trademarks at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Trademarks acquired in the
Suburban acquisition have an indefinite life and therefore pursuant to SFAS 142 no amounts have been amortized. The
costs of registering and renewing existing trademarks are being amortized over ten years. Amortization expense for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $0.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively.
Trademarks are net of accumulated amortization of $4.8 million and $4.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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The estimated annual amortization expense related to the Company’s trademarks for each of the years ending
December 31, 2008 through 2012 is as follows:

Year (In millions)
200, eeei i eerterrserrrebe e s ce e s ate et e et e eneene et b ba R rar 4 s s £ st Rt eREenRe e eR et st sae e s e et e st rstbesats 505
200Gttt s ey et eaneebe AL AL a bR b s et n s R e R an e vR e e e s s e aeas 0.5
ZOT0 et a£ s b e e s ant e s R Rt s b e e bR e e R e s e e s 0.5
L1 I O U U OO OO ST OO O U RO OU PR OIOP PP 0.3
1L ) OO P OO OO O PO RPITOTOrOD 0.3

6. Receivable-Marketing and Reservation Fees

The Company’s franchise agreements require the payment of franchise fees, which include marketing and
reservation fees. The Company is obligated to use the marketing and reservation fees it assesses against the current
franchisees comprising its various hotel brand systems to provide marketing and reservation services appropriate for the
successful operation of the systems. In discharging its obligation to provide sufficient and appropriatc marketing and
reservation services, the Company has the right to expend funds in an amount reasonably necessary to ensure the
provision of such services, whether or not such amount is currently available to the Company for reimbursement. The
franchise agreements provide the Company the right to advance monies to the franchise system when the needs of the
system surpass the balances currently available.

Under the terms of these agreements, the Company has the legally enforceable right to assess and collect from its
current franchisees fees sufficient to pay for the marketing and reservation services the Company has procured for the
benefit of the franchise system, including fees to reimburse the Company for past services rendered. The Company has the
contractual authority to require that the franchisees in the system at any given point repay any deficits related to marketing
and reservation activities. The Company’s current franchisees are legally obligated to pay any assessment the Company
iraposes on its franchisees to obtain reimbursement of such deficit regardless of whether those constituents continue to
generate gross room revenue. The Company has no present intention to accelerate repayment of the deficit from current
franchisees. Cumulative reservation and marketing fees not expended are recorded as a payable in the financial statements
and are carried over to the next fiscal year and expended in accordance with the franchise agreements.

The marketing fees receivable at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $6.8 million and $6.7 million, respectively. As
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, cumulative reservation fees collected exceeded expenses by $11.9 million and $8.4
million, respectively and the excess has been reflected as an other long-term liability in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Depreciation and amortization expense attributable to marketing and reservation activities for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $8.3 million, $7.9 million and $7.6 million, respectively. Interest expense
attributable to reservation activities was $0.5 million, $0.9 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

7. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following at:

December MM,
2807 2006

{In thousands)

FOrgivable N01ES PECRIVADIE .......ovv oo eersionscrnens st esestssenssresesssiscrnessssssnmsersaerecirecssormecsinmsneenens. 3 1,037 8 9,083

Other notes receivable ... verviee e 1,492 —

Investments in equity method investees ... 384 337
ONEE ASSCES ©vvvivvietmrerreiontsseesssearassesesansaesaaessssrntessarasseseasensseseneeeb s saasbeir et saserarr e rresresenetoresaabe s aassatsnassshnnssrtannt 1,766 2,041
) NSO OV OOV U PSUU PO UROTROTPOUTOvoUo V. T I .4 SRS S § I .31

Forgivable Notes Receivable

From time to time, the Company provides financing to franchisees for property improvements and other purposes in
the form of forgivable promissory notes. The terms of the notes range from 3 to 10 years, bearing market interest rates,
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and are forgiven and amortized over that time period if the franchisee remains in the system in good standing. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the unamortized balance of these notes totaled $7.6 million and $9.1 million, net of
allowance of $0.8 million and $1.0 million, respectively. Amortization expense included in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income related to the notes was $1.8 million, $1.8 miltion and $1.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2007, the Company had commitments to extend an
additional $7.3 million in interest-free notes receivable provided certain commitments are met by its franchisces.

Other Notes Receivable

During 2007, the Company provided financing to a franchisee in support of the development of Cambria Suites
properties. At December 31, 2007, the balance of these notes totaled $1.5 miliion, net of a $0.2 million allowance. In
March 2007, the Company advanced $1 million bearing no interest and due on April 1, 2009. The note receivable was
recorded at a $0.1 million discount based on an effective interest rate of 8.25%. In December 2007, the Company
advanced an additional $0.8 million in support of these Cambria Suites development projects and has a commitment to
advance an additional $2.2 million during 2008 under this promissory note. This note bears interest at 10% per annum and
is due and payable on April 1, 2009. These notes have been personally guaranteed by one of the franchisee’s principal
owners.

8. Transactions with Sunburst

Effective October 15, 1997, Choice Hotels International, Inc. (“CHI”), which at that point included both the
franchising business and owned hotel business, separated the businesses via a spin-off of the Company. CHI changed its
name to Sunburst Hospitality Corporation (referred to hereafter as “Sunburst™). As part of the spin-off, Sunburst and the
Company entered into a strategic alliance agreement. Among other things, the strategic alliance agreement, as amended,
provided for the determination of liquidated damages related to the termination of Choice branded Sunburst properties.
The liquidated damage provisions extend through the life of existing Sunburst franchise agreements. As of December 31,
2007, Sunburst operates 26 hotels under franchise with the Company.

Total franchise fees, including royalty, marketing and reservation fees, paid by Sunburst to the Company, included
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements were $5.2 million, $5.0 million and $5.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, accounts receivable included
$0.4 million due from Sunburst.

9. Accrued Expenses and Other

Accrued expenses and other consists of the following:

December 31,
2007 2006

(In thousands)
Accrued salaries and BENefIs ...ttt s B 25,060 § 27,752
DIVIACNAS PAYADIE ..o vt et e re e et b bt aas s 10,499 9,912
AUCCTUCH IILEEEEL. ... ovvevitieeeeee it eeee e eee e ber s straeabe s eme seesemeseema satsamt bbb seesrmeseenesane st aan e ssnessessassaesnesaseaessemeanne 1,228 1,432
Other lHabilities and COMIMEZENCIES. .. .ioo e vrierirrie st e vt bss st st ena s e b et st s b s s abe st e sesansremsaasrebanean 4,120 6,210
TOUBLc..ceeeerert et ettt ettt st et er s e et aa e e bbb s rensesseeasearssnsssrassaeenstensinessesressenissrierees B 40,907 $ 45306

Other liabilities and contingencies at December 31, 2006 include accruals for the current portion of estimated tax
contingencies. These accruals were recorded for potential exposures involving tax positions that could be challenged by
taxing authorities.
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10. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of the following:

December 31,
2007 2006
{In thousands)
LOYAIEY PrOZIAMIS ...t cs et ed s b b ss s s a s s b a2 e en s $ 43,488 3 39,622
Initial, relicensing and franchise fees..........co v 4,151 3,241
Brand SOIULION FEES ......coviiiiiiiemiarsisieeesesstereresrreserensrsnesaeesameeebeesamee s e soeaabesatss s saa s s b e ra e s s sba e e 1,021 4,304
B+ 721 DO OO SUP RS $ 48,660 3 47,167

11. Long-Term Debt

Debt consists of the following at:

December 31,
2007 2006
{In thousands)

$350 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility with an effective rate of 5.23% and

5.72% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively ... $ 172,400 3 72,200
$100 million senior notes with an effective rate of 7.22% at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
FESPECHIVEIY . ov.vvevrrsiesesssisaereseesessesecses s e sasseb bbb b et ettt 99,978 99,914
Other notes with an average effective rate of 5.78% at December 31, 2006.................oovenin — 422
TOAL AEDBL......oeeeeetee et st et $ 272,378 § 172,536
LESS CUITENT POTEION. 1 vvecrereeriniieee e reemeecet ettt b bbb e bbb ea e s m eS8 e n Ry s e na e s E ettt — (146)
Total 1ong-term debl...... oo e s s s s $ 272,378 § 172,390

Scheduled principal maturities of debt as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Year (In thousands)

] 1 O OO OO OO O YU OTOOTUOTOTOTPO PP 272,378
1 OO O UO OSSO OO PP -

111 OO OO OO OOU VPP TU P ITUTOVOTOTSP o $ 272378

On June 16, 2006, the Company entered into a $350 million senior unsecured revolving credit agreement (the
“Fevolver”), with a syndicate of lenders. The proceeds from the Revolver were used to refinance and terminate a previous
revolving facility. The Revolver allows the Company to borrow, repay and reborrow revolving loans up to $350 million
(which includes swingline loans for up to $20 million and standby letters of credit up to $30 million) until the scheduled
maturity date of June 16, 2011. The Company has the ability to request an increase in available borrowings under the
Revolver by an additional amount of up to $150 million by obtaining the agreement of the existing lenders to increase
their lending commitments or by adding additional lenders. The rate of interest generally applicable for revolving loans
under the Revolver are, at the Company’s option, equal to either (i) the greater of the prime rate or the federal funds
effective rate plus 50 basis points, or (ii) an adjusted LIBOR rate plus a margin between 22 and 70 basis points based on
the Company’s credit rating. The Revolver requires the Company to pay a quarterly facility fee, based upon the credit
rating of the Company, at a rate between 8 and 17 /2 basis points, on the full amount of the commitment (regardless of
usage). The Revolver also requires the payment of a quarterly usage fee, based upon the credit rating of the Company, at a
rate between 10 and 12 '/2 basis points, on the amount outstanding under the commitment, at all times when the amount
borrowed under the Revolver exceeds 50% of the total commitment. The Revolver includes customary financial and other
covenants that require the maintenance of certain ratios including maximum leverage and interest coverage. At
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December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Revolver. The Revolver also restricts
the Company’s ability to make certain investments, incur certain debt, and dispose of assets, among other restrictions.

In 1998, the Company completed a $100 million senior unsecured note offering (“the Senior Notes™) at a discount of
$0.6 million, bearing a coupon rate of 7.13% with an effective rate of 7.22%. The Company used the net proceeds from
the offering of approximately $99 million to repay amounts outstanding under the Company’s previous credit facility. The
Senior Notes will mature on May 1, 2008, with interest on the Senior Notes to be paid semi-annually. The Senior Notes
have been classified as a long-term liability at December 31, 2007, since the Company’s intention is to repay the Senior
Notes upon maturity by utilizing the available capacity of the Revolver,

The Senior Notes contain a call provision that would require the Company to pay a premium if the Senior Notes
were redeemed prior to their maturity. At December 31, 2007, the call provision would have resulted in a premium of $2.4
million,

The Company has a line of credit with a bank providing up to an aggregate of $10 million of borrowings which is
due vpon demand. The line of credit ranks pari-pasu (or equally) with the Revolver. Borrowings under the line of credit
bear interest at rates established at the time of the borrowings based on prime minus 175 basis points. There were no
amounts outstanding under this line of credit at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

In the second quarter of 2007, the Company repaid an outstanding note with a balance of $0.4 million by utilizing
proceeds from the Revolver. The note had an original maturity date of January 1, 2009. This loan bore interest based on
seventy percent of prime and required monthly principal and interest payments.

12. Other Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consist of the following at:

December 31,
2007 2006
{in thousands)
DD EITE TEVEIIUC oottt e et et tet st eeeeeeeeee e et s ett e e e e e eee et s2s b e e e eme e ee et s beeemeeneene et s s reanenn $ L79% $ 1,841
Reservation fees collected in excess of eXpenditires.........o.vvveiv oo e ens 11,907 8415
Other liabilities and CONNZENCTIES .....c.c.voviereriieiierinec ettt esa bt et e 8,716 3.151
TOUAL 1.ve. o veveoeesvereeeeesesesses s eessesesee s s es s e £es s sets et e eesres et esaeen s e seesn et s erseserrre $ 22419 $ 13,407

Other liabilities and contingencies include long-term deposits and accruals for tax contingencies. These accruals
have been recorded for potential exposures involving tax positions that could be challenged by taxing authorities.

13. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

Effective July 14, 2006, the Company’s Senior Notes are guaranteed jointly, severally, fully and unconditionally by
7 wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries. There are no legal or regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends to Choice
Hotels International, Inc. from subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Senior Notes. As a result of these guarantee
arrangements, the following condensed consolidating financial statements are presented. Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
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Choice Hotels International, Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
(In Thousands)

REVENUES:

Royalty fees......coviveeeciic,
Initial franchise and relicensing fees .........
Brand solutions.......ccoviciiniccccinin
Marketing and reservation............cocceenee.
Other IEMS, T vovveireeieeeeerrre s veraeeeeeeeceees

Total reVENUES. ....ccveeeveeeirireeeeeeieeennne

OFPERATING EXPENSES:

Selling, general and administrative ...........
Marketing and reservation...............cee.
Other items, NEL ..oovvevriviiinr e

Total operating eXpenses........co......

Operating INCOME..........cocevveriiriineeae

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:

Interest EXPENSe .. ..oovvvernvviececieie e

Equity in earnings of consolidated

SUbSIAIAIIES ...evveevceee s
Other items, NEL......ccievverrrerrreeeeccceceeneas

Total other income and expenses,

Income before income taxes ............coocveveieennn.
[RCOME EAXES ....oeeeeeeeeiiireie e crarreeeeenenraareeeena

NCLINCOME ..o

Chaice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor

International, Inc, Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ 213,923 $103,421 $ 23,046 $(104,044) $ 236,346
33,389 — — — 33,389
16,283 — — — 16,283
274,691 296,080 15,035 (268,979) 316,827
7,957 4,692 — — 12,649
546,243 404,193 38,081 (373,023} 615,494
99,623 95,076 10,935 (104,044) 101,590
288,436 283,689 13,381 (268,979) 316,827
3,204 7,664 1,010 — 11,878
391,263 386,729 25,326 (373,023) 430,295
154,980 17,464 12,755 — 185,199
14,796 (501) () — 14,293

(24,990) — — 24,990 —
(506) (280) (2,194) — (2,980)
(10,700} (781) (2,196) 24,990 11,313
165,680 18,245 14,951 (24,990) 173,886
54,379 6,291 1,915 — 62,585

$ 111,301 $ 11,954 $ 13,036 $ (24,990) s111,301
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Choice Hotels International, Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

(In Thousands)

Chaoice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor
International, Ing, Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
REVENUES:
Royalty fees........coovvvnirrrecceeeneee $ 194,673 $ 95,077 § 17,095 $ (95,200) $ 211,645
Initial franchise and relicensing fees ......... 29,629 — — — 29,629
Brand solutions.........ccceeeeiiinecoecceeeeen 13,945 —_ — — 13,945
Marketing and reservation............ococceiueen. 232,407 256,916 9,266 (225,322) 273,267
Other items, NEL......coooveeeeee e 6,912 4,505 — — 11,417
Total reVenuesS. ..o 477,566 356,498 26,361 {320,522 539,903
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and administrative ........... 90,810 85,867 5,635 {95,200) 87,112
Marketing and reservation............c.c.o.eeee. 246,239 244,566 7,784 (225,322) 273,267
Other items, Net ..o 3,197 8,879 823 — 12,899
Total operating expenses.................. 340,246 339,312 14,242 (320,522) 373,278
Operating income.....................oviiinininees 137,320 17,186 12,119 — 166,625
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
Interest eXpPense .....covvvveireeniereieeeeeeieeeeenes 14,810 (770) 58 — 14,098
Equity in earnings of consolidated
SUBSIAIATIES <o : (24,806) — — 24,806 —
Other items, Nt ..o 66 (1,407) (1,410) — (2,751)
Total other income and expenses,
11 OO (9,930) (2,177) (1,352) 24 806 11,347
Income before income taxes ... 147,250 19,363 13,471 (24,806) 155,278
INCOME tAKES ..ot 34,463 6,594 1,434 — 42,491
Net inCome .........coovvvvvvevieininninc e $ 112,787 § 12,769 $ 12,037 $(24,806) $ 112,787
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Choice Hotels International, Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

{In Thousands)

Choice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor
[nternational, Inc, Subsidiaries Subsidlaries Eliminations Consolidated
REVENUES:
Royalty fees. ... $ 175,508 $ 84,449 $ 11,621 $ (84,238) $ 187,340
Initial franchise and relicensing fees ......... 25,388 — — — 25,388
Brand solutions...........eeeveeeeceeeeecinninennn. 13,382 — — — 13,382
Marketing and reservation...........c.ccveverees 198,542 218,720 7,655 (187,095) 237,822
Other items, NEl......co..vvvviiereeeiir e 3,819 4,347 — — 8,166
Total rEVENUES......c..covveeeceereicrrcinenes 416,639 307,516 19,276 (271,333) 472,098
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and adminisirative ........... 75,318 75,889 11,372 (84,329) 78,250
Marketing and reservation............oooee 207.211 210,969 6,646 (187,004) 237,822
Other items, NEL ....ccvverreirrrreeeeeeeeeeeemeeee e 3,686 7,781 809 — 12,276
Total operating expenses...........ceeee. 286,215 294,639 18,827 (271,333) 328,348
Operating income...............ccoovvoeiinnineeecn 130,424 12,877 449 — 143,750
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
INtErest EXPENSE .....evvirviviemerinece ittt 16,380 {1,059) 4 — 15,325
Equity in earnings of consolidated
SUDSIAIATIES ..., (8,370) — — 8,370 —
Other HemS, NEL ..eeeiieii e (181) (877) {1,259) — z,317)
Total other income and expenses,
1171 PO SO SUSVUSR USSP 7,829 (1,936) (1,255) 8,370 13,008
[n:ome before income taxes .........ccccovevvennne 122,595 14,813 1,704 (8,370) 130,742
[NCOMIE TAXES ..ot eere st araeas 35,030 7,601 546 — 43,177
NETINCOME ..o e $ 87,565 § 7,212 § 1,158 $ (8,370) $ 87,565
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Choice Hotels International, Inc,
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2007

{(In thousands)

Choice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor
International, Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ............coeceivvivirrrnens $ 8777 $ 196 $ 37,404 $ — $ 46,377
Receivables ... 34,489 1,119 5,247 — 40,855
Other Current asSetS...cvvviiieeiiiiiieeeeeeeeceecieeens 15,482 10,824 352 (7,939) 18,719
Total CUrrent aSStS...ccceiivieciriiiee e 58,748 12,139 43,003 (7.939) 105,951
Property and equipment, at Cost, net.........ccoeeeneee 17,150 25,788 949 — 43,887
GoodWill ... 60,620 5,193 — — 65,813
Franchise rights and other identifiable
intangibles, Net ..o 21,213 5,808 4,958 — 31,979
Investments, employee benefit plans, at fair
VAIUE ...ttt es — 33,488 — — 33,488
Investment in and advances to affiliates .............. 231,758 149,093 61,750 (442,601) —
Receivable, marketing fees................c.ocooven 6,782 -— — — 6,782
Deferred income taXes .....ccoeeeeeeeiciivreveeiseveeennen, — 39,417 1,886 (12,098) 29,205
OthET ASSEIS 1evir e e 2,150 8,303 1,039 (213) 11,279
Total assetS...c.covveeirecereeiecee i § 398,421 $279,229 $ 113,585 $(462,851) § 328,384
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Accounts payable ..o $ 12,757 $ 38,570 $ 3961 $ — $ 55,288
Accrued expenses and other..................oveenee. 14,049 25,630 1,228 — 40,907
Deferred reVenUe. oo e sees e e 5,152 43,084 424 — 48,660
Other current liabilities .............c..ooooveeriiiiieeene — 8,595 2,005 {7,939) 2,661
Total current liabilities ...........cccoooee e 31,958 115879 7618 (1.939) 147,516
Long-term debt ..o 272,378 — — — 272,378
Deferred compensation & retirement plan
OBHZATIONS ..o — 43,129 3 — 43,132
Advances from affiliates....................cooooo e, 217,694 6,363 59,0060 (283,063) —
Deferred inCOME taXes .oovivreeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeessianiens 12,098 — — (12,098) —
Other Habilities ..o.oooooovovmiieeiceeeee e 21,354 587 691 (213) 22,419
Total liabilities....cococeeieeecerieer v, 555,482 165,958 67,318 (303,313) 485,445
Total shareholders’ deficit..........coocveeeerean.. (157,061) 113,271 46,267 (159,538) (157,061)
Total liabilities and shareholders® deficit .. $ 398,421 $279,229 $ 113,585 $ (462,851 $ 328,384
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Choice Hotels International, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2006

(In thousands)

Choice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor
International, Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiarics Eliminations Coansolidated
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cconiiiininnen, $ 10,072 $ 213 $ 25,556 $ — $ 35,841
Beceivables ..o e e e e 35,885 358 5,451 — 41,694
Other CUTTENt ASSELS......civicrerrrisieenrres e remessrssaies 9,317 7,489 645 (7.904) 9,547
Total current aSSetS....ccocvrvevvrrerrereeeercrnens 55,274 8,060 31,652 (7,904) 87,082
Property and equipment, at COSE, NEt.....ovvveecaen. 17,270 24,793 739 — 42,802
GOOdWIll Lcooiiiei st 60,620 5,193 — — 65,813
Franchise rights and other identifiable
intangibles, Net . 23,885 6,427 5,197 — 35,509
Investments, employee benefit plans, at fair
VAL ...ooeeereteiesser s ssese e sben e eseenes — 31,529 — — 31,529
Investment in and advances to affiliates .............. 184,223 129,728 47,947 (361,898) —
Receivable, marketing fees.....oovvvvvicciniieienne, 6,972 — — (310) 6,662
Deferred iNCOME TAXES vovveeerernrrceiivasiisnsaereenes — 33,842 728 {12,119) 22,451
OHNET ASSELS oeeviirieiiiies s srrrsssreeeenmereesessesatasasnrnnrss 1,055 10,170 236 — 11,461
Total ASSELS........cviivieiiirirenririnresessinre s nreaiees § 349,299 $ 249,742 $ 86,499 $(382,231) $ 303,309
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’® DEFICIT
Current portion of long-term debt.........c.e.e... $ 146 58 — 5§ — $ — 3 146
Accounts payable ... 9,503 28,735 3,578 — 41,816
Accrued expenses and other.............n 14,088 28,617 1,701 — 45,306
Deferred TEVENUE......coervviiivvire vt reeesiessssianes 7,485 39,622 60 — 47,167
[ncome taxes payable........onniminnns — 11,587 1,673 (7,904} 5,356
Total current liabilities ......c.oooovecceneiinns 32,122 108,561 7,012 (7.904) 139,791
Long-term debt ... 172,390 — —_ — 172,390
Deferred compensation & retirement plan
OBlZALIONS .cvoveicii e — 40,099 2 — 40,101
Adlvances from affiliates ... 182,114 5,609 41,032 (228,755) —_
Payable, marketing fees ... — 310 — (310) —
Deferred INCOME LAXES .ovvvvrrerrrveceeeeee e ssiasieans 12,119 — — (12,119 —
Other JHabilities ...oooveeieveecirce s 12,934 — 473 — 13,407
Total lHabilities...cooeeeeeecreceeeeiene e 411,679 154,579 48,519 (249,088) 365,689
Total shareholders’ deficit...ocooocceeiaane, (62,380) 95,163 37,980 (133,143) {62,380)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit .. $ 349299 $ 249,742 $ 86,499 $(382,231) $ 303,309
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Choice Hotels International, Inc¢.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

(In thousands)}

Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment in property and equipment.............ccecveevrnn
Purchases of investments, employee benefit plans .........
Proceeds from the sales of investments, employee
BENEEIt PIANG oot n s
Issuance of notes receivable..........ccccoenccriinnnnneen
Collection of notes receivable.......c.ccooeeiiiiinienciine
OHher (IS, TE ..t it r st eeeae s s eeeeteeeessiens

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities........................

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Principal payments of long-term debt............i
Net borrowings pursuant to revolving credit facility ......
Purchase of treasury stock ........coocvveiinnnnniiiin,
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation ......
Dividends patd......couooooeeoenniiicee e
Proceeds from exercise of stock options........cccoeeveeeeee.

Net Cash Provided (Used) from Financing Activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ................c..cov..
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ..........

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period.............

Choeice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor

International, Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidizaries Eliminations Cousolidated

$130,107 $ 3,367 $12,661 — $146,135
(5,492) (5.968) (503) — (11,963)
— (8,686) — (8,686)

— 6,049 — 6,049
(6,387) (1,008) — — (7,395)

1,075 731 — — 1,806
(622) (139) (310) — (1,071)
(11,426) (9,021) (813) — (21,260)
(422) — — — (422)

100,199 — — — 100,199
(185,935) — — — (185,935)
572 5,637 — 6,209
(40,139) — — — (40,139)

5,749 — — — 5,749
(119,976) 5,637 — — (114,339)

(1,295) (17) 11,848 — 10,536

10,072 213 25,556 — 35,841

$ 8777 $ 196 $37,404 — $ 46,377
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Choice Hotels International, Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

(In thousands)

Choice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor
International, Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consalidated
Net: Cash Provided from Qperating Activities $ 135,251 $ 1,550 $ 17,127 — $153,928
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Investment in property and equipment..............ccccooe (4,281) (3,295) {131) — (7,707
Purchases of investments, employee benefit plans ....... —_ (10,515) — (10,515)
Prcceeds from the sales of investments, employee

2enefit PIANS ..o vreeeeecc e — 3,728 — 3,728
[ssuance of notes receivable......oooveeivniviiininnnnn, — (2,433) — — (2,433)
Other IEMS, NEL......coviceierrercrerrererrre e srnans (1,223) 1,280 (461) — {404)
et Cash Used in Investing Activities....................... (5,504) (11,235) (592) — (17,331)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Principal payments of long-term debt................ooenee (146) — —_ — (146)
WNel repayments pursuant to revolving credit facilities.. (101,500) — —_ — (101,500)
Purchase of treasury Stock ......oceeoiciiiinriccsnsoninsininnns (1,363) — — — (1,365)
Exzess tax benefits from stock-based compensation ... 4.853 7,846 — 12,699
Debt 1SSUANCE COSLS .vevvreeieieeieieeeeeeeeriersesseesersensressrssanns 477 — — — @77)
Dividends paid .....cocoorriivsiii s (35,386) — — — (35,386)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options......cccooveeeee. 8,498 — — — 8,498
Net Cash Provided (Used) from Financing

ACHVIHES ... iveierciener e (125,523) 7,846 — — (117,677)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ................... 4,224 (1.839) 16,535 — 18,920
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5,848 2,052 9,021 — 16,921
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 10,072 § 213 $ 25,556 — $ 35,841
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Choice Hotels International, Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

(In thousands)

Choice Hotels Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Internaticnal, Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net Cash Provided (Used) from Operating

ACHVIHIES. ... $ 126,861 $ 18,492 $ (11,765) — $ 133,588

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

[nvestment in property and equipment................ (6,976) (4,393) (135) — (11,504)
Proceeds from disposition of assets .................... _ 1,706 1,105 — 2.811
Acquisition of Suburban, net of cash acquired ... — (7,314) — — (7,314)
Issuance of notes receivable...........coovervinirineenn, — (2,667) — — {2,667)
Purchases of investments, employee benefit

PLANS .o e — (8,929) — — (8,929)
Proceeds from sales of investments, employee

benefit plans........ccoevveiiieciieee e — 3,539 — — 3,539
Other items, NEt.......coooiviier e (1,250) 888 (105) — (467)
Net Cash Provided (Used) from Investing

ACtVIEIES.....ooeei e (8.226) (17,170) 365 — (24,531)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Principal payment of long-term debt ................. (146) — 4) — (150}
Net repayments pursuant to revolving credit

fACTHEIES .. ceeeeree e e (54,5007 (629) — — (55,129)
Purchase of treasury stock .........coceoenvnivnceiceennnn {49,154) — — — (49,154)
Debt iSSUANCE COSLS ..ovvivveeceecceeeee st (193) — — — (193)
Dividends paid..........ccooeveviiviivecniecre e (30,241) — — — (30,241)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options............. 14,213 — — — 14,213
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities ... (120,021) {629) {4) — (120,654)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ............ (1,386) 693 (10,904) —_ (11,597)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

PETIO0 oo e 7,234 1,359 19,925 — 28,518
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period. $ 5,848 $ 2,052 $ 9,021 —_ $ 16,921

14. Foreign Operations

The Company accounts for foreign currency translation in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency
Translation.” Revenues generated by foreign operations, including royalty, marketing and reservations fees, for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $43.1 million, $32.0 million, and $24.0 million respectively. Net income,
including equity in the income of equity method investments, attributable to the Company’s foreign operations was $12.4
million, $10.7 million, and $6.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Choice Hotels Franchise GmbH

On October 30, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of Choice Hotels Franchise GmbH (“CHG™), a
subsidiary of The Real Hotel Company PLC (“RHC”}, formerly CHE Hotel Group PLC, which conducted franchising
operations in the central European countries of Austria, Germany, Italy, the Czech Republic, and portions of Switzerland.
Concurrent with the closing of this acquisition, the master franchise agreement between Choice and RHC covering these
countries was also terminated, and all of RHC’s employees and infrastructure involved in its franchising business were
transferred to CHG. Choice purchased 100% of CHG’s stock for $0.9 million and began including the results of its
operations in the Company’s financial statements as of October 30, 2006. The purchase of CHG was recorded in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations™ (“SFAS No. 1417} and the Company allocated the purchase
price based on an assessment of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of Qctober 30, 2006. The
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Company allocated the excess of the total purchase price over net tangible assets acquired of approximately $0.4 million
to franchise rights and is amortizing these rights over 14 years. The pro forma results of operations as if these entities had
been combined at the beginning of 2006 and 2005 would not be materially different from the Company’s reported results
for those periods. During 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income, revenues of $2.6 million and $0.2 million, respectively, including royalty, marketing, reservation fees and other
revenues from CHG.

Choice Hotels France SAS

On November 30, 2006, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Choice Hotels France SAS (“CHF”) acquired the
franchising operations conducted by RHC in the European countries of France, Belgium, Portugal, Spain and portions of
Switzerland. Concurrent with the closing of the acquisition, the master franchise agreement between Choice and RHC
covering these countrics was also terminated. CHF purchased the net asset value of RHC’s franchising business for the
afcrementioned countries and RHC assigned the related franchise contracts, employees and liabilities associated with the
assets purchased to CHF for $1.8 million. The purchase of CHF was recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and the
Company allocated the purchase price based on an assessment of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
as of November 30, 2006. The Company allocated the excess of the total purchase price over net tangible assets acquired
of approximately $0.7 million to franchise rights and is amortizing these rights over 8 years. The pro forma results of
operations as if these entities had been combined at the beginning of 2006 and 2005 would not be materially different
from the Company’s reported results for those periods. During 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income, revenues of $6.3 million and $0.9 million, respectively, including
rovalty, marketing, reservation fees and other revenues from CHF.

Choice Hotels Australasia

Choice Hotels Australasia Pty. Ltd. (“CHA”™), a wholly-owned subsidiary, conducts direct franchising operations in
Australia, American Samoa, New Caledonia, Fiji, New Zealand and Papua New Guinea. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Cempany recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, revenues of $10.2 million, $8.4 million and
$8.2 million, respectively, including royalty, marketing, reservation fees and other revenues from CHA.

Choice Hotels Scandinavia

The Company accounted for its investment, representing 1% of the outstanding common stock of Choice Hotels
Scandinavia (“CHS”) as an available for sale security in accordance with SFAS 115. During 2005, the Company sold its
investment in CHS for approximately $1.0 million resulting in a realized gain of $0.2 million.

Choice Hotels Canada, Inc.

The Company has a 50% interest in Choice Hotels Canada, Inc. (“CHC™), a joint venture with a third party. During
2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded $1.2 million, $1.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively, based on CHC’s
results for the twelve months ended November 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 of equity method income related to this
investment pursuant to APB Opinion No. 18 in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. The Company
received dividends from CHC of $1.2 million, $1.1 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income, revenues of $10.4 million, $9.4 million and $7.7 million, respectively, including royalty, marketing,
reservation fees and other revenues from CHC.
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15. Acquisifion of Suburban Franchise Holding Company, Inc.

During 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Suburban Franchise Holding Company, Inc. (“Suburban™)
(the “Suburban Transaction™) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Suburban Franchise Systems, Inc. The initial purchase
price for Suburban was $12.8 million, which consisted of cash paid, net of cash acquired, of $7.3 million, liabilities
assumed of $4.5 million and direct acquisition and exit costs totaling $1.0 million. Included in the purchase price was a
working capital look-back adjustment escrow totaling $0.5 million, which was paid in the first quarter of 2006. The
merger provided for contingent cash payments, of up to $5 million, to be made upon the satisfaction of certain criteria.
During 2007, the Company has determined that the performance conditions can no longer be satisfied and therefore the
contingent consideration will not be earned.

The results of operations for Suburban have been included in the Company’s results of operations since
September 28, 2005.

The Company accounted for the Suburban Transaction in accordance with SFAS No. 141. The Company allocated
the purchase price based upon an assessment of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of
September 28, 2005. The total purchase price was allocated based on an analysis by management of the respective fair
values of the acquired assets and liabilities as foilows:

Estimated Fair Value

(In thousands)

TangibIe ASSELS ..o $ 401
INtangible ASSELS ....ooevvi et et 7,201
GOOAWIIL L ettt e ame et e sttt s e e 5,193
Total assets ACAUITEd ...t 12,795
Liabilities assUmed.........coooiriiieiiieiee ettt e e (5,481)
Cash paid, net of cash acquired.................coceeininimeeccce e $ 7314

Suburban was the franchisor of Suburban Extended Stay Hotel, a 67-unit, 8,942 room (at the date of consolidation)
lodging chain operating in the economy extended stay segment primarily in the southeastern United States. The
acquisition of Suburban allowed the Company to enter, on an accelerated basis, the economy extended stay segment, a
market in which it did not previously compete. The purchase price of Suburban was based on the projected business
growth and cash flows of Suburban over the next several years and indicated a value that was in excess of the current net
book value of the business, resulting in the recognition of various identifiable intangible assets and goodwill. The final
allocation is as foliows:

Estimated
Estimated Fair Value Useful Lives
(In thousands)
Franchise CONtracts.........coccrreieencereric e $ 6,187 10 years
Trademarks and Tradenames ........cccoooveevoeeeceeeecievreeeeeene 1,014 Indefinite life
GOOAWIIL Lo ee e e e aen e 5,193 Indefinite life

$ 12,394

The acquired goodwill and intangible assets are not deductible for tax purposes. The pro forma results of operations
as if Suburban had been combined at the beginning of 2005, would not be materiaily different from the Company’s
reported results for that period.

16. Pension, Profit Sharing, and Incentive Plans

The Company sponsors a 401(k) retirement plan for all eligible empioyees. For the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, the Company recorded compensation expense of $3.7 million, $3.5 million and $3.2 million, respectively,
representing matching contributions for plan participants, In accordance with the plan, the Company made its 2005
matching contribution with Company stock in the first quarter of 2006. The Company purchased shares with a fair value
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equal to the Company’s matching contribution and deposited the shares in the participant’s accounts with the plan
investment custodian. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the safe harbor matching contribution set forth in
its 401(k) retirement plan. As a result, as of January 1, 2006, the Company began matching plan participant contributions
in cash as bi-weekly deductions are made.

The Company sponsors an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit plan (“SERP”) for certain senior exccutives and
the plan assets and benefit obligations are measured as of the Company’s fiscal year end. No assets are held with respect
10 the plan, therefore benefits arc funded as paid to participants. Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 158. The Company previously recorded the SERP liability in accordance with SFAS No. 87. See Note |
Significant Accounting Policies for additional information.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded $1.3 million, $1.2 million and $0.9
million, respectively, of expense related to the SERP which was included in selling, general and administrative expense in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Expected benefit payments at December 31, 2007 for the next five years and the five years thereafter are as follows:

Year (In thousands)
2008, et e ettt b e e RS R e R e e a e na s n b aa st e s 8 —
2009, et e e bt e SRR eR RTRge e e nannn e s en bR —
1 £ T OO OO O OO YOO TETETO 432
(1] 1N O O OO SOU U SYPPPIY 429
2 U U U U YT RSOOSR P PO USSP PP 427
5 years thereafler... ..o 2,550

The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit costs for the three years ended December 31,
2007.

Years ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

(In thousands)

Components of net periodic pension cost:

IVICE COSEoveerereereeereeeesseesesssasessestsemesesemeesssebesbessaabessesrserrerreresanensnatensesnens $ 8§23 % 677 % 511
ITIEETESE GO veveieicreirieinrresiormrrsnsreeeesmeaeesseeermnneeesotsssrasstneeaamrnes s rnessearessssasas 379 349 262
Amortization
PriOT SEIVICE COSE o vvenevieeereeeeeeereeeasssseesiaseseanesaasesaneesabesasstaasssesssesanensares 43 58 58
(GAINY/LOSS oottt s re e et s 58 77 37
1,003 1,161 863
CUTEAIIIMIEIIL <o siabetas s et e br e b e e e rrer s s rmaaeaesaeambm e e e e e s esabababanna s 248 — —
Net periodic PENSION COSt... .ottt ebnen e $ 1,251 $ 1,161 § 808
Weighted average assumptions:
DDISCOUNE TALE et ettt e eestee e e et easasseeasrnrsaeeesmseeeasneeeeameeeeabeasssibesararnrr s 6.00% 5.75% 6.00%
Average CoOmpensalion INCICASE....uu ewiieiiersiriesmmmrserseris e st erreessbeis s s 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Curtailment

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company recognized a curtailment loss due to the termination of certain senior
executive officers from the Company. The curtailment loss was equal to the unrecognized prior service costs atiributed to
these employees’ expected aggregate future services which totaled approximately $248,000.
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The following is a reconciliation of the changes in the projected benefit obligation for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006:

December 31,

2007 2006
{In thousands)
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year ..o $ 7,223 § 6,073
B TVICE COBL .ot ee ettt e e e et et eeae s e st e en bt s emeesenan e seasen 523 677
BIEEIESE COSE ...\t ieeeeeieeeeeetrrita e eene ey s e ee e e e eeste e aa s e s ameeameeaneraneeseennnensnanperates 3719 349
REIMEASUTEIMEN .. .vevriveiseicriensresrresreniaes s eneesnssbessssasssesseesressassasesserseensresssnsnens (963) —
ACTUATIAL LOSS. ... ottt ettt 509 124
Projected benefit obligation, end of Year.......oovevonciinciiniiinn $ 7671 § 7223

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income that have not yet been recognized as components of net
periodic benefit costs at December 31, 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands})
Transition asset (ObLIZAtION) ... 8 —
PIIOT SEIVICE COSL.cviiiviiiieiiiciiee ittt ettt st e et se e s e s e e s e b e e eneaaneans (594)
ACCUMUIALEA 10SS ..vvviviiiiiiii e s s sb e bs s aeen {1,603)
0 | O O SO OO OO $ (2,197

The components of projected net periodic pension cost for the year ended December 31, 2008 are as follows:

(In thousands)
I VICE COSEiuriniiireieiitciteeeee st e e b e s te e e b b e s at e bt smeeeb et b b et s e e b s bee et s assseabasts e neerbens $ 3579
IIEETESE OB ..viiiieiietie ettt et e e eeee e et e ettt e et e e e e s en e et e enanssaseesstbesabeeanresnneerates 479
Amortization
PrIOFr SEIVICE COST..uuiiiiiieieetireseiescraenie et eresast s s st s eeaneesnrrarbeassabeessnneesnsssbbeens 41
(GAIM)LOSS oot s e et ass oo e sresananacnes 109
Net periodic Pension COSE ........ovr ettt et n st sneeees $ 1,208

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, a liability of $7.7 million and $7.2 million, respectively, related to the SERP was
included in deferred compensation and retirement plan obligations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In
accordance with the adoption of SFAS No. 158, the December 31, 2007 liability has been calculated based on the
projected benefit obligation of the SERP. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, the SERP liability was determined based
on the accumulated benefit obligation. The accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $6.5
million and $5.6 million respectively.

The Company sponsors two non-qualified retirement savings and investment plans for certain employees and senior
executives. Employee and Company contributions are maintained in separate irrevocable trusts. Legally, the assets of the
trusts remain those of the Company; however, access to the trusts’ assets is severely restricted. The trusts’ cannot be
revoked by the Company or an acquirer, but the assets are subject to the claims of the Company’s general creditors. The
participants do not have the right to assign or transfer contractual rights in the trusts. The Company accounts for these
plans in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 97-14, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation
Arrangements Where Amounts Earned Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested.” Pursuant to EITF 97-14, as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had recorded a deferred compensation liability of $36.5 million and $32.9
million, respectively. The change in the deferred compensation obligation related to changes in the fair value of the
diversified investments held in trust and to earnings credited to participants is recorded in compensation expense. The
diversified investments held in the trusts were $34.5 million and $31.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and are recorded at their fair value, based on quoted market prices. The change in the fair value of the
diversified assets held in trust is recorded in accordance with SFAS 115 as trading security income (loss) and is included
in other income and expenses, net in the accompanying statements of income. We are subject to risk from changes in debt
and equity prices from our non-qualified retirement savings plan investments in debt securities and common stock.
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The diversified investments held in the trusts’ weighted average asset allocation at December 31, 2007 by asset
category, is as follows:

207
EQUILY SECULTTIES 11vevovvevevareoeeeseeescmee e bastsss st sssss a8 b b e s 70%
DIEDE SECUTIIIES ... oeeveeeveeerererissieessesaeseseessenessssssebeanesre e s eeeassaesaseamssaba R e R b e s e AT e s s e nan e eaba b sh s e 18%
Cash and cash eQUIVAIEIES ... ..coev oot ee et s sb s 4%
L83 T RO U U OO OO PO U SO UT R P PRSP FTRT RIS TSTPTRRI PRI 8%

100%

At December 31, 2007 the non-qualified retirement and savings plans held 33,866 shares of the Company’s common
steck with a market value of $1.1 million.

Y Other consists of guaranteed invesiment contracts, investments funds collateralized by either government agency or
AAA securities, commercial paper, CDs, funding and repurchasing agreements.

17. Income Taxes

Income before income taxes was derived from the following:

Years ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

Income before income taxes:

Domestic Operations ..........ccecrerrrereoseseerens $ 159,520 $143,177 $123,769
Foreign operations ... 14,366 12,101 6,973
Income before INCOME tAXES. ....ccvvevvrvvecruenineescecrnns $173,886 $ 155,278 $ 130,742

The provisions for income taxes were as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Current tax (benefit) expense

Federal ...oooeieieecieireven et e $62,962 $ 64,284 $ 54,770

AR .o eeeeeteeceete e st esaeern e e te e e r e senene e a 6,301 6,707 5,476

FOTBIM .o ovvvvccccceiree s 1,488 1,019 685
Deferred tax (benefit) expense

Federal .o (7,959) (28,021) (16,133)

SLALE ..ot eceree st sveeee e e e e ere e ie s b s nenas e (642) (1,913} (1,209}

FOTEIEN ..o 435 415 (412)
TFICOIME LAXES vvvvvvereeeeeeeeeeeosssesssassssesssnssnsresseeesaseesaneess $ 62,585 $ 42,491 $ 43,177
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Deferred tax assets were comprised of the following:

December 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Property, equipment and intangible assets..........oooovceiniiininnncen $ (12,101) ¥ (10,078)
Gross deferred tax Habilities..........cocooveeii e, (12,101) {10,078)
Foreign operations .......c...couiivinmeiciniininnisiss s 1,576 752
ACCTUE EXPEIISES ....ooviiviieieieeeeeei ittt te e et e s eae e sttt ereeeeaeas 20,802 17,509
AcCrued COMPENSATION -.ocvvveriieiesieecereeriererrirre e rrrrissasreesresssesrrensasnseses 19,039 15,256
L0 11 1T R SO SRURURR TR UUUP 2,276 802
Gross deferred taX 5515 .ot s s 43,693 34,319
NEt deferTed AKX ASSEE coviiiiiiiirece e v s e e e ete s s e e eeeesseesreasaneeens 5 31,592 §  2424]

Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006

(in thousands)
Current net deferred tax aSSELS.......oviiiiiie e et eete ettt eee s $ 2387 $ 1,790
Non-current net deferred 18X assets ..o 29,205 22,451
Net deferred taX ASSET....vivivieiisseeersv it sreeeeeesetssesseseaestsessnsesmsarerasasarans $ 31,592 § 24241

No provision has been made for U.S. federal income taxes on approximately $38.5 million of accumulated and
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 since these earnings are considered to be permanently
invested in foreign operations.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA included a
temporary one-time incentive for United States multinational corporations to repatriate undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries by providing an 85 percent dividends received deduction for qualifying dividends from controlled foreign
corporations, as defined in the AJCA, at an effective tax cost of 5.25 percent on any such repatriated foreign earnings. The
Company elected to apply this provision to qualifying earnings repatriations in 2005, During the fourth quarter of 2005,
the Company repatriated earnings totaling $23.5 million, resulting in the recordation of additional income tax expense
totaling approximately $1.2 million.

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to income tax expense included in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income follows:

Years ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

(In thousands, except Federal
income tax rate)

Federal INCOME LAX TALE.........oiiiiiieeeeeeeeceet ettt eaeens 35% 35% 35%
Federal taxes at SIAtLOTY TATE. .....ooviveueueee e cereeecaeeeeeeeeee bt eees e eeaea s eees $ 60,860 $ 54347 § 45760
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit........ccooooiiieecii e, 3,678 3,116 2,436
Foreign income taxed at different rates...........c.cocoviircccii e (3.417) (3,675) (1,932)
Unrecognized tax DENETIS. .......cccerviriiice e cvaisssnise e s e s eses s es s srnerenras (363) (12,791} (4,456)
L0 711 T3 (O S OO U O SO O PERUU PSR 1,827 1,494 1,369
INCOIMIE TAX EXPENSE c.viveieevrersieresietissesererrsre et e ssesersssssssssesaessesrerssssnsnsans $ 62585 § 42491 § 43,177

Effective January i, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
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financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This
pronouncement also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company increased its existing
reserves for uncertain tax positions by $3.1 million with a corresponding net reduction to opening additional paid-in-
capital and retained earnings. Accrued interest and penalties of $0.1 million were recorded against retained earnings as of
January 1, 2007.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

(In thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2007 ...t e $ 7,086
Additions for tax positions of the CUITENL YEAr.............c.oiiiiiii e s 1,253
Additions for tax positions Of the PriOT YBAT ....cceer.ccoi i -—
Reductions for tax positions of prior years for:

Changes iN JUAZIMEII ..ot ettt b es —

Settlements during the period...... ... s —

Lapse of applicable statutes of HMitations ... (1,616)
Balance, December 31, 2007 ..ot e e e $ 6,723

As of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, the Company had $7.1 million and $6.7 million, respectively of total
unrecognized tax benefits of which approximately $4.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively would affect the effective
tax rate if recognized. These unrecognized tax benefits relate principally to state tax positions and stock based
compensation deductions. Estimated interest and penalties related to the underpayment of income taxes are classified as a
component of income tax expense in the consolidated statements of income and totaled $0.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Accrued interest and penaltics were $1.1 million and $1.3 million as of January I, 2007 and
December 31, 2007, respectively. The Company believes it is reasonably possible it will recognize tax benefits of up to
$1.6 million within the next twelve months. This isdue tothe anticipated lapse of applicable statutes of
lirnitations regarding state tax positions and stock-based compensation deductions.

The Company’s uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to examination by the relevant tax
authorities. The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple
state and foreign jurisdictions. The Company has substantially concluded all U.S. federal income tax matters for years
through 2003. Substantially all material state and local and forcign income tax matters have been concluded for years
through 2003. U.S. federal income tax returns for 2004 through 2006 are currently open for examination.

We have estimated and accrued for certain tax assessments and the expected resotution of uncertain tax benefits
which arise in the course of our business. The ultimate outcome of these impact the determination of income tax expense
and may not be resolved until several years after the related tax returns have been filed. Predicting the outcome of such
tax assessments involves uncertainty and accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

18. Capital Stock

The Company has stock compensation plans pursuant to which it is authorized to grant stock-based awards of up to
3.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock, of which 2.8 million sharcs remain available for grant as of
December 31, 2007. The Company’s policy allows the issuance of new or treasury shares to satisfy stock-based awards.
Restricted stock, stock options, stock appreciation rights and performance share awards may be granted to officers, key
employees and non-employee directors with contractual terms set by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors.
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Stock Options

The Company granted approximately 0.3 million, 0.2 million and 0.4 million options to officers of the Company at a
fair value of approximately $2.9 miilion, $2.8 million and $3.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The stock options granted by the Company had an exercise price equal to the average of the high
and low market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of the options granted was
estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

2607 2006 2008
RisK-1Te0 INEETES TATE ..c.oooviiiiiirrrre e s sa e s ses s e be s s 4.67% 4.69% 3.70%
Expected VOlatility ....oeveveeceieiiiit ittt 32.00% 32.09% 36.07%
Expected life of Stock OPHON «..ccoiviiviieeceeeev e 4.5 years 4.3 years 5.5 years
Dividend Yield.........cooiiie s 1.55% 1.07% 1.50%
Requisite Service PErioh......o.ceeieiiieiieicicv sttt er st ereas 4 years 4 years 5 years
Contractial lifE oo e 7 years 7 years 10 years
Weighted average fair value of options granted. ..o $ 1173 § 1482 $ 1o

The expected life of the options and volatility are based on the historical data and are not necessarily indicative of
exercise patterns or actual volatility that may occur. The dividend yield and the risk-free rate of return are calculated on
the grant date based on the then current dividend rate and the risk-free rate for the period corresponding to the expected
life of the stock option. Compensation expense related to the fair value of these awards is recognized straight-line over the
requisite service period based on those awards that ultimately vest.

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 was $43.4 million
and $38.1 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 was $16.1 million, $42.8 million and $47.7 million, respectively.

The Company received $5.7 million, $8.5 million, and $14.2 million in proceeds from the exercise of 0.6 million,
1.0 million and 1.9 million employece stock options during the years ended Deccember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003,
respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Number
Qutstanding at Weighted Average Weighted Number Weighted
December 31, Remaining Average Exercisable Average
Range of Exercise Prices 2007 Contractunl Life Exercise Price at December 31, 2007 Exercise Price
§ 00008 487 o, 15,000 2.7 years $ 4381 15,000 $ 4381
$ 488108 975 853,595 1.5 years 71.28 853,595 7.28
$ 0.7610814.62 i, 859,647 4.7 years 10.4] 662,210 1(.48
514631082437 i, 20,000 6.1 years 20.75 12,000 20.75
324381083412 ., 314,863 7.1 years 29.92 120,592 29.92
$34.1310839.00 ..., 85,000 6.6 years 37.38 — —
$39.01 0 $43.87 i 154,637 6.1 years 40.72 — —
$43.88 10 $48.75 .o 180,534 5.1 years 48.74 45,130 48.74
2,483,276 4.1 years $ 17.46 1,708,527 $ 11.29
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Restricted Stock

The following table is a summary of activity related to restricted stock grants to non-employee directors and key
employees for the year ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Restricted Shares granted ... ... s 157,467 143,943 265,589
Weighted average grant date fair value per share ... 3 40.28 $  48.67 $ 3197
Ageregate grant date fair value (B000) ..o $ 6,343 $ 7,005 $ 8,491
Restricted Shares TOrTRItEd. . ..o e s vee e eeeee e e e s br e s s s e r et e e e s emanennns 43,783 29,443 29,150
WVesting service period of shares granted ... 3-4 years 3-4 years 3-5 years
Fair value of shares vested ($000) .......ccoooiniiiire e $ 7,802 $ 10959 $ 5,663

Compensation expense related to the fair value of these awards is recognized straight-line over the requisite service
period based on those restricted stock grants that ultimately vest. The fair value is measured by the average of the high
and low market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Restricted stock awards in 2007 and 2006
generally vest ratably at 25 percent per year beginning with the first anniversary of the grant date. Restricted stock awards
dusing 2005 generally vest ratably at 20 percent per year beginning with the first anniversary of the grant date.

Performance Vested Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted performance vested restricted stock units (“PVRSU”) to certain officers. The vesting of
these stock awards is contingent upon the Company achieving specified earnings per share targets at the end of specified
pe-formance periods and the employees’ continued employment. The performance conditions affect the number of shares
that will ultimately vest. The range of possible stock-based award vesting is between 50% and 200% of the initial target.
Under SFAS No. 123R, compensation expense related to these awards will be recognized over the requisite period
regardless of whether the performance targets have been met based on the Company’s estimate of the achievement of the
performance target. The Company has currently estimated that 125% and 145% of the 2007 and 2006 award targets will
be achieved, respectively. The fair value is measured by the average of the high and low market price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense is recognized ratably over the requisite service period based on
those PVRSUs that ultimately vest.

The following table is a summary of activity related to PVRSU grants during the year ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Performance vested restricted stock units gZranted ... 21,141 49,780 —
Weighted average grant date fair value per share ... $ 40.75 $ 4622 —
Aggregate grant date fair value ($000) ... $ 862 3 2,301 —
SRATES FOITRILEA ... voeeeeeeee e ee e e teiae e bseatreeestesabesanecneeseaeem e sesat e s ba s e b as s amt v s b e s e s s e e n e e e e et 2,933 — —
Fair value of shares vested (BO00) ..o oo steriesmese ettt — — —
Requisite SErVICE PErIOq .. .ciiiiiiiiiiiiniiei e 3 years 3-4 years —
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A summary of stock-based award activity as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and the changes during the years

are presented below:

Outstanding at January 1, 2007.....
Granted .....oooeececvniereecr
Exercised/Vested ...cocooeevivcvrnnnnn.
Forfeited/Expired.......cocooceveinnin

Cutstanding at December 31, 2007

Options exercisable at
December 31, 2007 ...,

QOutstanding at January 1, 2006

Granted ...
Exercised/Vested ...oooovivinnnene
Forfeited/Expired ......cccocoeviniicnnnne

QOutstanding at December 31, 2006..

Options exercisable at
December 31,2006 ....................

Outstanding at January 1, 2005........
Granted ...
Exercised/Vested ...
Forfeited/Expired........ccovvvvrvnrirccne

Quistanding at December 31, 2005..

Options exercisable at
December 31, 2005 ..........ccovveeee

2007

Performance Vested
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Stock Options Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Weighted Weighted
Exercise Contractuoal Average Grant Average Grant
Shares Price Term Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value
2,860,159 3 14.30 570,134 $ 29.81 49,780 $ 4622
250,957 39.60 157,467 40.28 21,141 40.75
(565,261)  10.18 (198,258) 26.08 — —
(62,579)  27.92 (43,783) 32.85 (2,933) 45.05
2,483,276 $ 1746 4.1 years 485,560 $ 3445 67,988 $ 4457
1,708,527 $ 11.29 3.2 years
2006
Performance Vested
Stock Opfions Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted Weighted
Average Averape Weighted Weighted
Exercise Contractual Average Grant Average Grant
Shares Price Term Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value
3,753,001 % 1081 689,865 $ 2213 - $ -—
190,548 48.74 143,943 48.67 49,780 46.22
(1,037,979) 8.19 (234,231) 18.68 — —
@s5411)  10.12 (29,443) 30.76 — —
2,860,159 § 14.30 4.8 years 570,134 $ 29381 49,780 $ 46.22
1,746,427 § 937 3.8 years
2005
Performance Vested
Stock Options Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Weighted Weighted
Exercise Contractual Average Grant Average Grant
Shares Price Term Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value
5440414 § 832 638,226 £ 1564 — $—
355,384 2992 265,589 31.97 — —
(1,928,903) 7.37 (184,800) 13.88 — —
(113,894) 9.98 (29,150) 22.00 — —
3,753,001 $ 1081 53 years 689,865 $ 22.13 — $—
2,200,008 § 795
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The components of the Company’s pretax stock-based compensation expense and associated income tax benefits are
as “ollows for the years ended December 31:

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005
CHOCK DPUIOMS. .o .voeeeceecesiesbseesesb bt ees 4218 b s bR LT SR $ 29 §$ 39 85 18
R EHITICTE SEOCK vt e e eeseteeeeeeereeaneeersesabesainsseesseennsreesbeseobbaabba e s sessr s e nrnaesabessnr s sre s beraRbeab s s earbr e e nrnanaat 5.5 5.2 35
Performance vested reStricted SOCK WIIES ......ocoveeeririvs i e e eeeeeteeeee e e te s costessr e e sares s oo seasssse s smessaebsssaeasabnasrmnnsane 0.9 0.8 —
TTO AL oo e e v te s teaseaeastasasasnneesasaaeameesaenaeameees st seaaseiaEEeeaReeAAR e e g e e beeeaneeeaEeee et e s AR e RS e r e ee b s e ennen s $ 93 § 99 § 513
TLCOMIE AKX DEIEETES o onveeoveeorsveesveessarseseseeesesaseaeeaasesaneeaesatsssabsass sassassasssssaar e e meeaseeeeeaeesabssabassssaae arsnaramensmasnenens $ 35 % 37 % 20

Stock-based compensation expense on stock option and performance vested restricted stock units made to a
retirement eligible executive officer during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was recognized upon issuance
of the grants rather than over the awards’ vesting period since the terms of the grant provide that the awards will vest upon
retirement of the employee. Compensation costs rccognized in 2007 related to the vesting upon retirement eligibility
totaled $0.9 million and $0.6 million for stock options and performance vested restricted stock units, respectively.
Compensation costs recognized in 2006 totaled $0.9 million and $0.4 million for stock options and performance vested
restricted stock units, respectively.

The total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock-based awards that have not yet vested and the related
weighted average amortization period over which the costs are to be recognized as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Unrecognized Weighted

Compensation Average
Expense on Unvested Amortization

Awards Period
(in millions)
SHOCK OPUIDNS. . 11eceeveeveieeareeremeesccasaanre s s bbb b e b bbbt s bR bbb $ 44 2.5 years
RESEICIEA STOCK c1vivi ittt it sinreair s e s e e e s b she s b e b s b b s b e e e sn e s b e st naa e a e rre e 12.2 2.4 years
Performance vested restricted StoCk UNILS ..o e 1.4 2.0 years
TOIAL ..ovevies ettt ettt e bbb R b E b e 3 18.0

Stock Repurchase Program

The Company announced a stock repurchase program on June 25, 1998 to increase returns to its shareholders.
Treasury stock activity is recorded at cost in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. During 2007, the
Company repurchased 4.9 million shares of its common stock under the rcpurchase program at a total cost of $184.0
million. The Company did not repurchase common stock during the year ended December 31, 2006 under its share
repurchase program. Through December 31, 2007, the Company repurchased 38.6 million shares of its common stock
(including 33.0 million prior to the two-for-one stock split effected in October 2005) under the share repurchase program
at a total cost of $895.9 million.

During 2007 the Company purchased 49,054 shares of common stock at a total cost of $2.0 million from employees
tc satisfy statutory minimum tax-withholding requirements from the vesting of restricted stock grants. During 2006 the
Company purchased 28,793 shares of common stock from employces at a total cost of $1.4 million to satisfy minimum
tax-withholding requirements. These purchases were outside the share repurchase program initiated in June 1998.
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19. Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(1o thousands)
Foreign currency translation adjuStmMEnts .....ooccooriiiieee e srerer st ranesesene s sens $ 1699 3 017 $ 703
Deferred gain on hedging aCHVITY.c.c.civiiiiric i srsrnns s e resaessssereseses 22 89 156
Adjustment to apply SFAS N, 158, it (1,375) (1,878) —
Total accumulated other comprehensive INCOME (0S8} ....covvviiirinicrrviniineiee v $ 346 3 (772) § 859
Total other comprehensive income for years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:
Amount Before Income Tax Amount Net
Taxes (Expense)/Bencefit _0_in
2007
Forcign currency translation adjustment, Net......o.oovvvercvrnieincsnssceessenenns 3 682 $ — $ o682
Amortization of pension related costs
Prior SEIVICE COSES.cooiiniiiinieaciit it ettt e eee eta e enas 43 (16) 27
ACtUATIA] JOSS. ..ot 58 21} 37
ACtUArial PENSION LOSS .ceiieeeeiiriireeeie et crs e st sesbi s et e er st e bassetasrestas (509) 190 319
Pension curtailment and remeasurement. . ....oo.vcveiiciecceiciiiiieeecesr e, 1,211 (453) 758
Amortization of deferred gain on hedge ..........oooveveeeeeeicr e, (110} 43 67)
Total other cOmMprehensive INCOME ... ..ocivveiiv et $ 1375 h) (257) $ 1,118
2006
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net..........oovvccinirnnne e $ 314 $ — $ 314
Amortization of deferred gainonhedge ..o (110} 43 6h
Total other comprehensive INCOME ..o $ 204 $ 43 5 247
2005
INEt UNFCANZEA 1088 ...t na s es s e enansanes 3 (40) 3 15 $ (25)
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income ...................... (98) — {98)
Foreign currency transiation adjustment, net ..........oooveveiinenninnec oo (351) —_ 350
Amortization of deferred gain on hedge ... (110) 43 (67)
Total other comprehensive iIncome (1088) ......occooiiiriiii e e, 3 (599) $ 58 $ (541

In December 1999, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement to fix certain of its variable rate debt
in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. On March 3, 2000, the interest rate swap
agreement was settled resulting in a deferred gain. In accordance with SFAS 133, the unamortized gain was reclassified in
2001 to other comprehensive income and is being amortized over the original life of the related debt through 2008 as a
reduction of interest expense. In each of 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded approximately $67,000, net of
taxes, of amortization related to this deferred gain.
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20. Earnings Per Share

The following table reconciles the number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations.

Years Ended December 3,
2007 2006 2005

{In millions, cxcept per
share amounts)

Computation of Basic Eamings Per Share:

INEE ITICOIMIE - e et e e sasaeseaeasassess e e ssaranssses b s bt es ek et abas e e et e s e e ettt ot st s s esmseneenrnrnro $ 1ML3 0§ 1128 § 876
Weighted average shares owtstanding-basic. ... 64.2 654 64.4
Basic earnings Per SHATE.....virrirr e e eeemci bt e $ 173 % 172§ 136
Computation of Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Net income for diluted earnings per Share ...t $ 1113 $§ 1128 3 876
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic..........coociiiiiiinic 64.2 65.4 64.4
Etfect of Dilutive Securities:

Stock options and restricted Stock plan.. ... 1.1 1.7 1.9
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted..........ccoooiiiiiiiin 65.3 67.1 66.3
Diluted earnings PEI SHATE ........oooicieiriecieeine et amese et e e e s b et st s abaaba b $ 170 $ 168 § 132

Basic earnings per sharc exclude dilution and are computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding. Diluted camings per share assumes dilution and is computed based on the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding after consideration of the dilutive effect of stock options and unvested
restricted stock. The effect of dilutive securities is computed using the treasury stock method and average market prices
during the period. However, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, PVRSUs totaling 67,988 and 49,780, respectively were
excluded from the computation since the performance conditions had not been met at the reporting date. In addition, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 the Company excluded 360,171 and 190,548 anti-dilutive options, respectively from the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

21. Leases

The Company enters into operating leases primarily for office space and computer equipment. Rental expense under
non-cancelable operating leases was approximately $4.6 million, $5.1 million and $8.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively. The Company received sublease rental income related to computer
equipment leased to franchisees totaling $0.6 million, $1.1 million and $4.1 million during the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2008 2009 1010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total
{In thousands)
Minimum 1ease payments ....ocooecveeeeeeenes $ 5,827 $5,537 $5,294 $5,308 $5114 & 5792 $ 32872
‘Minimum sublease rentals .........c.cocoiiiene {68) 7 (18) — — — (157)

$5,759 5,466 $5,276 $5308 §5114 § 5792 % 32,715

22. Reportable Segment Information

The Company has a single reportable segment encompassing its franchising business. Revenues from the franchising
business include royalty fees, initial franchise and relicensing fees, marketing and reservation fees, brand solutions
revenue and other revenuc. The Company is obligated under its franchisc agreements to provide marketing and
reservation services appropriate for the successful operation of its systems. These services do not represent scparate
reportable segments as their operations are directly related to the Company’s franchising business. The revenues received
from franchisees that are used to pay for part of the Company’s central on-going operations are included in franchising
revenues and are offset by the related expenses paid for marketing and reservation activities to calculate franchising
operating income. Corporate and other revenue consists of hotel operations. Except as described in Note 6, the Company
does not allocatc interest and dividend income, interest expense or income taxes to its franchising segment.
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The following table presents certain financial information for the Company’s franchising segment,

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Corporate Elimination
Frenchising & Other Adjustments Consolidated
{In thousands)
REVENUES oottt e tae s te et s g et s e tesneesneesnees $ 610,802 $ 4,692 — $ 615494
Operating iNCOME (1088) ...cccivivvireereececreetsna i ee e 225,536 (40,337) — 185,199
Depreciation and amOrtiZation ........cccccovrvvieinsimesissv e eersrseneans 9,713 7,243 {8,319} 8,637
Capital expenditures...........cocvoieceicrerninnnirines i se e 7,578 4,385 — 11,963
Total ASSEIS. ...corriviereecieesr et ee et eb e e 185,770 142,614 — 328,384
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Corporate Elimination
Franchising & Other Adjustments Consolidated
(In thousands)
REVEIUES . ooeeeeicvtictevs et e st esrera s ee e s e et et eses st e emeaernesbe et eesbesaaeae $ 535398 $ 4,505 — $ 539,903
Operating INCOME {1088) ....vviiiiireriireccirecn e 213,506 (46,881) — 166,625
Depreciation and amortiZation .........c...ococoeiiviiienneee e seseesesenssennenns 10,164 7,455 (7,914) 9,705
Capital eXpendifUures...........ccooeviererieeninieiee et 5,574 2,133 — 7,707
TOMAL ASSEIS.cueiiti e ceectee e e e sttt e eae s sae e s saeene et eentean 185,022 118,287 — 303,309
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Corporate Elimination
Franchising & Other Adjustments Caonsolidated
(In thousands)
REVEIMUES .ottt e v er s sas et e e e enseneernene $ 467,805 § 429 — $ 472098
Operating INCOmME (l0S8) .......ccvcricrerrririiiicesrnerere i ssesesesesnenssens 185,525 (41,775) — 143,750
Depreciation and amortization ............eeceevvnimniinieecenicereen e 9,595 7,085 (7,629) 9,051
Capital expenditures. ... e 8,973 2,531 — 11,504
TOtA] ASSRES e eevreisrernrrrriteeetrisisbarsereess e ssrsteestinssbeeeeneeeaneessbessanssestonee 190,688 74,583 —_ 265,271

Long-lived assets related to international operations were $7.1 million, $7.0 million and $7.1 million as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. All other long-lived assets of the Company are associated with domestic
activities.

23. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management and the Company’s legal counsel, the ultimate outcome of such litigation will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2007, two federal securities law class actions were filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Colorado on behalf of persons who purchased the Company’s stock between April 25, 2006, and July 26, 2006. These
substantially-similar lawsuits assert claims pursuant to Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, against the Company, its current Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
and its former Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. These claims are related to the Company’s July 25,
2006 announcement of its results of operations for the second quarter of 2006.

Since the initial filings, the Company has filed a motion to transfer the litigation from Colorado to the United States
District Court for the District of Maryland. Additionally, one plaintiff has petitioned the Court to be named lead plaintiff
in the dispute. At this time, the Company has not responded to the complaints filed and is not required to do so until after
a lead plaintiff is appointed and a consolidated complaint is filed. The Company belicves that the allegations contained
within these class action lawsuits are without merit and intends to vigorously defend the litigation.

The Company’s management does not expect that the outcome of any of its currently ongoing legal proceedings
individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows.

88




CHOICE HOTELS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

In March 2006, the Company guaranteed $1 million of a bank loan funding a franchisee’s construction of a Cambria
Suites in Green Bay, Wisconsin. The guaranty was scheduled to expire in September 2010. In February 2007, the
Company was released from its obligations under the March 2006 guaranty, and subsequently, on May 3, 2007, issued
anew $1 million guaranty for a bank loan funding the construction for the same franchisee’s Cambria Suites in Green
Bay, Wisconsin. The guaranty expires in August 2010. The Company has received personal guarantees from several of
the franchisee’s principal owners related to the repayment of any amounts paid by the Company under this guaranty.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into numerous agreements that contain standard guarantees
and indemnities whereby the Company indemnifies another party for breaches of representations and warranties. Such
guarantees or indemnifications are granted under various agreements, including those governing (i) purchases or sales of
assets or businesses, (ii) leases of real estate, (iii) licensing of trademarks, (iv) access to credit facilities, (v) issuances of
debt or cquity securitics, and (vi) other operating agreements. The guarantees or indemnifications issued are for the
benefit of the (i) buyers in sale agreements and sellers in purchase agreements, (i) landlords in lease contracts,
(iii) franchisees in licensing agreements, (iv) financial institutions in credit facility arrangements, and (v) underwriters in
debt or equity security issuances. In addition, these parties are also indemnified against any third party claim resulting
from the transaction that is contemplated in the underlying agreement. While some of these guarantees extend only for the
duration of the underlying agreement, many survive the expiration of the term of the agreement or extend into perpetuity
(unless subject to a legal statute of limitations). There are no specific limitations on the maximum potential amount of
futurc payments that the Company could be required to make under these guarantees, nor is the Company able to develop
an estimate of the maximum potential amount of future payments to be made under these guarantees as the triggering
events are not subject to predictability. With respect to certain of the aforementioned guarantecs, such as indemnifications
of landlords against third party claims for the use of real estate property leased by the Company, the Company maintains
insurance coverage that mitigates any potential payments to be made.

24, Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The balance sheet carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and receivables approximates fair value due to the
short-term nature of these items. Long-term debt consists of bank loans and senior notes. Interest rates on the Company’s
bank loans adjust frequently based on current market rates; accordingly, the carrying amount of the Company’s bank
loans approximates fair valuc. The $100 million unsecured senior notes have an approximate fair value at December 31,
2007 and 2006 of $100.6 million and $101.7 million, respectively, based on quoted market prices.

25,  Related Party Transactions

The Company paid approximately $462,997 to and received approximatcly $44,000 from corporations owned or
controlled by family members of the Company’s largest sharcholder related to the lease of personal and real property
during 2007. During 2006, the Company paid approximately $133,231 and received approximately $176,318. During
2005, the Company paid approximately $315,409 and received approximately $166,954.

On October 30, 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement commencing in January 2008 on behalf of a
family member of the Company’s largest sharcholder for 1,950 square feet of office space located in Chevy Chase,
Maryland. The lease has a 5 year term with annual lease payments totaling approximately $70,000.

During 2003, the Company purchased 0.1 million shares of its common stock at a total cost of $6.0 million from
members of the family of the Company’s largest shareholder. No shares were repurchased from rclated parties during
2007 and 2006.

26. Termination Charges

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a $3.7 million charge in selling, general and administrative
expenses for employee termination benefits relating to the termination of certain executive officers. Termination benefits
include salary continuation of approximately $2.5 million, SERP curtailment expenses of $0.2 million and $1.0 million of
accelerated share based compensation. Termination benefits payable to the executives were accounted for under SFAS
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No. 112 “Employer’s Accounting for Post-employment Benefits”. At December 31, 2007, approximately $2.0 million of
termination benefits remained and were included in current liabilities in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

27. Selected Quarterly Financial Data — (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2007
{In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues. ... $114,929 $ 150,491 $ 175,099 $ 168,975 $ 615494
Operating income.............c...coooiiiiiicii e e $ 27,386 § 47363 $ 62,359 § 48,091 $ 185,199
Income before iNCome tAXeS .....................coiimrvienviennennnns $ 25,184 $ 46,048 $ 59,363 $ 43,291 $173,886
NELAMCOMIE ..o $ 16315 § 28,645 S 38394 § 27,947  $111,301
Per basic share:

Net iNCOME. ..o e e b 0.25 $ 044 $ 0.60 $ 045 5 1.73
Per diluted share:

Net inCome......cooorviiiiie e b 0.24 $ 0.43 b 0.59 $ 0.44 $ 1.70

First Second Third Fourth
Quarler Quarler Quarter Quarter 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES ..o $ 108,255 $139,370 $ 149,779 $ 142,499 $ 539,903
OPerating INCOME ...viveereieieeeeereeiee e e e be st eee s sene $ 30,073 $ 42114 § 54,552 $ 39,886 $ 166,625
Income before inCOME TAXES ....ooevieeeermrver et imibe e $ 26,995 $ 37,684 $ 52,263 $ 38,336 $155278
INEE INCOMIE ..viveeeeeeee v s seesttetasbasebeebe s sreeseseeerenas $ 17,665 $ 24,136 $ 46,357 $ 24,629 $ 112,787
Per basic share:

NEt INCOME ovevvriiiiiie et $ 027 $ 037 $ 071 $ 037 $ L7
Per diluted share:

NELINCOIMNE w.vivvvieieviriitieee e ees s st £ 026 $ 036 $ 069 £ 037 5 1.68

Quarterly revenues reported in the table above have been reclassified from prior quarter Form 10-Q filings to reflect
the reclassification of certain marketing and reservation revenues. The reclassification of revenues had no effect on
reported operating income, income before income taxes, net income or earnings per share.

The matters which effect the comparability of our quarterly results include seasonality, executive termination
benefits recorded in the first quarter of 2007, the reversal of reserves for income tax contingencies in the third and fourth
quarter of 2006 and a loss on extinguishment of debt in the second quarter 2006.

28. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”) which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements, This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. In November 2007, the FASB agreed to
partially defer the effective date, for one year, of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities, except those that
are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 157 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”
(“SFAS No. 159”) which provides reporting entities an option to report certain financial instruments and other items at
fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of a
reporting entity’s first fiscal year beginning afier November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect to elect the fair value
measurement option of any financial assets or liabilities at the present time.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (“SFAS No. 160”), “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—An Amendment of ARB No. 51", SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting
standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 is
cffective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if
any, the adoption of this statement will have on our consolidated financial statements,
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS Standards No. 141 (Revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (*SFAS
MNo. 141R™). SFAS No. 141R will change the accounting for business combinations by requiring an acquiring entity to
rzcognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition-date fair value with limited
exceptions. SFAS No.141R will also change the accounting treatment and disclosure for certain specific items in a
kusiness combination, SFAS No.141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
cr after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008,

29, Subsequent Events

On February 11, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.17 per share of
common stock. The dividend is payable on April 18, 2008 to sharcholders of record as of April 4, 2008. Based on the
Company’s present share count, the total dividends to be paid is approximately $10.5 million.

Subsequent to December 31, 2007 through February 29, 2008, the Company did not repurchase additional shares of
its common stock.

On January 31, 2008, the Company finalized the agreement with RHC to transfer franchising operations in the
United Kingdom from RHC to the Company for its Comfort, Quality, Sleep and Clarion brand hotels. The master
franchise agreement between the Company and RHC was terminated and the existing franchise agreements were assigned
1o the Company.
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on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker
symbol CHH.

TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR
Computershare Investor Services

250 Royall Streer, Mail Stop 1A

Canton, MA oz021

800.508.3476

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Mclean, Virginia

CERTIFICATIONS

Choice Hotels International has included as
Exhibits 31 and 32 to its Annual Report on Form
10-K for fiscal year 2007 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission certificates of the
company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer certifying the quality of the
company’s public disclosure. The company’s
Chief Executive Officer has alse submitted to the
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) a certificate
certifying that he is not aware of any violations
by Choice Hotels International of the Nvse
corporate governance listing standards.

FORM I0-K

Shareholders may receive without charge a copy of
the Form 10-K and other publicadons filed with
the Securitics and Exchange Connnission by written
request to the Corporate Secretary at the corporate
headquarters. The Form 10-K also is available at
1wz cheiceliotels.com. Click on “Investor Info” and

then “SEC Filings.”

In addition, copies of the company’s public filings,
as well as its corporate governance guidelines,
corporate ethics policy and board of directors
committee charters, are available on choiccherels.com
under “Investor Info.”

ANNUAL MEETING

Choice Hotels International will hold its Annual
Mecting of Stockhotders on April 30, 2008 at 900
a.m. in Silver Spring, Maryland:

Choice Hotels International

The Learning Center

Chesapeake Reom

10720 Columbia Pike

Silver Spring, Maryland 20901

INQUIRIES
General Infermation
301.592. 5000
unenechoicehotels.com

INVESTOR INQUIRIES
3C1.592.5020
tnvestor_relationst@choicehoiels.com

MEDIA INQUIRIES
101.592.5032
nerws@choicehotels.com

FRANCHISE SALES
800.547.0007

franchise_sales@choicehotols.com

Choice Huotels [nternational, headquartered in Silver Spring, Maryland, is one of the largest hotel companies in the world, with maore than 5,500 hotels open, representing more than 450,000
roums. Ranging from limited-service to full-service hotels in the economy, midescale and upseale segments, Choice-branded properties provide business and lefsure travelers with a range of
hgh—quality. high-value lodging options, The companyX ten brands inctude Comfort I, Comfort Suites, Quality, Sleep lon, Clarion, Cambiria Suites, MainStay Suites. Suburban Extended

Sty Hotel, Econo Lodge and Roedeway [nn,
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